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2017 nanxyTa 31 0i'7 DTNIRAN D900 NINIT? 26.3 NI IXY MK TIT2ATN NRI7n 12Ta 0'0197 .2017 Nanvsoa 5 nia

(non-recourse) NTNN NIDT K77 NINIRY NIAIN 7Y 21M10R9 NIRFOY DYD7 DYON NYN¥IN NXIAPN - D'PO0I NINIRY? 'RIWUN

.0'750 nhn' v A1"I0PKRO 0NN NIRPOVI

NNINVAN NN DRIV NINRY7 YMMN 'RIYWKRD D212 Y271 [N DIMSIFN 'RIYKR NITYIE 1NTpn nNann 781Y2 nniz'yoa
IRIWRN NITYILI7R NIX7AN YIX'A INK 27V10 002NN DR LD 1) .DMIX'N 'RIWK NIV NYDYY7 00X NN Dnn DTN
N2'0N 2AYWNI 0'900N 701N ,NXIAZN AWN NISNNWNAL 7KW OIRNVY 7w NNHDAN 7"21n01 0'900n 7"510 1 2y nitnin
NNIYN NIt 0'7"21nn1 000N 701N T 7Y 'RIWK N7l NIMBIPN 'RIWK NITYIE NIN'PNRN n5gn N7yl .ninodnn
NNAN 7¢ 'RIYKRD NITYIA QNNYN AWK NXIAPN 1211 DO OIXIVY 7w 0'9000 7"11Nn0 7w 7un NI NNN NXTE,DNIMNNAL
.N2NN [INIVYT T 7Y MWIRY NiTan nnn Trés Coragdes n'7nin 1 7y 701 nain'on 710 ,7'11a .ny'? nyn nopn
2017 "2 .n"7"7w n'tnn oy Standard & Poor’s Maalot Itd. nhan 7w ilAA+ an'T ynwX v nnann nyrTin 2017 oxa
NN T Y IR91I'Y 2N NNARY 77w poixa ilAA+ anT nyap Standard & Poor’s Maalot Itd. nian » nhann nyTin

.N"w 1'vm 470 9w npoY Ty
("T "1T0) 2N nNart (2 NNTO) 2NN NNAXR? n"va aNT nhan 7w Aa2il antT ANwR v nnann nayrTin 2017 9Moxa
MNANN T 7Y 17911'w 2In NNaR? 2'y' poiva Aa2il a1 nyap n"va anTna D nnann nyn 2017 21 79Ik NIThnay

.n"w 1"y 470 9w npoY? TV
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NNXNN2 DMLY 01N 1901 91X7 NN2aNN NLV*Y7NN 2013 AR 1 oA 11 MIK71'2 '90D NNFT |PN YW 97IN7 N0ON NIV
7Y INNTY '9) 'oN'n TIN'RN NU'WA D1 [707 D'0IIDAN DIININ .AT [N 7W 97IN7 1IN0 DIV AN NNV 'KAAWNN NIFTY

TNV DT VTN QX7 K7W NIDT DR NNXY? nniv nnann (2012 maw 972121 v nhann '

1y [1yan nnavY

2016 2017 2016 2017

360 328 762 622 ("21010 NITh '9%) NBVIY NIP'WON DTN
D"YUNIN X7 0'0212 NYRYAL YIAR YD YD
76 79 239 268 ("21n10 niTn '9%)

1,428 2,080 1,428 2,080 NITN 1IXN7 (2100 NITA '97) 102 2N DN
9ol NI77210 W NITA' K77) NINN9NI NNO

59 65 231 238 (NN NIRNIN
7KW OILY
15 14 58 55 DN NID'NI NINNA
8 11 35 36 NNINIANYN
N9 OINVY
4 5 12 13 el AR bl
14 13 52 53 mIN71 Nop
7 7 27 32 Mmix712 0'NNni 0'7a0n
11 15 47 49 alat

N72apnn noipna n"w I'7m 975 -3%7 nxnwina ,2017 mwa n"w 7 1,018 ->2 nndnon (*71n1) nxpn 7w EBITDA -n
NRIIYNL ,Mun 7w 'y 1vana Ny ir'rm 214 ->a nnonon (*71n1) nxipn 7w EBITDA -0 .4.4% -3 7w '71ITa , TPnwK

.10.6% -3 7w 71T, TPNUR n7apnn noipna n'w 1M 194 -5

= DXIAPD 7¥ NI'TOIND DIFoya NIT'N'D 7W NI'fPOYN NIXXIND hint 3.2

N9 oIXLVY Ni'7'wo ninn 3.2.1

DYY D'NIITN DMITAN 'S 7V D97 NNAN NI7'YS 7w D710 NINITA 7Y hooiann N'oyn NI'Z'Y9SN NIXRXIN N'¥NN |77
}(n"w 1) 2016 -1 2017 nanyTa 31 Dia MUnoaw nnIYaI

1y jiyan navY

mnwv % 2016 2017 mnwv % 2016 2017
7N N9P AN
13.9% 147 167 4.5% 673 704 101 NN
132.7% 8 20 19.0% 87 104 21y91N NIN
6.0% 12.2% 13.0% 14.8% "21von NN %
mIN'722 NP 1TAN
0.4% 914 918 13.2% 3,000 3,396 102 NN
(21.8%) 76 59 6.4% 272 289 71y91N NIN
8.3% 6.4% 9.1% 8.5% "21v9N NN %
N9 OINYVY NI7'YVD NNAoN dD"no
2.3% 1,061 1,085 11.6% 3,673 4,100 101 NN
13.9% 6.5% 11.4% 11.0% WY 'WI9N NYOSYN 7NV NPANIX ANY
4.1% 320 333 11.2% 1,182 1,314 m2Ia niN
30.2% 30.7% 32.2% 32.1% m4ia nin %
(5.9%) 84 79 9.4% 359 393 "21y9N NIN
8.0% 7.3% 9.8% 9.6% 2iyon nin %
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0IXVWA (25.1%) TPG 7w n'mim 75 7w n1in nwDA ("nop oIkvY™ :[7n'7) N9j7 0IXKITVYW NIN NNAN NYX¥ 01NA 27 DI

.2017 nanxTa 31 n1'? DTNINAN D'902N NINIT? 6.4 7K 1KY ,D'901 D'0197 .N'R 1'7'n 257 Ninn nop
Norddeutsche nnan niann 100% nw1? v nnenw Call -0 Ny 9IX IR N9 OIXNIVY NN NN YN 01N 23 DI
6.5 1IXa IXY 0'9011 D'VIDY .NNNAD ARDPNA WA ond N9 7won n7'vonn ("NDKW" :7n%) Kaffeewerke GmbH

.2017 7anxT2a 31 nI'7 n*TNIXAN D'9020 NINITY?

ninon 3.2.1.1

11% ->2 yaonn v Nyswin 7Nn012 N57N DINN 7w NDAIKD INTMXN NNONoN Nwn 7w 'vann jwanal 2017 nwa

TPNWUR NI7AEnn NIDIENY NRIYNL ,NNXkNN1 ,6.5% -DI1

NIX7YN 7w nyown 121 XY T2 imd 71 APV NOP'Y N1Wn 7w ynn [1IV2N2 N9 NINDNA MIzn yavnia nnNmxn
2T IRY ,(“n'nn NITIN 1WX2NN X1 D"M'Nn n"Y nyxn X7 n'onn) NMYn NIt 0TRZIN nI7'von NN |7'7I'11 IYYIvw 1'nn

."D"TOIN D0'9MAIR'A DNITK '97 NOPN DINN NNDN" INY D'9011 D'V PN N9PN NIV

NI72pNnN NISIPNYT NRIYN ,NARNNA ,N"Y [I'71 24 -D1 427 -1 ndpn DINN NNDA 17y Dawn 7w 'wann 1ivanan 2017 nwa

NYOWN Nniv? n"w |17 1 -22 md>noni N9 DINN NN 2y 7% 91X 1y'own 2017 nawa n"Y7 ninnnn 'wion L TRNWR
IN7'TI2N 7RNN Y YN IMNn NYY 1'wn DAFNN nYSYnn 0oInn N"Y ' 42 -3 7w 102 nwn Y 'wnann |1ivana nvt
nNnYE L2 13 'Y 1yana 'y e 37 -3 Yw n'Yw nyswn nniy'? nnavxnn noipna Ny 1M 13 -3 Y 7pwin in X
N72Pnn N9IENYT NRIYNL 7wn 71 'onn 72nn v yximnn Nyw niprnnnn 2017 mwa n"w 1'7'm 27 -3 7w n'arn nyswn

.MYN 7Y ' vana n'y e 1 -3 %Y e nyswin Nniv'? Tpnun

707 3.2.1.4 q'yoa 07190 NITA N9IPNA NN DINN NN 7Y 0'9011 DN20N

m4ianin 3.2.1.2

NI7apnn NIDINT7 ARIYNL ;NN ,N"Y i 13 -31 132 -3 M7 ninn 7y nawn 7w 'wann ivatarl 2017 nwa

2017 mw 7w 'va1n vana nm7an nrninn .32% -2 nnonont 0.2% ->a a1 2017 nmiwa nm'7an nirninn L Tnux
.30.7% -2 nnononi 0.5% ->1 nnny

NN 2N2 'NN NIRYD YWY 12yn PR N9p N DY WY T 7Y 120 MIYN 170N N'aian NifninA 1ofpn
NKRXIND DM D97 1'NN 7W AT 1'oNAl (DMIXINNN 7702 NN NN NITIN IWXANN 2'INnN2) NNann 7w nizwen
SNPTINRN V2T 7m 2200 niptnnnn

2N N9EN NN AT T 2V 720 mwn 7w 'yanin [1Iyan ']'7-'1)’.\2 nM2an NIrniNA 2Iman

7iyon nin 3.2.1.3

NIYONN NIFNINN L TPNYR N7270n0 N9In7 nXRvna Ny ("7 34 ->2 nopn ninn 7¢ *21vsnn ninn 7y 2017 nawa
.(2016 miw nniv7 0.2% -3 7w n1') 9.6% ->2 Nndnon 2017 mwa

NI'NIND .TPNYR 0720 N91pN7 AXivwNa ,N"Y (' 5 ->2 nopn ninn 7¢ *21yonn ninn 1 2017 naw 9w 'w'ann ivana

(2016 mw 2w 'van van 7 0.7% -3 7w 1) 7.3% ->2 nndnon mwn 7w 'wann [1yana nf7iyesnn
1qQpPwn mwn 7w 'wann jivanal 2017 mawa ngpn NIy 9w f71yonn Nima 'wn

n'¥NNY7 TV NN 'Nna ntyn nyann , Trés Coragdes 7w mwn 7w 'vann [1yanal 2017 mwa *2ivsnn nima a7y e
NIND 7NN N9ZN NN NI7Ya ATM DI IN0I 7R N9P 7¢ NNdNIN NMMd2 721man L pn nR? a1 2017 mv
26.6% ->12 mwn 7w 'wann pyanan 2017 mwa n'7y X711 tRa Trés Coragdes 7w (ninnk NIRYIN '19Y7) *71yonin
.(n¥npn niniT? o'onixnn Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.niNIT Ix1) 2.9% -2
NNDNI NTI'™M IR YA ,Mmun 7w 'wan 1yanan 2017 niwa ndn'R NATAI T2 DT 7Y 71Y9Nn NN 2T e

.D'01I7N NIYALNN 7 pPYn YW YXInNN NYY DIRTANNNA Y11 WX ['9'700 WY 7w ' nyswinni nnina

17



,NI'MINON NN 217N ARYIND TPRYWKR 07220 noIpn? nriwna 17y n'ona 2017 miwa o*7iyonn NiFNINNENINND @

NXIYNI N'0IN2 0'71Y9NN NIFNINAL NN 1T 'Y (1212 .2016 mw nniy? 22nn Niprnnn 2y 1dnn Niva 1oy
SPI'YN YNRAN D721 NIFIND N2 (I0'{7A ARXIND TPNWKR N7'27nn noipny

N2V 07N WD IY212 10NN NIMdA Aty ARXIND 1w nyan 2017 mwa YR Nop Itan W 2iyonn nima nty e

JS7I'YUN YNRN AT DEDMXMN 'nnnai dnn nimda

D'7TDIN D'9MAIN'A DNITN '97 nA97n Dinh nindn 3.2.1.4

ANMYA NIYYI (NI'MN2N-2 NN 7N011) DUTAINN DDIAIR'TAN DNITRA DY 21'7'a A9Ea DINN NNDN 9t [7aY

:(n"w 1''na) 2016 -1 2017 nanyTa 31 D12 MNonv n1IYa7I DYY

1y2n yan DaY'?

mnv % mnv %

yaona yaona
min % 2016 2017 *mm % 2016 2017 'DMAINA NITX
13.9% 13.9% 147 167 4.5% 4.5% 673 704 7N Do
miIx'nI nop
8.9% 1.4% 539 546 | 19.8% 20.7% 1,727 2,085 50%- (2) (1(Trés Coragdes) 7'T1a
0.6% (3.1%) 194 188 5.1% 6.9% 603 645 NYIRIPIRI N'ON
4.9% 8.0% 76 82| 10.5% 8.3% 281 304 ["719
(6.5%) (8.9%) 65 60 | (6.5%) | (12.3%) 253 222 )l
0.7% 4.6% 40 42 5.8% 3.3% 136 140 n1no
5.3% 0.4% 914 918 | 13.2% 13.2% | 3,000 3,396 miIx'221a o >"no
6.5% 23%( 1,061 1,085 | 11.6% 11.6%| 3,673 4,100 n97a nInn >"no

*

ITAN NN nnmy 7y I7|'NJ'7 OoNn'a NNIYN NII'‘tna |'9"7nn MY WD NYOWN DX 710N MM yaond nnnxa 'y

Nop 0IXVY 7w NN Nk D'opwn nraman) (50%) S&o Miguel nxiap wi nxiapn 7w (50%) noniwn no*7wa nnan - (7'1a) Trés Coracdes (1)
.((50%)

.N9j oIxwW n1ani Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A. |2 nirm1an 2 nindn 7N k7 Trés Coracdes nnodn (2)

nman) (50%) Sado Miguel nxiap 2wi nxnpn 7w (50%) nonivwn nv'ywa n1an - 3C - ('1a) Trés Coracodes 3.2.1.4.1

((50%) nop oIxVY 7V NE'N NX D'OPYN

nRIwN 25.7% -37 yan 2017 nmiwa pinoni 190 nopn ninna Trés CoragBes n1an 7w yxmnn '905n 7iwn NM
NI .(j071 .*o."x M1 ' 7y Trés Coragdes nindnn 100% qpwnin '90d 7w NN1) TpNWR n'72apnn noina 24.2% -39

JITNAN YN NO'W 0'02 72y N'7910N NI7'Yol nXIApn 7v np'n ,'Riawnn

mipn yavna Trés Coragdes ninon inny mwn 7w 'wanin jivanal 2017 nawa 7'71a 101901 2700 Nawnn gx
Trés Corag¢fes Alimentos S.A. |2 nirm12n 2 NN 7M01 197 ,nnxnina ,8.6% -31 19.9% -3) 8.9% -d1 19.8% ->a

.(N9 oIx VY NN

NN NN LT NIZ'YO NN NMIMD AY201 07NN DIRYNN ARXIND [INVAI 7PN N9PN NINDNA DY ANMXD 7Y
770N2 IYYIY 1'NN NIR7YN D1L,NN0IN X'NY DN¥INN N3N ,NNDNA NNIiNd NN'ax Nopwn mijpn yaona Trés Coragbes
n7apnn noipn? nxiwna , Trés Coragdes 7w N nopn NIyl 71iman 17 2017 mw 7w nnwxan n'xnnal 2016 mw
NIV 7¥ NIYN N'YNNN 17002 0N'NN DT AYNINN QRI1ENYPZNA NINANN 7'T122 7NN N9 NN N2V NNT OV . TPNWKR

.NoNn N antR TN 2017

7mm X RN 78NN 7w yximnn Ny niptnnnn naio? nyswin 2017 mwa n"wa Trés Coragdes 7w nnonin nnmy
NNDNN NNMY 'Y [1IY272 CTPRYR N7apnn n9Ipn? axivna 'y irfrm 13 ->2 ndnon IT NIRTRNN UKD 77wn
NXIYWNA N"Y [1I'7'1 35 -22 NNONON IT NIYZNN TWURD 77N 7In 7R 'R7'T1an 78N Y yximnn Ny niv7nnn nya? nysvwin

TPNWR N'72nn noipny
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,ANRNNY MW 7w 'van Ivanal 2017 mwa 15.9% -1 22.7% -2 n'7v 'aipn yavna Trés Coracgdes 7w m7ian ninn
0.6% ->2 nn'72v Trés Coragdes 7w nm7an nirninn 2017 mwa .nnxnna 'X7'ma A ir'rm 132 -d1 501 ->2 nononi
nm72n nrrnina Nt .26.1% -2 nnononi 1.7% ->2 nm7iin nrninn ANy Mwn 7w 'wnann 1yana .26.9% -2 nndnoni
1947) "21vonn niNn . Trés CoragBes 7w 7in'n nopn Nipa 21 T 7y 17702 TTIpw NN MNn NIK7YN 'Y Nopwn
[IV212 .00 NIRYIN T2V 1702 TR M0 NN nvy qp'wl 26.6% -1 2017 niwa n'7y 'X7'112 78N (NNNR NIRXIN
MIND 717N NRXIND 'MY7Ia0 NN 272 1jwa q'wi 2.9% ->1 'R'7'712 XM (NNNK NIRXIN 197) *721y9Nn NN N7y 'wiann
Trés Coracdes NINIT IX1) N¥9NI NN NIRXINIE WY 7' N9FN "I'NN DY T Y ITTIRY 27Dn 'nn Nyl

.(nx1apn niniT? o'o1ixnn Alimentos S.A.

nndNon Mwn 7w 'wann 1vanar 2017 mwa Trés Coracgdes 7w *ivonn ninn 7y TRES anmn 9w n%7700 nyswinn
7¥ 70907 NRIWNL L (NNRNNA 'R7'72 7R 1M 2.8 -1 6.8 -2) ,nnxnina ,n"w 1" 2.9 -21 7.6 -D 7w 719N Toona
D2ININ) TPNWX NI7apnn NIvipna (NMNXNNA ,'R7'12a 'R ' 3.6 -1 13.8 -2) nnxnna ,n"w 't 4.2 -51 15.2 -5

.((50%) nop oIXxLW 27U NP'7N NX D'9PWUN

nani 3C nhan Y Qnivn 0T 120 5900 . Mignn gIva giry'? nop Ni7I0op ixt? 7yen 7'11a 7iyo'7 7nin 2017 oxa

XM npvN2 X7 2vonn 7nn awn Ivann 17nna npho'Rn Caffitaly

NI'XIPINL o 3.2.1.4.2

7w N9IPN INKT? 77Wn 7 p1RPINRRD YT 7m prnnn® 7ann nin 2017 maw 17nna1 2016 niw 7w painnkn D'wTina

.NANKNN NN TR DIFNNNNN N2'20N NXT NN ,2014 miw qion nin'e

NRIIYNL ,ANRNND ,Mwn 7w 'wann pivananl 2017 mwa 0.6% -31 5.1% -2 1nnx mipn yaona Itk NNann ninodn
[IV212 ,NINT OV TN' .NNDNR2 DTN Ay 7'a 197'W 1'0NA MIZRn Yyaona NNann NN . TpNWX NI7'apgnn NIsiny
2017 N1y \70n2 .0"MANK NNNN 'KINN ARXIND 1'0INA DN DT NIRIPIREN'ONA NMNIND AT 07N Mwn 7w 'vnaniin
7m 7R NII'RAPIND NN WY NN ARXIND D720 "IN NN N7V 7Y NI0dY7 O NIRIPIRA 'NA NIK7YN IVYANn

SNPTINRN 71T

,AMNXNN] ,MYN 7Y W2 1V21a N"Y ' 6 -2 1M n"w 1" 42 ->1 2017 mawa inny N"w2a AITXa NNann hinn
710 7R NRAPIRD 02NN W D7 0NN 72NN 7Y DMAID DN 'WIDNA IVOWINT, TRNWN NI7APNN NISIPNYT IXIYNL

LMD 2Tl NY'RAPIXD MIN Yyaovnd NAN'Donn 'Nn n"72y oy TN! '7,7wn

['719 3.2.1.4.3
nivipn? nxnwn ,4.9% -1 10.5% ->2 mwn 7w 'y ivanar 2017 mwa inny mign yaovna |*7191 nnann ninon
2017 nmiw 170N 1Y¥IAY NN NN DYV NMIMD Nt7Y L, NNDNN 7' 1I9'YN Yan NindNd 2Iman CTRNWR Ni7agnn

TPNWUR 27N 191N RIWNA 7N 19PN NN DY 2V 1IN0 UK

NIDIPNT NRIYNL ,ANKNNA ,MwN 7w W 1vanal 2017 mwa n"w (1" 6 -d1 23 ->2 Innx n"wa '7191 n1ann ninodn
AWK ,2017 mw 170N 1YXIAY 0NN NN NtYni 1NN MIMmD 21ITan Yy NN atyn NN CTRNYR Ni7agnn
.N"Y7 DN 'wIdNN NYann NNHDN2 DRNYNR DX ANO0D I Yyauna NNDNn Y avun it nop tnn Nty 2y X
TPNWNR N'7'2pnn N9IPNYT XRIYNL 7w 710 27X 17190 '017Th 79 IMIpThNN w2 21N 1YSwin N1ann NN 'Yiaan ivan

NN N'MIMd AT 7V N0 DMY'NNRN N7V NYOwn qQoial

nnn 3.2.1.44
NRIYN ,NnRNN] ,6.5% -21 6.5% ->1 mwn 7w 'vann ivanarl 2017 mwa 1m* 'aign yavni n'nina nnann nindn

0NN NIFNDA AT NNNAYW NINNNN NN2aNNN AP'V2 NV MM yaond nindna AT L TrnuR ]"II'?'].PYJH J"IIDI|7]']'7

JNOWN M N7aaN 27V NIATINN NI'INDA DX 1100 D"RAIYNDR ,"MINN 10NN PIN '"N'Y 22V 1D 1IND

NIDIPNYT IXIYNL ,NARNN] MWD 7w w1 1va1an 2017 mwa n"w ' 5 -31 31 -52 1T n"wa n'anna nnann ninodn

Mpwn m R annn IRGD Y Ny Np'nw 7wl 07w DnOn 'wIonn 1IOSYIN,TRNWR Ni7pnn
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n10 3.2.1.4.5

nivipn? arnwn ,0.7% -31 5.8% ->1 nwn v 'vann iyanar 2017 niwa inny 'ign yavnl 2'a1oad anann ninodn
D'™2IT N9 "ANIN NOTYNT NN NNAN X 7V ,[IUYRIN [1Y212 7'V ,0NDN ' N'7un 1IoYIn NINDNN TRPNWR Napnn

JMNNNN D200 19NN AV DN NIy NIt

NIDIZNYT NRIYNL MWD 7¢ 'Y 1IvaNa n"Y ' 2 -5117p1 2017 mawa n"w i'7'n 4 -31 17y n"wa nta10a nnann ninodn
DUV ITTIR WK 77w 7Im 7R 2100 11T YW D7 DI 'w15nn nNann ninon wveswin 2017 niwa LTpnux niapnn
WOWIN MWD 7¢ 'vIn [IV20d L TPNYUR N'7'2gnn N9IpNT7 NXRIYNL ,'MIZRn yaona N'dnn Nl NNDNn 79 nfnimdn

.NNdNIN NIMINADA DT ITTIZ AWK 2100 117 TR W 0M1I'N DTN 'WI5NNATE DDA NN N'Y7uNn nNann ninobn

xwr 3.2.1.4.6

NIDIZNT ARIYNL MWD 7Y 'vIn 1va1a n"w ' 20 -5 17v1 2017 mawa n"w ' 31 -3 17y 78w nnann ninodn
Nyl Twx 2016 7w IUxRIN 1IV212 N'VPOX DY'NN NP'Nwn N 2 nvan 2017 nwa avhyn Tpnur Nizagnn

NIPTNNN 2y D720 AN DY NR'RYIEIMKD NNDNAa Aty nyan 2017 niwa *21ysnn NN n*7un .0 I'y 0'yxann

'Y NIRYINA 71T NNNY ,0MNKRD NIY20NRN1 72T 7m 7pwn

28w axiaga niwo 3.2.2

7on 11.7% ->2 VoIV '9 7y np'TNn 2017 MIWY 1211 PRIYI [ITAN PIYA 27722 N™MIYN NN2ANN N1 OIKNUY DX
7w nvy (TR n7apnn noipna 11.6% -27 nXIlwnd) '900 W NN NI'TN 'RAVAPD PIYA NIRPYANT [ITAN 7Y
NINDN .01IY D'AINNA NNANN N7VID 121 NXIAFN 7w NN IV KID 78U 21V TPRWR n72pnn noipn? axiwna 0.1%
vy TIva 5.6% -2 1772 D902 D'NAINA ,NKINI ARYNI DN NID'RIENIXNDA NIA'VN DR NY700 781! 0IXNVY DINNA NNANN
nX nnann a7man 2017 mwa .0v90> 0'nma 1.7% -1 v nikgwnnl imn giv a7y 2017 nwa 00100 '

S701an X7 9IX2 7RY OINTVY NINDNA 71ITA7 INNNY D'WTN NXON 20NN N'MI0dN

78IW N9 NIT'WS ,ANKINI ARYNI DN NID'RI NIRNA NIA'VN DX N7 7812 0IKNLVY NXIRE 79 Ni'yon 795 nndn
ni7'wo .2017 'xn2 NI7'won NN TV 1112 opn 1iml DX 17710 2017 mwa nnonn (4 mn) 7R 0 0IXLVY NI7'YoI

.00NIvo ' v 71IYN NN1 N7 TN N'7721 N1'R DM OIXLVY

,(IRNUR D" ' 4,129 -5% nkniwina n"w 't 4,347 -1 'Rw oIkN0W NI NI 795 ninbn monon 2017 mwa
n"y 21" 1,064 -31 78w 0IXNLVY NXIAR NI7'WO 795 ninon mdnon 2017 nw v 'wann 1yana .5.3% -1 i

.10.8% -> 7w 71 ,TpPnwx n"w ' 960 -2 nxnwna

,11.3% -21 5.8% ->1 nnd>non nmwn 7w 'van j1yanal 2017 niwa 1112 opn 1D NYOYN 7N012 N'ANIRD NNXD

TPNWUR NI72ARn NIDIPNY ARIYNA ,NNXNNA

20



XY OIXNVY DINN

NI7'YON "TAN '9 7Y 'Y 0IXTVY NI'YS DINN 7Y DI NINITA 7Y NOoIANN N'POYN NI7'YON NINXIN N'¥nN |'7nY

:(n"w 1''na) 2016 -1 2017 nanyTa 31 DA MNonv D1IYaI DYY

21 an D2y

nw % 2016 2017 nw % 2016 2017
0N ND'NI NI TAN
10.2% 466 514 5.7% 1,957 2,068 101 NN
1.3% 51 52 4.2% 213 222 “21vom NN
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,72Y2 WNINNY MINRND DINSIND L NYANYNI IN THPVIYA 1PN MINNHD ¥ NXIPY IURD NI NYIoN
.MINKN P00 NPHIYI MLV DY HDHY DI WITH 1D NN JUNIIY 1010 19N NTHNRD NINOIN
PIVN MOIWN NN GPYNN DN 197 NP2 MY DOTNYN DINIVNHN MDPITN PPN YT DY MYAPI MWD
.172NN YV ONIYRD 120 NPV RIDY MA»NNNY DPHXIDN DINDON NN GUIN YW I TIVD MavIvn
P NON NN GPYY N3N DY N9IPN Y53 DXMN NYISNN YW D901 TN

D7) 1), 7NN NN DIDDN NN TIIND 1N XD TUND IN,NPDIYI MIAVNA VINDIY YITHY MNAN XD TUND
.NPH5YI MAVLNA VDYDY NYIDP M0 YW NIPN VYNY ,NNDN MPNNNY

DI50N . MANNNN NN PHON NIANN ON HAPN NPWNY NUYND IRTN,ON P, DX NDY DI NI NNIAPN
.YI9NN DI DY NDIY IR NDYN I 1INY

IN DNN NNONN DIV 2N NPYD NVUINDNI TNYI NPION NIYIN NXIAPN TWRD NI 22N NPYD NYIN
2290 NPYNND MYINN MV MNOWN NN N9 NYIINN .1MIONN DY DX NYTIN NI0N NPV
NIPN DY MOWNIN MMM MONPI PR TWUR) 12NN MY NIOND MO

NPOYS DN MO NNAPN YT DY DIINNIN DAPNND MMNANT MAVNN TYNI NI D125 DXIND NYIN
SV ONONN TN PN TINN 29 DY NTTHI NWIONN .NPHIND TPNMNINNDI DTNYHD INIIND MYINI NN
.DNN DYP TYRND I NN MOYN DY ONIND TIM NHIND 20220 MITHN MOYN

NYI9N .NXAPN DY D3N DIPOYN ToNNI D1VAVN DXIDNN NRIIND 1IN NPLIVHD MYIN X2 MY
VYPRD ARNIND ,NYHNYHD MIANNND X NN TPVIYN MINND NNDMP NIAPY IWRD NIDM MYan P
NN MANNNN PIDPDY O1HI5IN DXARVNY YITN NXAPN D XD IWRN A0 NP IWND 72y WNINNY
NIY . NXIAPN NAIVY MMNON D¥IDNN 12 2NN DNMNN NON MYINN DY IV 19511 19INI NN TIIND
MYISNN ,J99 .DIPNINSIND NN XINY INKRD OINTY N IIN DOVAYH DY )2 DINANN DIMIVIN 2N

(TP NPN NP NYIWN) FNOVN 12 297 NNNIN PN

monn 314
098 n9'on 3.14.1

IN NDAPTIV NNNINN DY INNN MWD 19 DY NTTNI MNND NINN NOIDNN - MNND NN 3.14.1.1
YN NDIDNA NN NXIAPN NN NN NNINDHD NN, TN MDA ,DIAPNND NTNYN
LAY NNNNN NDAP ,NNPY DI NNNDN DY MOYIANND MNINT OPYMYNYNT DMINDYON
NNIY IR NINNY NMDYM NINDN NITNN MIVAN NN D71 19IND TIVND TMIVAN NMP
NDIINN 121 NNINDN DY NIWNI MANYNI PN NDTIND ,JDONN 1IN NT>TH0 MIN NPOYN P
NNNN DY OINDNN TIVN 29D MNYI TR PITD IRIYNI MDD 127NN 1IN NTTI0 1NN
2NN HONIYRD NNPN 1A DY 112D MDIDND MINN NIN MNPOYNI MYNN N2 MOION

MDIONT NTTH, MY AN NN : D ,NNNX NPOYA 0257 T19)2 MM 1N 0N BMIPNA
L7992 2597 95 S INNN MWD DDA DY YY) NNNNN NRYPN TWRI ,TI92 2957 55200 NPUM

INTNDNL ,OMMOYNI DX YPYIN NN MXPOYN NDIDN - DINIVYNI O Y PYWIN NN 3.14.1.2
75 ,NPOYN Y2559 P2 NYXN ,NTINND NMPN 29 HY DY) DXMPYI MNND NPION NP
HRTY DX20NN OOMPYN MNNONND NOIDNM ,NPOYN TYINI NI DXIPVINND NOIDNNY
NNON2 MIN NON MIRPOYN MYNN NI MODID/MNRNN INND NMHPN 79 DY NI
1920 MOIDN/MRIN

N9P MNIN NYOYN 3.14.2
IND NAPN TNNRD MIAMNNI,TIDIWAN NIINI NNNDN TWUN NP NN NIDUNHN MDION
oXmYYNn Moian 3.14.3

A5W YTIIN .MPTN TYINT ,NPOYN NNROWN ADWH YON 19INA TOIM NNID MAPI IPINNY DIMPWN MDION
VXY MIVN 1NN NMYYH DNPNN AWIND NNHWNN
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(TUNN) NINNIYNN NPTIN 2999y - 3 NINa
(Tunn) moirn  3.14
mMpPYY MmN 3.14.4

D02 Yy, MNN2 MPON NN DYI1IN DININN NNNNN DY T2V DIV DY NOIDNNHD MONHD NMMPOS MMM
XIAPN YT DY DIITYIY MTIN SYNIN IN STIY NI PN

o»nowNRN 0YPIvn  3.15

NXIAPNYY AP ONY A0 PNV DMP TYURD PIN MY INIYRIY D101 DHMN NI NOWNN SPIvN
.DNY2PA DXIIHN DININA TIVYN

NHPA NV IDIND TOI NNID DXOPT ,NXIAPN IRYI JNI MINXIN DY NNSD DYYAPNNND NOWNNI IPIvN
TNXY DYYAPNNN NOWNN SPIVH .TOIN NNID MIRINT MIOPT 1N MNP JNINI ,MON»NNN NINININ
NAPN TIND PNVIY IPNINA TOSM NN NYTD DITPIN O1VLINMYIN DIDNN NIVPA DNIXIN ,0Y0I) NYId
D59 3.4.1 9IN22 MIND,DIIN DY DOV DN

,(Forgivable Loans) N> nn2 nn»mn maNons 0399100 NN IPNN0 YOP»II9 PIIIWRIN WTHNN DIPIVN
DN NON ,DOPIVNN NP DY PIND TNV 295 MIAONNND 0101 WIAPNNY WTN PN .TAS 20 -5 oxnna
NP TN PINN MNYY NNHNN P2 WIANN .TNY XY YAPNNY DIDDN 1 20 I9INI ONTH DY ININI D
L, DD DN ,DMPYM NMHPN Y52 WINH N2 MAPNNNN DI .MM TPNHD NMINKIN NIVPND 191 PIVHN

STO9 NN NYTY DXOP)

P9 MNDHN MOIdN 3.16

MMIRNON DY N MXNN IYPYINY DDOD PI2 NP2 MDIDN 1P MO NI MIRNIN MDION
NN TIT NN MNY DNHNNN DMDINY DY) DY PINN MY OMPYN (TITT DD1D) 10 NI IDAPTIY
172 DTN VYN ,TOIM NN DIIDNNT DI DX PYINN OITON/OMNNIN WY YWIAIN 1V OINNT,TOIM
VYN, NPDOPAND NN NVYW MYNNNKI ,INAN OY MIDNN NP MIKRXIN MOIIN .(DPVTIMP) MNND
TN PIIY ONIYUNT PN P M MDION .(3.4.1 NI D) NIXI) MIAP ¥IDID INNY IRIUN NMDY

N MDISND MM NNNNN DY ININN TIVN 290 MNYNN

MPOPON 0NN I99TN NINDNI MY MDIYY 11259 1YAPNNY 1259 0310 95910 Yy MMTa
VAP YII MWD OF 1N HNKIND ,IIINNI NIDIYI D99WI D0 MNNVY INIYUN MNYY LYNY ,NIVIY
APNNY DT 11290 MDIPDI DN NMIVY DY13792%7 .NYPYN MYIP0N DN 939N NH0Na

SNYPYH MY DISM

09NN YY OYON HRNHN  3.17

DN NN TDI MY D3P DXNT) DON) DAVIY DODN .DXNTH DXAVIV DXDN DIIFD NDIINN Yy DION
MPY DINNN DVII9 DIV DTN INN HDID MNMTIN PN MY DX9P3I IN,DIPOY NPIN Y1) 0NN
NN 9919 NNAYIN PN NAPII NDIFNN DY DIONN NN DR DIPNA . INNRD 219N NN IN P2

DX9VIV DON

VNN MNPV A7 2WINHD XINWI ,MVYY DN NDNN NDIDNN DY BINWNY MANN DHN DI 11N GOIVN DN
DN MOYNA DMV D) D213 XIN,PADIN 2NN DY NYITH TIRND NYYND PPN INX PPNV PINN %30 DYYNN
.DYTITT NPIYN 1)1 DX0N MADIM MNTIP DIYD DON»NNN

D90V D010 NMMIAN1NNM 203 VP

YD) NIVPY NAIND MM VAV MDT NHMPY NN DXAVIV OXDN NMIANNNM YD) NNPH NP
YOOIV IN V) DID LY DXAVIV DD NMAMNNNI YD) PO NIND NP 1971 ,0°90IY DION MNIPNNMN
20712 OMIVYN DXAVIVN OX0NDN MMIN1NNM

DNT) OXoN

MPT TNSD NMPNNM DI0I) HY DDA TIVN 122 DMINT DIVIONY DNMNNA NPN DXNTI DI0NI NIINN
179NN NY2 ©XANN OMINTN DOWIANN Y1) OXNTI DIDN NN NPN NNIAPN .DX0 1IIND DIIY 2D *9DD
NOVYIV NXIIAPM DTN, MAMYN MXPDY NN MIINA NYPYNN DOYINT DIWIIN 12T,PVININT NMIYRID
9D DYTTH) DXNTIN DXDNN .PYY INIIN TNYA 129N ONY NAY N PRY NN 1) WINN TN TNa
IPPMVY IR IPPNIY DPINN DY DDINNA ,IWNMIND 12 TYINI DMINTN DIWIINN DY DIND DINAND DNPN MNYY
28D 28NN DY NYTN TIRND NYYND
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(TUNN) HINNIYNN NMPTIN 97 - 3 NINa
(Tunn) NDIINN YY DYON NNNHN  3.17

DYVWIANN NN YXIY 7P NN NTNOY NN NDIIN NN TNYIY NI TUND D902 191 NNTI DN U
0N 0NN DN DIYIINN NN TY DOI21 ONTI DIDN YD) ,NIAMN NDIDND 29X ITYNI IN DMIN
0NN MIAVN 1D NAY NI NTN ADIN ANNN DY MPT TN D51 WINN DPTII ONTIN DIONN 0N

.DYHN9YM 0N ,MVNNHIN MON1PNNN

TAYIY NOXY T3 3987 MNYM N0 DINM MPT TYIN Y31 WTNNH DXIWIN 119N KIYW DXNTI DOON YD)
LDMIN 99 11193 7P DTNV, NN NDIIN 7PN

O>NT) OXON INMIAN1NHNN 20D NP

YD) MIPPY NOND NN’ NPVAYH MDY NHMPY NN DNTI DXON MIANNNM YD) NNPHN NNIAPN
IUN ,MINY MIIND N DI 192N NNIND DN MY NNIND DXONPH OM DAV DXON NMNIAPNNM
1PINT-12 N VI DYDY DDV DD NMMNNM YD NN PIOY NINDNN

T NPITN 12 DH NODIN

N2 13 DN NOOIIN .ANIAPN MIAN YT DY DITHITXT NPIYN DY NIPNA ON NIDIN INNND WY NNIIAPN
D) NADIN NN TITT NAPIVND DINY XOW NN NXIAPN MIAN NPPTN TYNRD ,09057 MMTA N1DD)
0517570 DXNNID DHTDT PONY NPININ NIAN NN DN DMIPHNI .PYD IRDN TNYA ,NYapHnn N1and
NPON P2 ,N2 2NNND NIANN MYYY DNN NIDIN PH2 OND NTINY NIANN NINY L7920 ON NIDINA
TP

NI91 12 TN TOON NNIY DDPI ,NIANND O HY DITITIXT NPITNN DIYNN ,D¥90N NDIIN DY DION
.ONMNNPN THTTN DVYNY MIA»NNIN

0*PavNn MmN 3.18

D901 MNIT2 MY DMHNDN DT TINYD NXIAPN NIINN XD J1P2ID TUN DXPADN MDIAPNNT MMM
NNIND MNINA NXAPN DN MDA NPONT MYIIN NI OY

009 MmN 3.19
ANNNNN DY TOOM NNIZ MIAPTI DIV MNNIN
MOMYN MNPOY 17 Yy MNHNA Mannwn  3.20

DM50NYY MNODNY DRNNA NIIAY DI0A DY MNYI MINKI MNP MNAND NIRKINT MANNYNNI MOIIN
MIRNNN MNRNND 29YDI MHHIN MIINN DY DMV

Y Ny 3.21

Sy AVINK 12N YDX02N NNIN .NDY MNIN NPINN NN 220 712INY K511 YDX02 NN NN NN NXIAPH
NPINN SV HIPIVNN YNNI 99002 N92NN DY MDD NN YI¥A0 DNPHN TOINN IN NNIN NPIYN T
TINRNN T DY YAP) 717300 59YTIHN NI . ININD NN PH2 INNND INND IV TYNI NN PIY MININ
MM NPINN HY SOMIWNN YINNN NHPNNT NN DY MDD NMIND OYIYAS ONYHN,TOINN IN NN
,MYITIN NPONONIVION MNIN NPIND YD DY MYAWN XY AN NPIN PI DNNND INNRD ,NThNAY

DT IPIWINY NINY TPNNIN AN MDD

IWIIN DIV MMNIVYID DIVTN DNIPN  3.22

0029 0°9°Y91 ,(2014) IFRS 9 "853 2905 N7 ypn 3.22.1
(2014) IFRS 9 ./772701 /77977 : ©7202920 0> Popn [AS 39 -2 0N MNMPN MRNNN DX PO (2014) IFRS 9
DAY ONIYN YTDINT NIONY WTN YN ,DMDIN DYPYWIN YW DT NPOY MOTIYN MXNN H91D

MINNIYN XY MYTN MYITI MIRNN 121,0703990 21NN Y023 12 N (‘expected credit loss’ model)
T
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(TUNN) NINNIYNN NPTIN 2999y - 3 NINa
(TUNN) IWMIN D0V DIVTN DNPN  3.22
(qunn) 00120 B29°WaN ,(2014) IFRS 9 »IND32 2995 NI4T 1PN 3.22.1

MM NORND TN, INNYN 90N YW NN RIS 2018 AN 1 DPN HNN JPNN NN NHOND N¥IIAPN TINO2
NYOVN MNNY Y05, (1NN DY MIWKXID DIWHN TYIN) 2018 AN 1 DYDY PNNN HY DMINK DYDY DTN
INNO

MNYTN DY THIMNND DYV NPNY MY KD JPNN DIYMY ,NNIIYNY NN DIV MHOWN NN MmN NXIAPN
.D»90ON

0D MANMNNN YW DININ MNPV 9373 , 0220999 029 IFRS 9 - 9 pon 3.22.2

DNIN MPYWINRNIVNN 21907 1NN NN WX IFRS 9 -5 N n TASB -0 0919 2017 12109182 9 O
¥ OMINND PN PO MAMNNN DY NAYNN IX DININ NPY DN DIPNA .1PDIS MIANNNN DY SMIND N
MAPNNNN SV XNDNIN TIVN P2 YINN YN TPNPN NPDLPIN N2 DIWTNN DIMITHN MIINN NN NND

STOIM IN NNI TN IV Y NPNRN YNONN TN 1PAD DIWTNN DININN NIV THDINN

MMPY oy 031N 19390, IFRS 15 5mINY3%a 5905 MV Jn 3.22.3

DY DXINN NDIINA NIINY YWTN HTIN 1IN NMDIINA NN PAIYD OPI MN»PN NPMINN DX PINN 1PN
D5V NYINN D210 DTINN AT 79 DY IN NNNX AT NTIPIA : NDIINA NIIND MY YNV YAIP JPNN .NIMpPD
MYTN NN MYIT YIP 1PNN L) 1 .71H¥ID0 AR NDIINA NIINN NMY NN YIIPY 7N DY MNPOY NMNNID
NYaWNN N2 2018 TN 1 0PN HNN JPNN DX NINRD NP NINDI 0PI MNP VRN TN MIANIN
.92YN7N TYINY 1DMNDN DIV YN DININ NIY 97,2018 INIO 1 DPY DTV NI NHXRND TIN ,NI1208NN
MHaYUN NN 1IN ©»9051 MMMNYT DY IFRS 15 n5Nn Sv nyaxn myawinn ny»nad nns Nndpn NXIpn

.D»9D57 MNYTN JY IPMNN NYAYN NPNY NNAX XY 1PN DIW1Y NNIAPN NIIWNY JpNn DIW»

man ,IFRS 16 x93 5905 N1 PN 3.22.4

NN MOVIAN PN MXND . MNYPN NNV IR (TAS 17) 7171750 17 99050 70IND2 1PN AN PONN JPNN
YTN JPNN 80D ,0510IN PIYY ,ANT 9N .1D1905 WX THPIIWOND 177NN NPDY DXIDINND NRIPN NYITH
PIMNITA NN PH2 MPNNND) DI PINY IDINN DY PAY ,11PONN 992 INNIYNT 21905 THN DTN
LDV MNMPN ITNN TN MIANIN MYTN N2 MYOIT YIP JPNN )0 1D .0»9DON

NI NHNND TN ,NI0NNN NYOWYNN NWNA 2019 ININD 1 DY MYINNHNND NPV MNPNY DY PN
2019 N2 1 D»Y DATIVN

779N 17X2 MAPNNN2 NNYRID DIWMON TYIN DN 779D 12¥HNN NININ DR DYMD 71N NMNONN NXIIAPN
TYIIY 991N DY ONIDINN NPIN NIV 19Y DINNN OO NYN NINN MMDYN NN DV dNONN TIvN 29D
MDY TN ,NINN NINN TN DYPN 1PN JPNN IPINRD D90 1D7Y 29D WINOYW MDY 01 Dapn1y ,m
.MAYNNNY NNT P NI

DT DWMY TN NXOY DD MMTN DY )Pnn MaYYn NX MM21 NNIPN

MRPOYL IN MV MIIN TIIN 10 IINDT s MOMUD NP OV 555 m9ana smvp v TAS 28 - 9 ppon 3.22.5
mamvn

IN 121997 172N MWD HY IV NYPYNNN PON INNN,MNNI,IYN TIIX I NMOT Y XD PN NPPNN
NN ow»n PN PR TFRS 9 »minD»a »905 Mt jpn My a7t NN 0P oW»n My namvnn Npoya
Y IFRS 9 n5nmna yn nnn 7Nyt Moty 1o ,mM0t YN SY 79500 a2 TAS 28 Dy mnninn
NN M2 NNAPN 22019 N2 1 DY MPNHNNN NPIMY MNPNY Y1915 owy Nipdnn IAS 28 nonna

DT DIWMY NMD NOY DD MNYTN DY PPN MHOoVn
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(TUNN) NINNIYNN NPTIN 2999y - 3 NINa
(TUNN) IWMIN D0V DIVTN DNPN  3.22
PR XY 919 M1y TFRIC 23 9189302 2905 M1 YW mavag 3.22.6

DN MTAY Y0 MINTN X NOMP IWND TAS 12 Sv 01001 119NN MYOIT NN DWMD T8 NN MIVION
MY ,0N TNXY DAY DYTON , 0N YO¥01,0N TNNY (TOHN) NIMN NDIIN NYIP NN ,NNYIY ONNNI
NN 2PN Onn MYV (probable) Nax DXN TIYND ML DY, MNTN N DY MIPN DN N D8N NOW DN
MOOYNA ON MY MY NVPIY DHRN NTHY NN DAPN DHN MYV MNANY 53 .NT DY NOPNY ONN NTIY
0NN NTHY NN DAPN DNN MIYIY NOY XY TWURD |, TPRD 0N NTHY NMIND DRNNA D00 MMTI YY 0NN
NP2 920N DIODN : MININ MOLOWNND NNNI YIDYW NMYNHNI 01902 MNTNN ON NN v My Yy ,Nvpny
ONN DNMIA IWND D 1PN MIWIaN.(the expected value) »axn 01500 NHNMIN N (most likely outcome)
NN JNIN DN MUY NIND ¥, MYOIN T DY NOPNY DNN NTHY NN DAPN DHN MYIY NN XD IN NN
¥ MIYISD DXNNA ,)D 10D I NN POMDIN YN DY NYTIN NIV 19 TOD MDY NY YWY DIMOON
TNSN IR NTTHN MIYID G0N T NN ANWD DMWY IUNX YTN YN IN MDA DMWY 2wNNny
MANPNY DVPN NNIVIIN .NPRTN XD DN MTHY 220 INNNY MNIM MYON DY NYTN DIPPY 1272 DM 1NNa
DIV NIY MNON NV NI NIVIN .OTPI YIDND MIVAN DY ,2019 AN 1 OPA MDNNNT NPNIY
NPT NPNN DNN PDOPADING DIV» IN Y1900 DIV DY 72¥N NAOON NNIAD IV T ,72¥NN MNMIN
MNYTN DY NMIYISN NN DY MOOWNN NN NN NXIAPN .INWION NN INYRID NNY MY Nay INUYXIN

DT DM MIND NOYD D»IDON

NYNIND NYT INPIYI NV HINMNAYN NI - § N2

DOWPN X0 NPN MIID , DI DM I2YN 1D DY DIDDIAN) GOIV 1IN DMIPDI MITOINY NOMINN MNPV
DY

,DY20 DNYN ,N9N MMND DY DPRNIVNTD DITOIND .TNYN 123D MNIN NN DTN NYSIN NIAPN
S5Y D902 TIVD PMNND NHRNNY DY2IND DMWY WX ,MMNINN DITNIND .I¥192 MINXINID DY NPNY DMWY
1 PNY DT, NINAN MWD TONNI NMPNNT DIDI)

D09 T N
PYNY OMYYY MIY0) IN DOYIPN DIDMP DN 29D 28NN DY MPT Ty 953 nyma napn ,TAS 36 -5 oxnna
MYUN NVIWI MINVNN ,MIMYN NINPOYI MYPYN MY HNYINN TWR DDV XY DIDI) DY DI NP HY
DY20N Y N2 DIIN YV D902 TIVN DXN TN NNIAPN ,TIYV NP DY DITYNN DIIIPD DIDMP IUNI IITNIN
oW Navnn-1a

O»N TN DY OPYNI ONYA DX0) IN,PVLINN NOIION DIMITHN NN DTN 9D NIY AP TINNI MY NNN
NTNA.TIY NTPY DXIDOD DIDMP DN TN NION I9IND IN,NAYNN 12 DIDDN KW NN NXIAPN NYNIN AT INYa
MM 2T MNINN TV NPPN TN NI DY NAVNN-12 DIDDY U NN NNIAPN NN, TNNN
DONINY WP NNIAPN NP JY 191 ,001T DXDIIN IN YDN9DN DIINN I2YN 1D JY MDD DMONT DNNMINN
MY IDIYN DY DITHINI NYONDN NXIIAPN DN HY DOVIDdYN DONN THIX NN ToNN 1Y D»I3557
DY TIY NP DNYPN INTY 12201 DN MININ I272 15.3 91N D) IRI .DYDIIN YW NIVNN 92 DIOD NYIPa
UMM

PV DPYNIN INYA DIV YW NN
5y DDIANNA YVNY MMIAPNNNN WINY DX02)7 MPININ MI2N DY NYWIDIN MDY NN MXPNY NWIT N¥IIPN
NY2APA N2 IO NN DY OMON YN INY YN DY NPT NIYPNND,MOITI MYII2.0N5Y NN IV YTIN
TSN DPMYNYHN MMM DITHIND VDY MIND NYN MY MWD .NON MMIAPNNM DD DY NN NN
.DMMM) INDN MNND ,NINMPY MIVYP DY, MNINND DIV IIDNY DOMNNN DIOYMN YNYIN DION .NYINN
NN 7N P2 ,0°9915 NOND DOYNIN dNY DIDI) HY DOWIDIYN DONN TN NOIWNL WHIWY DMUMD DTN
DY02) NOIYN WHIYY DOV DTHIN .PIVI MM MMNNINM AN YINIWN NP ,MMPON YR NOPN
(replacement cost) TPM5N MY MMPY STINKD DAY DNINMITI MNP P2 ,D°9910 DIDNIDN OOYNMIN dNHa
MY MPIAD INNDIY MM JY DXDDINND DOVIDY OON THIND NN ONYD WP NOMINN MITOIN .ONMND
0>05) 1272 15.2 TIN2 0) NN .NIMNY NPNY NPIVY DT MIXNIND TIN NRXINI MINTY ONX )12 IV TR ,NDMNN

TN HONDA OMN TN DY OOYMN NI
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(TWnN) NYNINA NPT SNPIYI V9P IIRMNAYN NI - 4 9N

NN NMIAPNNND
172NN TN NITOIYY NMYNN NPVAYN MYIN I MNYIN MYIINN MDD NYIAPY N1NIAD YN D»P N1aN3
, NN DYLH MYANT DDAV DMVAYNN JPXYPN NYT INN MIIAPNN YA PN .NOY MPINN MIaM
509) 17198 NN IN (50% HYN) MISN NIANN DN DIMNNY,MPIANN DY NNINNN MDD NN NYTN NN 0¥YN0N
NYIAND N5 1N TN ,NIND 1902 NYISN NNWI XY ,DapNND MMON NPX NYIANND IWRD .DapnnY (MN N
D190 NN NI2NN NN ,9APNNY MNON NYANN YN .TPMINND NY>IANNY NN 010N NMINYTY 24 1IN NNDNA
NI ,NIPNN DY NPXIDN MIYDIN 1IN 1XYW PN ,DMVIVNN 7PIYY NN YY DDINNI ,NOUNN
1991 ,09WNN PN O T2T HY 1D WIDY D1VAVYNN DIDNN T NOIWNY DRNNA DMIVIN MNITA NYIMN
NPMPN,NIINN DY DPNIYN DMODIN MNITN NN IDHN NNDNI .NYN DI TOIND MNY NP NMVY OMMNNIN
T TV IMONN MYIAND WP D) D1 NIPA PPDNN PNVPIPTN DY DMIDIN MNYTN NPNIY DTN
OSYY MWD ,MYANN MO0 MIIY ,NIINN THD IMITOYY IMINN MIOIAND S0I9 7192 NN ,N12NN

.D”9DON MNITA 112 NYINNN MDIDDY ) NNDNN MDD JID NN NI NN NIANN DY DOVIYNN

DOPNDHN MNINY NYIN

1 YRR .MPYN NI DY Ty NP YN ORD Ny ap owh TAS 39 1PN wapiv nnnNn IR NNY»N N8P
9% MM NN ,DM9070 1N P2, NIVNIA NXAPN NN NYTN IPPY NOYINL SMYNYN NYT NPdPY NOYIN NN
YPOY DV INPN MIVY NN’ NPDINS NN ,MIN NPYII HY NNNIND ,OXTIAN MIN DY PNVON,MMPYN NI
INIPY P2 ORIYN MDP0Y NWN 9272 28.1 7INDY 9 7IND D) NN IV MDY NMPON

DXNT) DYON Y0
DXNNI PYY IRN TNYI PIPY NN ONN NN NIINN NYTIN - DN 19I8Y OYTOHN PH2 INTI DN D)2 1IN
Y TIYAND NOYWNN .INTI DN 0332 (N0 XY IN) NN DRNNAY OXTOIN DXID MM 1) DTNOYW DN DXANN
,INTY DN D232 17751 D)2 DXTON DY G0N YNY .TOIM NNID NNTI DN D) DY DIV INX NI NP N YTOIN

.NDXONN DY DXON 1273,35 9INI NN

NPNTN NY D0 NYTHY

YMYNYN NYT DIPOY DOYND NPT NONIN NYITI ,OXNNDY,VINY MMINN DY 27 19002 DN ¥I7XD M) NXIIAPN
NYAP YN, 0N NMITHY MINPDY NIAPY .DMNINDIIM DMPHRN DHNIPINY DRNNZ DN MTINYY MYISN Ny’ apa
PYY HIND DMOXN DM 17)2 NMYINNA NN NP D20 DIPOYN ToNNI MINTI NN 12 N0 DHN MIAN
TPMDN UNN MIAN DX DD DN OMYYNI DINN NONIY MIVAND WXL POV DY DDINN 00 MNP’ Mapya
NIV YAPN NIV NNPNA NDIDN DY DIONY MWIONN DY DIVYIDNN WYY 071902 NNHYNY NN MIAND INY 7PN
.NDIONN YY DYDN 9272 35.7 9IN2 NI NPNTN XD 0N MTHY 22)0 Q0N Y10 0NN MNWI YT DY MNDN

PIN MY NP - 5 N

40N YN .0MINDN NMDANNM DD DY NN MNYN DX MIAPD NXIAPN NYITI ,09050 MNYITH MDD TNNY
: DYNIN DN HIII PIN MY NYXIPA VDWW MNINN MTIN

;11000 OYPINMN DXDI 1271 16.37N1 @

S TN P MINK MIAMNNT MNNDN 1272 20.2 N1 @

;NN DDA DWYYN OITON I2T2 23N @

D0 OYPYINIITI28INT @

MINONY MTTI MY DI PIYNND DAY DINMI NXIAPN NYHNYN ,MIAMNNN N DI DY NN MWD Ny apa
S YIPYTI ,NOIVN WIVY DN DY DDINNA PIND ONYN XN MNT YDV Mphnn

DY NMNNN IN DX09I0 DIV PIVA (DMNININND KY) DOVINND D PNN 11N

950 1 71092 D90 DYNRY PPV IN PIVIN,PIVNN DA NN :2 07 @

.DY9%) PIVHONN DY DODDIAN DPNY DNNI: 3NN e
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3 Man - 6 9INa

MYPOY INA Man YaTa v 6.1

MINDD N1 (%) NVIYWM PNN YY1 NYY
Y »PIYN DIPINAM HansTa 3l
193NN MY 2015 2016 2017
SN 80 80 80 17792 NN DINIVY
SN 51 51 51 D7Y2 DINITOY OITIN-T> NINON
INW 50 50 50 (1) N7ya b3 PN OININ YWY NNV MIADNNH
SN 88 100 100 N7¥2 DM DINILY
27N 100 100 100 S.E. USA Inc.
TIOM 74.9 74.9 100 (2) Strauss Coffee B.V.
P9 100 100 100 (3) Strauss Café Poland Sp.z.0.0
MY 100 100 100 (3) Strauss Commodities AG
I 100 100 100 (3) Strauss Romania SR L
NPNRIPIN 100 100 100 (3) Strauss Ukraine LLC
oM 100 100 100 (3) Elite CIS B.V.
270 100 100 100 (3) Strauss Adriatic D.o.o.
RN 100 100 100 (3) Strauss Russia LLC
NN - - 100 (4) (3) Norddeustsche Kaffeewerke GmbH

.(6.2.2 7982 DY NNI) P72 MINIL DNWOYOIT DY NP (1)

Strauss Coffee B.V.-2 05w npn 1»RY NMIOT WY I3 6.4 NI IR (2)
.Strauss Coffee B.V 1 oy npynm (3)

.DPOY PPN IITA6.5 NMNANNY - (4)

N2 NN NVILY NYIAPI MNIM NYT NPIYW 93TA ¥y PN 6.2
NI DINIVYA NYPYN 6.2.1

.NPINN PN DXINNN 20% -2 NPPTNN NIT NN .NINI2 DINIVY YW NN NN 80% -1 NPPINN NI1ANN
VTN NNYT T DY INNY DMNVPPTN DI ON NIYXIAN XY IWN MDY DY NOW DY NPINN YY1 050N2
Sya DY IN POINTVY NP YT HY MOOWIN TMHNK NMI2N PAD NMINIA DINIVY P2 MXPOY MIDON )0
VYN ,NYIIN DIDN NXINN I GPINT PV IR PIV ONIN MY DX NIN ,7DINRIVY NPT POY
NPV DT NPIZN ;9N NPOYN MY PIY ININ MY P2 WIONN DY N¥9 HaPY MO NNYT I NP
NYNN ; (09012 Y12PD NN DINIVYD MWITTN MM NPNY INNXD) YNIVN Y1 NN 12 25% -1 TN
NMYYI NOY ,MNI2 DINTOY > DY NN MIIN NNPN ; TINT DX D5THN ,NINN PN NPV IN NDNY
; TNT Y NINNN 1N 1N NN DY ONI,A9N MININD DIRY DXININT MPOIWN,PIPYI IN PIVINI RN
INNN NNND INIINOY 29NN MININ DIND XY DINN NMYPYN IN NN DINIVY POYL YMNND NPY
DINILY T DY NN ; MINID DINIVY NINKHD DIDNA IPIN NYWN DY NDY 29N 810 INY OINNA
YT DY IN T DY NVOWI NN D5 IN MPINN DINTOY T HY 1INPY DIXIN DY MDY NN MIIN IN NN
DMINND DY NPMVN MO TO DX L(DINIVY NTYN H7Y2 1PNN NN MASNN VYD) NI Y3
M2V ,N72NN NOIWNY .NMINIA DINTVY DY TNIRNDN YTV NTNNNND 0IDNA 2IPIN NYWUN DY I1DY DI NNNN
OMNN J1991,27)9N OIPOYN TONNN DHINN TYR DN PN IN MIXPOY DY WAUND NN NN VN NIPN DN
VN MYOIN NN .MNIIL DINIVYA NIANN DY NNVIDY TUNN NN YNND 1N PRY VIV NPIDT DY NN
MNYT2 NTMINRD N7 11T, DIRTOY NP T DY NVOHYI MIND DIRIVYY ,MPDNY NXIAPN NN DY

.N82PN Y D»OUON
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(TuNnn) M2 MHaN - 6 INa
(TYnN) N2 792N NVIYY NP MNINY NYT IPPY 9272 YN 6.2
NIV NYPYN 6.2.2

NNIAV> 1P JPNVPPTI NYIIN NN NOY NNIAV> HYW NPINN NN 50% -2 NPYINN NN DINIVY
: NP NNIPN HY TIT2 NWIT NN DINIOVY NN NN DXINNN 50% -1 PPN

NN OOYIAD 5 TITI NIPIN MNITN DX MIPHN ,NNIV? DY Y9N PN MMM NN NN 50% (N)
;NP YT M MIN MMNN NN .0ODNIN VAT IN MIND MITN LYY ,N’YA NIINA

MPIN MADN 51177 NN 37NV NVPIT VAT IN NNND MR DX, NNN DD, NNPNRN NI NPIN 2 (2)
;1PN YA

WNOVPIPTN P O) PV NNV TNR NVPIT TVIT IN NN MITN NN MPHRND ,NNK NYIIN NN ()
DIP YPNY OY NIPNA NPINN OOV NDONI )PNVPITA GO DIP DY 1PN NPHDIN NPONN VN

YTY DY TNN NNV H7I)N 33 )1, NNV MOTIND 12)D MNO0NN NN YAIP NNAV> DY DO0NN ,99I5
MPH YNNY VY MDT MY NINIL DINIVY DYV DPNVPITY .NIDPN NXONN 13 DY NNV PNVPIT
NPNY TINND MIT MY NI1PN DYLI DXNVPPTY NN DINIVY >T> DY TINN PNVPPTN VY 57N
IN2 DIXIVY YT DY INNND NIV DY DODON YN ATPIND DIINNNN DMWY DY INY Y
DOPININ NIN 1T MIT DOY9NY DIRWI P XD DN TN 7139V M0 DY 10 MIT 1PN DYLN DXNVLPPTD
DN TN DOWPN IN MNPOY DY WAYND NYIT NN VIO NNPN IR MDY 172NN NIIWYNY .D>PI0
172NN DY NNVOOY TUNN NIR YNND 1N PRY VIV NMDT DY 1NN DNNN 199,290 DXPOYN ToNNnN
TIT) DIRIVY NP > DY NOVSY) NNV YD MPONY NYNIN NP ,2PYD HVNOY MDYDIN NIND NNV
.1¥12PN HY D»IDON MNITL NTNIRD NI NI ,(NINIL DINIVY

AHAPN PINA MNY? P2 DIANYN NIAYN DY NYMYNRYN MYy 6.3

MNO0N INTITHIND THTT NPIYNY MNY MY IWAPI NP DINIVY NAN NN DV 110N MDO0N MDA
RVVaplay)

NOITY NNPN IIRY NMDT OY MNPOY 6.4
NOP VINILY NN HIINA NVITY MIPN 1IIRY MNIT HYIH

¥ PNMIN 55 DY NN NYIDT (7NOP DINIVYY : 1DND) NOP DINIVY NAN NN NYNA 2017 DN 27 BN
NOYTN T, ("IN :1P9NY) VPR NIV 257 NN (NN PND) N9p DINIVYA (25.1%) TPG
NP 676 -2) YN NP 172 -5 DY DO, ANNINN TINN .100%-Y 74.9%-1 NOW NPYNNN NYY NX 172NN
NP NXNOND TPG > HY 1103 QUNR PR PO 85 -5 DY DIFDY NYIDIN TN 101N ONY (N'Y
IPINY NPXMN NOP DIRITOY NNTI 19135 .(N7Y 112 355 - ) 2017 LOINNA 1 -1 OV NP DINIVYY
NYT ©IDND TYIND TY YPR MNP 13- 1001 ODINN TWR) YR I 16 -5 DY TOI NP DINIVYWI OOMINY
NYY9I7 112 .(23.4 9IN2 DY NIND) PRI 1 -3 HYW MW ,917) DIRIVY DY NPNIN INIPNY 1IVIN 191 (N3
NMDY NVLIPA NIIN NIANN,200 NININNDN NPOYNN NRNIND IR NP 3-55Y 7O NPOY NMDY NNNN
DY 702 NVOYY NNPN PRY M”NIT DY MNPDY 1IP2 POIPA,NIY NIPDIN 554 -5 HY TOI NOVIIYW MIPH PRY

LAY NIPDN 224 -5 5 TOI DNIN P PVIPA 19 N7Y IV 311 -D

NOVIVN NOIPHN 19NN YIIRY DIPOY PP 6.5

NPINN 100% NYIO7Y YA NNNY Call -n NMO8OIN NN NOP DINIVY NN NN NWDMN 2017 DN 23 DA
.02 RPN VAN NOP Yyan N yann ,("NDKW : 1onb) Norddeutsche Kaffeewerke GmbH nnan
24 -9) YOITNI PR NPYINI 32 -0) ,(N7Y NP 220 -D) YN NP 56 -5 DY TOY NNONDN NN NINN

(MYTTN NN IO P2 VPN IO

WINY DN MMNIPNND DI
1791 IYNY DXMNINT NMPNNNM DO NYISIN MY NIRNPN NX NOHYN NP DINIVY NIAN NIIN
PRI 22 -5 HY TO POVNINY YR NP 35 -5 HY TOA MI1AP YIDI IPYA
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17792 9Y9) OINIVY

OYHINDN BIDN MMTH DI9INA

9258473 31

2016 2017

N7Y 939990

189 211
522 179
711 390

2016 925871 31

2017 Hans7a 31

73590 MYV 7Y 299919 73590 NV N7Y 299919
0.35%-1.49% 7 0.35% 151
27 16
19 15
46 31
53 182
93218473 31
2016 2017
N7Y 239591
911 983
(30) (28)
881 955

28

(TuNnn) M2 MHaN - 6 MINa

MY VN 6.6

MIT 991D 9N DIDON .N7Y NP 18 -OY NIINNA DI OPN MDY NN DHON DNNY 2017 NN 23 DM
YNNY NVONNNN NNIIND 0NV 5 -H WY 132 7392 OPNR DYDY N7Y NP 3.5 -5 DY TO DY UNIN MOV
N97Y P20 TN 297 MPOYAN DY NTTHN Y3 TWUR N7Y NP 10 -5 YW TOINA NI2NN NN MDPYON NN
MY 7-5 DIINN) N7Y NP 11 -3 HY TOA DI TOANA 1D) NN MNDY 21522 NYY INN NN D9V
NYIT2 NINN MNIN PYDY 9P IWN (DYT2IYD DN NPOY MNDY 1P)H2 NI DNIN JIP WD PIA 'Y

ST09M MMM

0232912 Y O ~ 7 N

D222 MM DINPNN
MNTPS

MNTPY 7Y M) - 8 9INa

- DPPND NS TIY MM NINTPD

WPV NTPD

- DPND TIY M)
NPNYYNRHN 1IN MHIN
NPIISNP IN MDN

MMPY - 9 MNa

09 9.1

OYMN MAN

DYPAON MIINY NYWIN NN
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orrm(.ue'ﬂ ‘

17792 9Y9) OINIVY

OYHINDN BIDN MMTH DI9INA

2016 9298473 31

2017 9258473 31

(TUnn) MMPY - 9 9INa

IMPYN MAIN 1) MY Jonb

many nwIen many nYIen
Q'PNUN W2 Q'PAYN W2
7Y 939995
@) 835 (4) 912 91 DN
- 38 B 29 oY 1-30 YW P9
- 7 - 10 DY 31-60 DY NN
- 2 - 6 DY 61-90 DV NP9
(2) 2 - 2 DY 91-120 DV N9
24) 27 (24) 24 DY 120-1 NYYNS HY NP9
(30 911 (28) 983
$NMPNN TYUN DIPDN MNY NWIHIN NYNND
2016 2017

7Y 9399959
24 30 NI 1 OVY NI
7 (2) NMPNA TIY NTPN DNV (TOON DIVII) TON
- (1) DYTIAND 129NV DYPNON MIIN
(1) 1 PN YW DY NYSVN
30 28 720872 31 OV M
$MIPIN M0 295 NNTN 1IN MMPY )2 INTYUN 190D 179399190 NIYYNN

935843 31

2016 2017

7Y 9319959
473 482 DY MIMPY PV
151 195 YOI PV
165 174 Bap AN (YAl
92 104 DMINN
881 955 11D

29

9.2

9.3

9.4
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2N M 03N - 10 N2

9208471 31
2016 2017
N7Y 93999

17 12 DOPODY MNTPN
6 13 mTom

9 9 TVIN YITY MNXNTN HY MOVIY NINTN 591D 1PNy MINNON
15 16 92p5 MDION
21 12 (1) &)
10 - MNTNH/N MYN NVIW AL MMV MPIMN MIIN 51 M
47 20 YN MIRNIN
31 10 (2) DNV D¥I"N

156 92

NRNNA MY NIPN 8 -1 6 -2 DY TO 2016 -1 2017 120872 31 DY DXIW NNVLIAN TNKD DTN MNTPA 51D (1
22782 MINNYNIP NI v 5v 21N 1Ny NP 16 -5V 792 2016 H73nNT1a 31 DY N7YN MINN MO )2 02N 5910 (2)

INYM - 11 MINa

SansTa 31
2016 2017
N7Y 93999

240 227 oo IIIN
59 58 VIR DN
22 21 N9 YNY2 NININ

205 221 (D”»NP DN HD1D) NN NININ
11 16 MY TP DN

537 543

IRNN MNYN NVIY 29D MTIVNNH MPINIM MHINI MYPYN - 12 9N

INNN MYN NVIY K3Y MYVNN NPMNN MPINN MHan  12.1

MTANNND NN
MYrYan 01PN

»PIYN 930873 31 ©YY NVYYYM PN YY1 HNR
2015 2016 2017
Ak 50% 50% 50% (1) Trés CoragOes Alimentos S.A.
NIN 50% 50% 50% (2) Sabra Dipping Company
TN, NNNann ,Sao Miguel 17891920 MPINNRD NN YWY NXAPN IY NIITRNDN ONYN NVIY 337 NHMVNN NPINN 1IN (1)

OII8I9P 00 N9 09 N9PY ) DN NP MNIN , DN MIXN ,DNNMNN NP MIXIN PN N/ APNVN , NI
227125 \IiNH MNPYY AP P NP 1IN 19) 00 MPAXY v MXpwN [ (liquid cappuccino) 1911 198197

D201 NXANI NPNVH ,NTIDNN NN NNNAT,IPIDAI SV NXIAPN DY OIITNNAN MIYN NVIY 295 NYNVHIN NPINN NN (2)
NTPY 27NN 12NT2 DNINNN DININI)

30
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(TWnN) 2INNN NYN NVIY 595 MIVNRD MPIN MIINI MYPYN - 12 9INA

TNNIN MNYN NVIY 295 MYIVHN NPMNH MPININ MIIN 9372 958NN YN 12.2

Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A Sabra Dipping Company
9208473 31 9258473 31
2016 2017 2016 2017
7Y 9399

1,091 1,073 324 269 DYV DXDD)
: DO

102 118 115 67 DN MY DIPINN
653 647 696 551 DYVIV DINRY DYDI)
1,744 1,720 1,020 820 (nhivailytv)
779 675 *428 318 MOvVIV NMIAMNNN

A m)ialal

PIRY NPDINY NPAPNNN
DYINN DINIY , D90

352 234 *294 168 (1) mvwHrom
195 189 *4 7 MOVIV PPRY NN
mlia)al

PWIRY NPOIS NMIMNNN
OINN DXNDY ,0°Pa0

158 158 *- - (1) mwram

974 864 432 325 MM2ONNN O

770 856 588 495 100% V) DYD9) 91D

385 428 294 247 ) DXUA NHANN PON

190 165 108 98 TINN NININNN

575 593 402 345 YPWNN Sv 0901 Ty

YINN 3D *
DIV DTN NNNA NTNY IN YWD NP 9T IN IO 7IND 2016 120X T2 31-) 2017 120872 31 DM AXNDNN NI (1)

OIAN NTHN NNHNA Sabra Dipping Company NIy ,Nt MT DIV TYIND )1

Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A Sabra Dipping Company
731873 31 D93 NAPNVNY MYY 9312873 31 013 MMPNVIY MYY
2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017

n7Y 99N

2,982 3,459 4,179 1,422 1,328 1,244 moION
202 212 285 102 63 (19) MVYY (TO91) N
(293) 120 (89) 2 (14) (61) NN 991D (TO97) NN
(91) 332 196 104 49 (80) 100% 9915 (T09N) NI O
10NN

31 34 39 42 50 122 (1) mMPNam NN
10 12 13 - - - 2> MOION
25 35 41 9 7 7 N NMIRNN
2y 00N (MNXIN) MDION

(18) (50) (42) **(76) **(49) **15 NN
(69) 34 (23) - (2) (11) MINKX MNNNN
(1991) N2 NN PoN

(114) 200 75 52 22 (51) D902 XNY Y9190

.SE USA Inc. np>3nnn 1722 Nnwnn MINND MMV NV Y RYMVNT NRPTNIN 173N )2 0N %

NOYDN MY HY Ty NI PH2 DPWNIN MY DY) YW NNNaN Sabra Dipping Company nyx»a ,mMTn NOpN Tonna (1
ANY PN 220NN NYAWN 2122 ,NIANN PON ) N7Y PN 78 -5 DY DDV

31
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(7UNN) 2INNN MNHVYN NVOY 297 MINVNN MPINN MIANI MYPYN - 12 N2
PANY 2392 NN 1IINY INRND SHYD NVOY 295 MINOND MPINID MIIN 1272 299810 18NN ¥y 12.3
43212873 31 02 NINVNY NIYVY

2015 2016 2017
7Y 931999

103 142 262 MYypYnn b¥ D901 Ty
8 16 35 NN NP PON
(5) (2) 1 NN Y913 (TOAN) NI NXIAPN PIN
3 14 36 59157 NN TOA NXIAPN PON

INNDN MVH NVIY Y9Y MYIVNH MPINIY MMIINN WAPHNY OI1IT2%T 9372 DIV 124

431873 31 ©°3 NMIPNVNIVY NHIYY
2015 2016 2017
7Y 939995

2 60 57 (1) Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.
13 123 - Sabra Dipping Company
33 13 17 12712 -39 DINIVY
48 196 74
92nx7a 31 ovY Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A v D>aTya 172NN S NPYN . NPHNA DN 2152 %392 1VII2 DAIXIN DINION (1)

,NRNNA,N7Y AP 180 -2 NIYW MDD 283 -5 ,N'Y DI 333 -5 1)1 2015 7120871 31 DY 2016 110871 31 OYY 2017
P9 WYY 1Y AUN ,1PVAYNA IR PIMN ,NHRNNA ,N7Y NP 16 -2) N7Y NP 25 N1Y NP 28 -5 HY TO DINN
,ANNN ,N7Y NP 78 -1 NYY NP 115 -5 N NP 130 -5 DY TOY DMVAVN DITDIN NNID N NI NYTHIN TNND
Trés CoragOes Alimentos DN .7)7°2>72 P9I XY 5 172NN NN T2 BY NVONN NIAPNN WK DN I¥INN 1IPA DY)

0NN NMYAY DN DN DY PHINKY DIFDN PH,TNYL DN IINN 1IP NN PHNn S.A

0”905 MMT NS 12.5

Trés Coragdes Alimentos Sv D TNMINHDN DO MMTN NN NON DX TNIND DD MMTD NIIXN NXIAPN
DONDITIAN ININ T IT NNAN DY MHNYTH MHIxD yavn .S.A

:MVTN NMPNA HNIN DY PN YW IINY NPYN MNIOYI YXINNDI NI POYINN MYY oD

YWY DN INYITIAN YNIID Y POYIND Y
YSIIN POSIN WY N9 PN WY

% MNPWN MY naYpNY 9PNy
1092 NNMNUNY NMYY
(11.3) 1.13 1.05 2017 920872 31
19.7 1.11 1.18 2016 9anNTa 31
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Gﬂ(ﬁ{le ' OY1NINNDN 09957 MMTY 0YINa

(TYNN) IRNNN MNVA NVIY 295 MYDIVHNN MPININ MIHINA MYPYN - 12 N2
AKAPN DY RINDN MNYA NVIY 295 MUDIVNN MPININ MM 22)0 D901 DIV 12.6

ONN DIDNY ORNNA NY NNNY NNMIY MDTN NN D7V DM DINIVY NN NIIN NWH 2017 YXN1 28 D2
ovnn” - PnY) Qingdao HSW Health Water Appliance Co. Ltd n93ana ©901 15% vido1o ,9munin
51% 9PN NXIAPN MIIN MDY GMYNN DVHN ,NYIIIN NHHYN INKDY D ("W -) "Gmunin
150 -5 D1 DINIVY NIAN NN NPDPY (PNIYIIIN TN :1PND) 2017 LOMIND 30 DA .49% DN DINILY
NODIANN NIANN KW ONY NIIYND ORNNA NYAPI NNNNN .("DNNNNT :19N2) (N7W )P 81 -5) 1N NP

9MYNN OPHNN DIDNA YAPIY 293 2016 MV GMWYNN DIHN HY NPIDIN MNNIND DY

YN 1ITY NN /N MINK MYPYN - 13 9INa

AYPYNN IO 20Y MY 13.1

Y3873 31
2016 2017
7Y 9399959
9 8 TIN P DINN DXPN MNTPI
28 - 7919 PIY YDA DI NYPYN
23 27 (1) @2V XY DPINDN DIPN
4) 4) MAVV IMON NI
4) (8) DXPANDN MIND NYIDN N
15 15
133 68 (oY 13.3 -1 13.2 NNI) DINKY MAVIY XY MINNON
(22) (9) ALV IMNMON NON2
111 59
163 82
NINNN NN .DMPYNI 9P N1IDN NIDNN 12 NN ND7YI MINNIYAP NN NIV PRI IN ]YJtﬁ' mmp‘: nanN APyl 5915 (1)

.2016 MWHY NMITA,3.0%-0.4% DY 1127 NYV 295
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(TUnN) PIN 135 NN MINN MINK MYPYN - 13 9IN2

$IININ TIIN IITY MINNONN VIS 13.2

29 NYY
430873 31 09H 935871 31
7980 ©Y0a 2017 2016 2017

7Y 939550

TN N Ny 3.41% 6 6 DYT2YY MNMION
TN N Ny 2.6%-5% 17 14 DYINN) DYPADY MNNION
NPINN NIANY XN

MYN NVIV 9D NHNVIN

67 48 MINDN
10N NNONI INNON
43 - (1) Towan
133 68
.6.5 N2 D) NN Q0N YNY 2017 ©IN1 23 012 NDKW nwroq n7)ona npoo nxnonn (1)

SIYIN PTY MINNDD S PYan SN Jony 133

9208471 31

2016 2017

7Y 99550

22 9 NMYNIN M1

6 5 PMIVYN M1

3 3 MYWLYN MY1

46 2 YN M1

56 49 TN TOWIHNN MV
133 68

34



17792 9Y9) OINIVY

W
orrmﬂe”: ‘

OYHINDN BIDN MMTH DI9INA

12D VI - 14 N

wapn vidha nynnh  14.1

[=1a) 2247 VI Lr) mMmMon ypp
Y9N T° “99Wvina it Judt)) 254 A1) [=R¢F}2)]
N7Y 23991

mby
3,723 147 283 32 2,092 1,169 2017 N2 1 OYO M
P NNDHNI MY
212 - 3 - 182 27 Dpoy
136 5 12 3 95 21 mavIn
(41) (34) (2) - (5) - TINONRD NN
(11) - - - - (11) NYPYND Y910 NHayn
(26) (1) (1) (2) (21) (1) my»n
5 - - - 5 - NI I
21 (3) 1 - 18 5 PN MYYI DY NYIVN
4,019 114 296 33 2,366 1,210 2017 930871 31 OYY 7
799 N9 Y109 NN
2,189 104 246 24 1,396 419 2017 N2 1 DY NI
76 - 2 - 67 7 DYPOY MY NN MY
6 6 - - - - TW NP
139 9 11 2 91 26 MYY NN
(34) (30) (1) - (3) - TINND NN
(7) - - - - 7) NYPWYND 919 N7ayn
(19) (1) (1) (2) (15) - my»n
11 (2) - - 11 2 PN YW DY NYIVN
2,361 86 257 24 1,547 447 2017 930811 31 oYY P
52 390N YN
1,710 28 39 9 819 763 2017 425873 31 O»Y 19N

"NV 0VINY - mMmnon paraird

Y51 90 92vina NN TN 254 A1) (=2 F}a)]

N7Y 23991

moy
3,694 156 285 34 2,063 1,156 2016 N2 1 DYO M
113 6 7 4 81 15 mMaoIn
(84) (14) 9 (6) (53) (2) my» )
8 - - - 8 - INONN N
(8) (1) - - (7 - POYON YW DY NYIVN
3,723 147 283 32 2,092 1,169 2016 920872 31 OYY N
799 NP9 ©Y109M NN
2,128 *100 242 27 1,367 *392 2016 N2 1 DYO M
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2016 2017
N7Y 2395919
NI NAVNY IINN
122 130 M2INNN DY XNON TIY
(75) (84) NPIDIND Y0 KW NN N
47 46 101 ,012¥5 MALVH 7o
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(Tunn) 021210 Mavn - 22 MNa
NI NAVNY NN 22.4

DN NALH NN )2 MAPNNNA NYNNN 22.4.1
2016 2017

n7Y 93999

127 122 NI 1 DYDY AN NAOVN NN X2 MI»NNN
(10) (3) NMINN 9 HY MNWY MIVN
5 7 VIV MPY MDY

3 3 2 MR
(1) 2 DMINIVPN (DXNN) D*TOMN
(2) (1) TN MNINNN
122 130 920N72 31 0PI AT NAVN NPIDN X2 MIPNNN

DTN NAVN NNON YD) 2090 22.4.2

9218473 31

2016 2017

[AZTR 1 EFETA

9 9 DM MNY) DI
10 11 NPNOUYNN NN
20 21 NPIINNP NN
36 43 17573 Y0292 DN DYPYIN
75 84 5NN Y0 TO

DY NALH NN DI NYNNN 22.4.3

2016 2017
N7Y 93999

72 75 AN 1 OPY NPIONN Y0 DY NN MY
11 5 NINN VTPV DD
(7) (2) NPINNN 29 DY NI MV

2 2 27 MON
(1) 2 257 MDION 2152 KN NNIVN
(2) 2 NN MNNNN
75 84 920XT2 31 DPY NPIDINN YU HY NN MNY
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e
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(Tunn) 021210 Mavn - 22 MNa
IV NN HVINIVPN NN 22.4.4

: DMHNN DINNNA (G9PIVN YRINK) MPTN TYIND NPIPIYN NPINIVPRN MMM

2016 2017
0.80%-3.11% 0.80%-3.11% (1) 921872 31 O PNPNN NV
2.00%-5.97% 2.00%-6.00% NYTNY 10 NMPOY NV
(2) DOIMNNIT MNIN
DPMON NPITENP 1IN AN Y 0DANH PPN NV 2016-1 2017 DMOHWA (1
JPIP9TI ,NPAIMNT MNIN SY DXODANN DXNWNN 2
NODM MV, PN PV PN 7Y DDNAW 2014-3-1 7PDID TN YY DDDANN NTIZY T JTIINY NNDN SNWOY N
197 DYTIY YW MRV RPN NPW 7T MY DRNNA .20 MM YW M) Yy DX00INN DXT1Y NI SNYY (a

P MY 935 ,13.50% 1PN NIYN NYY D212 DITAIY NIY .M MV 555 ,10.40%

N99 NN MNIND IV NNIN,NPINIOPRN MMNINNKD DNNS NPT TIRNI 20 19INT D IWAN DOV
APIPITI MITNIN NAVLNY MDINKBN DY DWOWN MY

2017 990873 31 019 M"Y

(4) 1% -25v) PINN NYY
5 1% -2 yOop NN NYY
5 1% -295v71) NPTNY 15U NYHY

(4) 1% -2 OO NPTRY IO NPOY

(1) 1.2 -29595m NNy WYY
1 0.8 -2 5951 NIY NV

(2) 0.8 -2 595m NNYYNY DINIWN NV

NRAPN HY BITINYN DN 29N DY MIND NYawn 22.4.5
Y OIPHIN 5 O 1N NIMINKI NITHN NAVN NN 2018 MW NN MTPANY NXIIAPN YTOIN
2016 VYY) MW 5.00 - 6.44 1°0 N TN NP NOD (D5PIVN YXIND 295) NN 1N TINRD NXIAPN YTOIN
(O”W7.20-5.70

DN NTPON MM 22.5

LV 37 :2016) N7Y NIMDIN 42 TOA NRXIN NXIAPN NIN 2017 120NT2 31 DM NNMNONY MV
DI DTPAND NN PXA (V7Y NP 37 : 2015
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W
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OYHINDN BIDN MMTH DI9INA

NN S0DIAN DIMOYN - 23 NN
PLNN WMON 231

NNINNDY NYD NYN MIDTIY TWN,2003 YNNDN D151 DITAIYY 910N NIONY DRNNA - BY72I1¥0 NN N5 23.1.1
72NN NP, PITTYN IN/A NIINN WPONOVPPT YT DY NI, ("TIONN” : 191D) 2016 12HVIDI NN ,0IN3
NNNX DD 11IND VIO NN NN HNN D WX ,NINN KOO (Warrants) NYNON N8P D52 DXTWD

3912 VNN YNNI VY YN DIDI DY )Y N"Y 1 N3

nYWaANN NOPN

DMNNN 50% =N DPIWNN TYINN OPMYI 1PV 50%
NPIWNN TNND DIV VDY DINI

DMY VIYY , 0V DINND DNN INY NN WY 1DOwD

20139290902 9 A0 YPINNVY ININ YN

2013952170902 9 Y2 IPIWINY NPNIN 2N

DNINXNNA,NPIVNN TYIND DY YIIN) 2016 ©01 20 TN
OINNN 50% -MY DPIVNN TYINND DOV DO 50%| DN 20 OPN HNN IPIVNINY TPNNIN AN
NPINN TN DIV VDY DINI 2016

VI NN

THIDA NN NN SY NDOYIN MIYY YINND DNNNA YIP)
19IKD DYPNNN TTID TN NPIYNIN NN 1D

9270902 9 OPY TY IPINNY TPNIN YN
2013

30 -2 N2NN NN DY NN MYV YXINND ONNNA YIP)I
,5% SV N9 NADINA NPINN TYIND TPV INDNN M1

2013 920V9032 9 P2 IPIVINY MININ YN
2016 920VYDA 12 DYDY TN

N WIMIN NI 2016 DN 29T IPIININY MINOIN YN Y230
ANDNN DY OINA DDA MNINN DY NN IWWN NN’
NPIVNN TN DTPY

MYV YNINN (1) :MINID MMONN NNNDY DRNNA yap»
TVIND WTPY INDNN D> 30 -1 NN TN YW NDVIN
INA YPNOVPPTN T DY YIAPINY NI NADINA NPIVIN
3> 30 -2 172NN NN DY NDWIN MYV YXINN (2) PIITYN
TN PP NADIN NXOD NPWNN TVIND INTPY INONN
198D DPNNN TTID

NPNIND YININ 19N

NN GPYN WX NN WINID NPIN MINDIN YXNIYW T WINMNIN NN DIVYN XOY WmNd NPSIND YANd
DTN TAIYN YAPY DIDNHN NN PAY YISNNN ¥YaND DID0Y NNYN ,NPNNNI DIZHN NAVNN 25N
NDY N2 (WIN DD DTPY NINKRND INDNN D NI 1IN DY NIIDN YY) PIVN 1NN P IN (VI
IWNINY TISNINN YAND 19002 Y901 KNS WIdHIN NN D11 NI YIP

12 0Yn 5NN IPWINY  MSOIN AN

2016 920V9D2

DINAY TINN,MAVN NN NRIYPN DY PON? J9INT YINNY THIXIN AN Y5 HYW NINNN DN N YIIHIN PNHN
1NY PITIND INA PPNVPPTY TITDT NPIYN IN NI2NN DY NIV YYD NMDT NPT ,NIANN NI HY
DYINGD YNNI DN PY DOYXNIN DD DN P NN DINPIN MUY M

P T2YN ,NTIAYN DIONI MINNL ITINND N0 NHNK PNVIS APY NIW TIYN T2IY Y0N> DO HY NIPNa
S¥ NOIPN TYWNI TIAYM T2 0N DPD DPY Y1 2395 Y931 DYIDN TYNY NPININD >AND NN WHNY INR
DD 29 1PPWAN ROW NPSIN NRNY PIVTY INA JPNVPPTN DORYI )2 10 .DX0N>N DO DN 0> 180
DN DOWTIN 6 N ANV INND WX P NPHN NYVIANN TYINY T192) DXONTN DPD DPIPVDY T 000N
1PNOVPPTN IRYY DIONN DPO TYNH DIWNIN 6 TIN DPWANT MTNY IWN NPEIXRY WP .DYONN DPO

.DX90N DYDY 180 -2 W1 NP NN PINNY

YT DY NIWINY 2016 99110 01751 OXTYY 21N NI5NY OXNNA - (VRSU7/7PSU”) mnyon m9in 5350 23.1.2
NOY MIMDN NN N¥IAPA 0PI DYDY MXPNDY NIAND THIRYI ,NPIND OYYI NHOONY Y NVPPTN
Y )Y N7Y 1 N2 DNK 7799 YONIVIN NN 9N MDD 1IN NN DI 1NTYIAN SNIN DMPNN .NINN

VN 9 912y YAP»Y 29D NYYANN TN NXRD ,NI2NN

MNPV IN NI2NN DY NPIN OHYID NPIDT NPAN ,NAVN NPIN NREPN YW YON 19INI DNNY NN 190N
P77 ,NIMDNN NMND NITNY YN/ DIV TITDT PHINMN NIPNR .(NHAND NN IN NIM) NIAND MHAN
TYPTN NPIN T P2INNI DTN IY INRIT PNV TITYTN DIZDY MMIDNN NN MITNd2 PIINNMN INIY

.NPI9NN DY SNN DNN 21522, NIMIDN NMIN NITN 990N MIYN NN DY MM NN 190N
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(TYUNN) N3N YODIAN DIMOYYN - 23 9INA
(TUnn) MaNn NN 23.1
NDION DN NTIPAY 102 PYDY DRNNI IVIN DO¥7 MININHDN NPIONN ,ONIY DITIIY 210 - 799NN HoN 23.1.3
9 DY L JINI SN YTPN MMDNN NN MITN IN PN Y2ANI TOY ONNNAY,1961-N7OWNN (VTN NOY)
D1ONN DY HINY IUN DN DD 992 DI TN INY NN
MTD NDIPHNA MPIvn  23.2

:NYTN NIPN IPIVNINY DIYTNN MININD 22N DY PINT NN 220 VIV PO

179 NMVY 0 TIN
™MD NYVY Faks M) 0N YVINImMm NavIn 793 9NN WD MY NIYNIN 990N
99991
DINIT 072
% % 1=} 17] N’y N’y N’y NPIWN YN

0.12-0.23 19.95-21.00 4.29-5.29 63.49 62.26 8.3 -9 773,325 (1) 2017 ©I”a 27
DY 14

(0.07)-(0.22) 19.69-20.98 4.29-5.29 63.82 64.52 4.2 -9 368,060 (2) 2017 >N02 28
oYM 11

0.48-1.48 19.62-23.60 2.89-6.30 49.74-53.5 64.52 7.8 4-5401,193 (3) 2017 >N02 28
oDOMN

(0.13)-(0.22) 19.67-20.61 4.29-5.29 68.08 68.34 1.1 2-993,332 (4) 2017 VOMWNA 9
oDOMN

N 2017 ;0795 15 DP2 DONAY 198D DXPNNN TTHD DTN NN NPINNNIND NNX 93 HY vIdHD Noomn (1)
NYINN NAVNN .2019-2020 DIYNN NNX YD HY DN 27 -2 ,INY NNND SNV YINN PINND AN windnd
MNNN NOVANN NMIMPN N9 DY DMIDIN MNTA INXIND GPVN YN MPInn

VIDIN NODIN .2019-2020 DIYNN NNKX DI HYWOIRNA 28 -1, NIV NN SNW WIANN MINIIND 72N WIdINY MNIN (2)
MPINN NYINN NAVNN .2017 PNND 15 DPI DDNOY 1IIXD D PNNN TTAD NTINN NPT NPINNNIND NNN DI HY
MNINN NOWIANN MNPN 19 HY DHDON MNITI NNIIND PN IIN

I L,NOP DINILVYA (25.1%) TPG 5w 1 ny»In Y5 Dv Nop DIRIVY T DY NYNAY NININD NYIINN PN (3)
NNN Y2 DY ¥IdNIN NADIN .NIINN NPIND NPINN 401,193 -H NP DINIVY NN 97N 1PN N2 NPNNN
D»NPNN DININD ONNNA YAINN MIXNIND 22N YINNY MINITN .J9IXD DXPNNN TTIY NTINN NPNX NPNNININ
YNODIN NV 10N RY NIINN NYA .2018-2021 DNV THNNI ,NOP DINIVY NN Y9I TPIVINY NPSNIND HY
NPY TYIN YTTOIV 95 MPYN DIV PINN PNV DY MDY KD DININN NPV INNRD NPNAINN DY INNN MU INND
.DONINN

N90IN .2019-2020 DNIWNN NNNX Y DY LDININD 9 -2, MY MIN SNYI YIND 7PNIND 22N VIdNY MO (4)
NYaNN NAVNN .2017 YV 14 DY DONAY J9IND DY PNNN TTHI NTINN NPT NPININRNND NNK J5 DY YN
MNRNN NOVANND NMIMPN 29 DY DMIDIN MNYITA INXIND GPVN YN MPIvnn
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(TWnN) NN SOIAN DIMOYN - 23 9N

STPNOIND AN NYNNN PYNY  23.3

(D29HN2) NINOIND 2N 190N

2015 2016 2017

3,453 3,926 4,154 INWA L OPY N

1,240 618 1,636 NN NNNIPN

(590) (137) (1,343) (1) NN YAND VI

(177) (253) (23) TPNIN Y2AND VN

3,926 4,154 4,424 (2) 720872 31 OYY N
AN7w 62.13:2015 ,n7w 61.08 : 2016) N7W 67.19 1PN 2017 NIV IWMINY TININD AN YN D1 MPINN NN DY KON YXINNN (1)
DD MOT NNNP (MNNIN AN MAYN 1,352 : 2016) TIXNIN AN YN 1,007 YW TO 123D ,NPNNIND NN TNy ,2017 920872 31 0MD (2)

N3 N3N NI YODIAN DINMYYN 234

2017 M 70NN ,nop ©IXIVWA TPG Sv P NN H5 HY Nap DINIVY T HY NYXIAY NIDIND NYIIINN POND
WMWY DIINN TWN) YPR MM 16 -5 DY TOA NP DIRIVYA DOININD INPINY NPXAN 19D DIRIVY NNTI
PR MIPYN 1 -5 5WONYA 97 DIRIVY DY NPNNN INPIN 19Y,(NT NIT DIDID TVIND TY Y PR NP 13 -5
DINIVY YTNINN TN INPINY NOPN NN DY NPINY NPNNIN TV Y21V NPT )PNVPITN TN 902
12PWAN DYDY NPNIND NN NIND TIN,NT NIT OIDID TNT MW TUR ,N7Y )P 7 -39 NINNA NP

TN TYIND 193

NN Y0DIAN OIMYYN OY TV 19Y MNNHN 23,5

9319844 31 D3 NNPNVNY NIYY
2015 2016 2017
N7Y 93999

14 14 17 95WN MNSIND NOPIIV NOION NRNIND

49



W
orrm(.ue'ﬂ ‘

17792 9Y9) OINIVY

OYHINDN BIDN MMTH DI9INA

PMIYPNN MNIIY ,05NAYY ,MNYN MNAPNNN - 24 9N

MMON MNAYNNN  24.1

DI NNIYIIND NN NV M2 MIIN NI2NN THID VIVHT XN WNNY NPMNNT MYIANN VPN 24.1.1
1 IVAPHN MPANNY MNAY XY D N1 ADWA NIIYN ,DMVAYNN NNV NIIYN DY DOINNA ,NHANN NN

NYIANn 0120 NPV NYIANN NYN yamn NYMINN A YW’NRNSA | NYAND HVIN TN
(N7Y 39951) nyann
PoN) 57 | Dya > DY NINID NN N2 PN M) ONN NN ,NIANN | PHINNN vNHnda 2015 5"aN
(N¥IPN | NN DX NN MPPO2 DI O PN | HPNTPY 151D NN Li)al
(24.1.3.3 NN PILYY
2NN N7V NORIPN
ATHIN NN NPYYN
TOROPN NNY
DY HNIWI
100 | bya > Yy DINOY I PHN NN DR NI2N 192NN | SN vrnima 201681
D) INI) PO AVNN YTVN NIY PN i)l
(24.1.3.3 72
38 | bya Yy NNINDY I PHN M) DR NI2M 172NN | SN vnima 201681
TOY INPP 1892 PN 12
80 | bya T HY NMNDY TIOM PHY M) DN NN NIAND | SHINKBN v7Himda 2016 o9
D) N9P I PN 30

GUN LTI MIDIND NN MDY NN TN NIINN TD VAWHIN YNIT WNNIY NPMNKN MLIANN VN9 PIY 24.1.2
: ©»90I7 MNYTN MYOIR TN TV NITH NAPNI 1) D1VAVNN DIDDNN INIPNON

Ny ann 0121v
(7Y 93999n0)

NPI0IN NYIANN RYN

yamn

nYNINN 2 WHna
nYann

nvIN TIM
nYann

38

PININD DX NN NIINDD YLD
VOYNN N2 VIYNN 2017 NN 17 O»2
nYTIN WNY 1D DIX YDA ONNNPN
ODD NYANN  YIINN YY  MPONon
NIAND TN MYAIND NNYIND NYPI
5 HY 702 NNIL 79 DN DIYVYNI NN
N29Y Yy2IND (DY NOYINI) NrY 20,000 -

o

n7anNn

MINNN VNN
19-N"N1

2014 H2m$2n

915

DN 99) WOLIN 19 HYY DMIXIN DY NN
™ma voONn 2017 Y9N3 6 DY DX
YN AUND NN ODNNND VIV
MADs NYIANN NYINN YV MPONon

TINN MIYAIND NNYND NYPII

madnn ,nHann
NN YWY NNIAVY
N2N NHANY DT RN
MINYI DINTOY

MINNN VNN
nad’N1

2016 "y

59

9y9N2 30 D2 TYINT DYAON NPADN N
nYPA NPENN Y NNN VOYNN M1 2017
NP NIY NN NYANY  MYORN

MINNIN

DINIVY NN "IN
JALS s Rub)al

MINNN VNN
DM

2017 N0

53

IDININND I N0 NNINID PYLN
LIVYNN M YN 2017 92N3N2 9 OPA
,NYINN YW MPYNON NYTIN 1999 OHINKN
MYIND NNYIRD NYPANI NPADD NYIANN

TINN

ARE AL

YHINNN VNN
Lj=m)al

2017 99N
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(TYNN) MNIYPNNI HA9Y ,D0NAYY ,MNON MNANNNN - 24 9IN2
(Tunn) MMSN MNarNNn  24.1
NN MNTN MNAMHNDY Myan 24.1.3

(DAY NVOVN Y3 29PN MITY) NN NIYNN IRYN NDOWY MIAYNND aNdY ONNNa - 24.1.3.1
aN52 DNITHIND) INIIN IN MAN D5 YW NIWN XY MAYD 1N YNDa 1I9INT ,N2»NNN NIAND
TAIND MINN NIVN RV IN1N GPIN DWW MDY 2Py NIWNN XY DY SOINY (MINNNN
aN51 DXV DIYIPND INDN INY IN TANY PAPYI IN PIYNI MNYPN ,MA»NNNN aNd
9012 ,172NN DOVWNY DIZ0N PPV IN PIYINI 0N NYPN 93 IN ONN PON N, MAANNIN
NP N CTAN P ,9208N2 NIWNN IRV YO0 1YApMm DX MV MNANND PYIAPTPY DINMIDDD
D»90IN PIMMNT 19 DY NN DY SNNYN NNNN 25% -5 DaNN 12 DXONNN DIV PRIN
TP Y2901 NV DD .(M¥IPA 19N 1 1oNY) DN NHOWN DYWN TYIND 1193 DININNND
N TYIN 9D DONAY NINKN TTIN TY YIPN TVINN 295 DONAY NINND TTHN 12 TR0 TNy
NV, TV T WRIND , NIV NIINN,NIWN ORVIID NPINND IV 2N5Y DRNNA,0NI .0PYYNN
NI9N 2PY PR DV ,NNKPN IN NI, DNPINKRD (D121 NVIOWN Y 19PN MIY) N1 NIV
NVYNN DY DIN> ND IINRI VIV T252),)T D39 5Y NIMNN NN NN NADD MPII NN
.24.4.2 1IN D) N .AMYINI O PIY NN INWID NIVND RYND IN NVIOVN HYIAOW NPOY IN

N1V DM DINIVY T NYaAn Nwin ("Pon”) Esio Beverage Company n7an bv nphann  24.1.3.2
92IVPINA 1 D2 .2015 92HD2N2 5 -2 NNWIN NIVIRY ,27NIN ,IMNDT DTN (7DD DINILYY)
0oWO HNYa DD DINIVY NAN NIAN NDYIDN INNDN ,NIYI DION LOVYNN N WX 2017

9T 95N 30 — 5 YW DIOD IMD NXaYY YN

9NN M) XYNA 2015 DXI9NND NY’AN TN TINK DY VIVNN N NN 2016 12087127 OV 24.1.3.3
(DINLY LY 25NN MITYNID YINN PHNI) MPI92 DXIXIN DY PN DY > DY NN 1IN dNYa
25NN YTYN NIY POIONND DY T DY NINDD T991 PHHN N2 XYNA 2016 RNHD NYINN OY

ISP

TN MNONDN DMITIPN DYIINID 1191 NOY MINN MYAN OPNIIRND VIYNN YN MYann 24.1.3.4
NYPY NYT NNN DY NDOIANNN NIANN NOMN NYTY .N7Y NP 91 -5 HYW 70D 1T MT DIDID
Sy DN MY*ANNN DYTOIN NOY MITMNNDD NMIINDY NIIND 1NN NY ,DM0IVNN TPNYPN

D905 MNYTA NWIDN NNYYI 1272V DIDON

DYNITN VIVN N2 MYIN NMINMP D11I22 IINDN NV NVOW AT NINVPN NPINMN NN TND  24.1.3.5
Y PN 261 -5 DY TOY (N¥APN PON) 2017 920872 31 OPD MNONDND ,MINN MM
MWIAN PX2 N7Y NP 143,000 NIYIN MYIN X2 N7Y NP 109 -5 DY D10 19INN0)
PSYPH DAPNNY YDHRN DY DOINN .(MPNIIN MYIN PI2 N7Y PN 9 -1 1Ty MMyl
DMVAVNN DIIINN DY MNP OIINRNDN NV NVIW 29D NYNVHN NPININ NIINN DY D1VIVNIN
NYIVIN NPININN NN NIPIYN IYIAMY DIMODY NYPN D2 OTIP 1PN DI TV DMONN
10 -5 YW 702 MWYI9N NI MDD 11 MIVANTN NP NP 176 -5 55 MIINNN NV NVOW 9D
MNRD MYANNN DMHNN DXTOINN MDY DIPIODND DIAVNIN (MNP PIN) N7Y DPIN

.35.1.2 1IN XY, NN MYPYN TYPY OPIN 9PInn N¥IApN MHan vpy mavn 1271 24.1.3.6
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(TWNRN) MNHIYPHNN HM29Y , 0573V ,MNHN MNAMNNN - 24 9N
ormayy  24.2

APPYTI DITIAYY NI N¥IIAPN MIIN NMI1NNN NNLVIANY 24.2.1

9318473 31
2016 2017
7Y 19991
3 3 91N2 D)2 NIV 1IN DYVIVY DIV HY
51 50 MNINHAN MNYN NOVOY Y NHMVNIN NIAN Y0 DY

SNIYN NNV TNEY DXINK DPIA NIVY N¥IAPA 17973 YD) 190N HY DXV DINIP DITIAYY DM 24.2.2

DYTIYY NP NIV, 21NN NN IPPTNNI DINN DNINNHD DI, D232 %995 112NN NIAMNNN,1PMINY ONd1 24.2.3
NNNIN MV IN NNNDNN MIODNA ITITNINY 29D DINNDN DIPNI NON (DD Tiayw) M) Dy

nMay  24.3

1 PNY VNN DINNDY DIPIAD NIATY NN ,NNAPN DY NPPOYN MDPYaN DY w1l 24.3.1

928473 31
2016 2017
n7Y 999
483 525 97021 YIN2 NN MNAN N1 DOPI NWY
23 19 971N2) ¥IN2 DINN NIVY

, 01902 MYaNN HNY (DOPYY NN MZANND NPTTN DM MNMP NOYW MITNIND MIIN PaY 192NN P2 24.3.2
.DMINN)Y D32 %955 MA»NNNN 92 NNVIAND

DOYMNN IMIYPHN 244

D1V MH-1V8 DINIVYA (MPPDAg” :onY) Pepsico Foods International nypwn> mmvpnnn nayon1a 24.4.1
,DINTOY NNAWN IOPRY T YT DY (PIPYI IN PIYINI) LIYIN NIINN 12 NIPNRL 2D ,NPINT YA P2 DION
S¥ MINNN NN YD NN WIDTY 9NN NVYYI NIINN DY NNPNN DOWTIN 12 919NN MDD IPPD9Y NN
1Y DINA NN HIPPDAY ININDY,0IDN TTOIIMN 12IND YAPIY IV NN DY »I-1029 DINIVYA NIINN
LNYN ND NNND PO D PAD I9DIN YAPM DOYIN 12 DMNX TYNRL WINN NVOYWN DYa oy 1YV 9NYo

MI2N2) 192N ONNINN NIVND IRV DXNVPIT NMINK NIV NOMNHA NNYP NIAND, DT AT TVIND NO) 24.4.2
AN DY ON 100 -5 DY TO2 PNV PNHI9 DTN 99T 119 100 -5 702 NPINK M1 1YY NN

NPINNY 50% YY) NNV 1P LMD MAMY) 573 1NN NN YIY NNV MIAYNN P2 DIONY ONNNIA 24.4.3

NINN PNN 20% NN NIDPN PPINN TIY 9353 911N PAYIPI ,MNIT DNV ("NIDPN 2 PNnD) (NN

DYDNDN DMIMIYI NYIND NNV YWY YYD NYOONRN IN JPNVPPTN DY NVONN ,NNIV> DY MP)IN

MNP PN I HONINT ODIN,PIYN 29D NMNN DY IN D NVPPTN MYIP 2172 Y2PNN DHDNA DXVNNN

35 NPINT DY NOONI 1PN DX IN NIDPN YT DY NN WX TN NPT MNY SY 1P M) 230
YN

DMNOIN YV 29NN NININ MDIN XN NYOTY DNINSTY DY DINODNI MNMYP NNIVN MNAL DINIVY 24.4.4
22011 - NYYWN ,20N70 PYN 10N PINY OXNNA
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(YNN) MNIYPNNI MNA9Y ,0AYY ,MNIN MNANNHNN - 24 91N

(TUNNY) NPMIN IMIVPNN  24.4

MIIM 5217210 NNOY NNSWN P25 NXIAP TMNIN P2 DHODN DY NITO NHNNY L2005 120XTA 29 TINNI 24.4.5
17202 NN DY HY NPIN NN IN NIIYN I ,¥3PI .921722 DY TINN MDY TINK ONIVNY ,NNVYYYI
NNYNI NYNN MDY, NPINY NHIYRI 21D MDD NN ,N1INN MY 330 NMYP 1INY SOHY T8O NanwmNn
MOT 7PNN NN DYDY ¥ ,¥2I1P G DIONN ; INKRD NN DY NN DY N0 GIVNND M”N Hya MO
DXWTN TIV MM Y1 IVIPY T, TONYI NIMWNT NIAND YT DY NYYNY TIY MM NRNPN DI 220 TP
S5Y2 RIT T,V MOTN DY YN DI NANIVNN NN NN YY1 NIPN .ONPMPINN DN %99 DN
192NN SV PINN PIYN TIY 29 DY NAMYNN 19202 NPINN DY DY PRI DI NN WIDTD INRND MNIND
YA P TIDOD NNDNI NNDOY TN PIDD ON YD ,¥aPI TIY .VIAPIY MNY NOIYN PININY 919521 ,NOMWUNn
LAMWYNN DIHN D50NY DN IN NN YA DIDN Y2)D NI9N N NPIN DY YD ,NAMWNT NN NNNN
PIVN TN 80% PNVY TO 199N T8N NI DY 71PNIP NYNNN WNNY 119N NINY WD NPINN Hya Koy
DONNNA,INNN PIYN TN 120% PNYY TO 1907 T PIIN DY NN NOININ WNNY PN IN NN
91915 2020 AN 1 OPD TY NPIN HYA DY NIDIND DD NN, 1D .NMINN YYA DIDN ITONY NININD
DaMYNN NI2NN DY NINNND PNIN

Frito-Lay Dip ) 72099 »p> N0 11190 I8P J¥ N2 172N Oy NOMYN NPOY NNNNY 2007 12187 w1IN1 24.4.6
(S.E USA Inc.mysnN3a) 79ann mip inn 2008 91 28 ovn dnnv 7o ,("nwonn”) (Company, Inc.
Sabra Dipping Company, LLC n92na "mannwnn m»Mat’n 50%-1 ,NNK 95 ,(NY1710 MYNNNI) 1P7099)
PUT n»89I18,17202 7MONNYNN NI 9¥20 TNR D39 TiNyn 050170 TYINN DNIY wnin 0N .(7N71107)
MY DDA DY, NY NNINI NI2D2 OINND PMANNYNN NI YDYAD DY PMONNYNN MMDT IR NOND
PMANNYNN NN NN I MDD 7PNN NININD TININD DY YT T .25% NING N0 DY 7Ivin
SY 5% PMANNYNN NMDT IR NN MINNIND DYDY 50D ,PATINIT MNIRM NN TPININRD DIV HY
YOLY TED TMIANNYN NPT NN YD TN P L,YIP NIPNN .25% NADINA NI2D HY PV MY D1Da
UMM XY 11 MY 9991 ,(TAG ALONG) 19919 970802 7Manneinm Nt »oya 9m DY Mot nood
Mot .(DRAG ALONG) 177919 9908102 DXINKN 7MONNYNN NMIOY HOYYA IR 2N M 10D Tinyn
Y5Y DHNDN DI TINN INPNL IONI GOV JNPNN DV GPIND INDID TYNN DIV WHN DINND 1210 TINYN N
oxnna,S.E USA Inc. Y¥ X NN SY 1NNI0N DX NOIYL RN D7PYN 171202 7MaNNYn NMDY NIayn
PN Waph

:19nY ,PRB Luxemburg myxnN1) 177099 %P> 0N0 11O YINNP 0y 112NN NIvpnn 2011 >0y wna 24.4.7

95 50%) DNV DXPYNI NI DY PP DITINN N2 NN MYNHNI ,9MYN 0PN NnpnY 0ooN1a ("PRB”

0N .("NY2IN N OV oY) PepsiCo - Strauss Fresh Dips&Spreads International GmbH : (1hx

N92IN2 NPINN OOYIAN TN D30 TINYN ,GMWUNN DN NNPNY DI0NN DY GPINY INDMD TNND DNV wNn

NOYNN YOV 18D .25% MND NYIN DY PIYN MY DD DY INRD T80 PN DX NoNY PUT n»soN

254919 919195 ,1INDY ,NNIND NN TPNIIND DOV TY NMINT NN WIDTD MO MNN ,NININD TPNIND
.0950N2 VNI 25% NADIN DINN Y PIYN MY DDA LY PIIN NN NN TPINIING

37 N NN, DNYP DITTN 1Y Oy DY NMIWPNN 1272 24.4.8
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OYHINDN BIDN MMTH DI9INA

DIHIYAN MIN - 25 9INa
NINH RN NNNIAPD 1Ha MI2aN

DNTIDNI IYNRI 9IVIAD DI DPNRY ,DXINN DIDIN 1797 DY NNV 1IN MDY 7DODN2 MNP N¥IAPN MIAN
S YIPITO DMOIPN MOV INT DIV
928473 31

2016 2017
N7Y 9999

56 46 NYXIN M1
103 95 DNV WNNY MY 1

43 31 ToORY PWINNN MV
202 172

097 199N NIDN 2T DYV 25.1

195901 NAYPN NN Mann oM 4ann 49N
NOINND MNNN DY ,2021 INYIAS TY 1O¥2 NPYOVDINDY NN 1O DR 172NN
MavN DOV YNHND
2018 71OPIN TY 19N NPPVDIMNDI NNON 19N DR 172NN
202192020 7Y (1) PHOINI NPPLDMND NNON 30N DR 172NN
ANND 2016 AN 1 DN YNNI DNV YVDMNMDN 1991 DINN DINNY PIINND MDY NN NHANN NYAYN 2015 MV '[‘JTIYJJ (1)

NPY NP 7 -3 HY TOY 1NONDN 2017 MV NMIVNN NIONND NIDIONN .DXMN) DININA MYN NPINI 1OMN PN

1932 TOOM NN NITA IRIIND NPY NIPDN 63 YW DIID 9PN ,2017 120872 31 DY NNONONIY MW ToNma - 25.2
(MRXNN2,N7W P90 85 -1 81 : 2015 -1 2016) NPLIVON MPON

MY PN - 26 N2

029990 0971 ,MIVN - PN 9NN
2)NY HINY YT MM NN TPYWNNY 192NN NDIDY NN 99YY NIVNA IR NN DID2 PXINND NN NYTINN NP TN
TN TN DY 19Y ,NTANN YTAIYY ONIYUN NN NI 192N OINN PRY OOYIAD ML PN MDY NNV
SV NINN YHYAY DNPHRN NN TOI TTNNN NN DY NRIYNN INK NIAPW NN NONIN DTRY PPOY MNNINNA

.MM NN YIS DIPHINHDN DI TITXTH NN INN 121,NH2NN

manpn 26.1

a59n 26.1.1
~amy87a 31
2016 2017
2.9 N7YW 1 9N (0%99N) NN 9901

150,000 150,000 0w
108,234 115,590 (26.1.2) Y7991 POM

(868) (868) (26.2 DY INT) ININD I
107,366 114,722
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-\’f 727793 919 DINYTOY
Gﬂ(ﬁ{le ' OY1NINNDN 09957 MMTY 0YINa

(TURN) M PN - 26 PNa
(Tunn) MM P 26.1

SV PNNI NN HY 1P) TIY N7Y 1 NN NN 2,293,652 DMTOM DIANY I1PANN 2017 99N wTIN TN 26.1.2

Y3 0PN IWN HTHIN NXIAPN DMOTOWI DN IPANT NNIND NMIND TO NN NN 793,651 .70 NY 63

DN G0 NYSN NYT NNDNA NIANN NPYAIN 2017 5>I9R WTIN ToNNA )0 19D .0PMPIND MM 172N PIY
N AW 65.10 DY NN NIINN DY 1P) TIY N7Y 1 NN NN 1,781,100 2017 971981 6

66 5 NN NIINN HY 1PI TIY N7Y 1 NN NPIN 2,727,274 DOTOM DXANY 1PN 2017 »» w1iNa ,qoN2
PRY SV DN WX DTN NP DT DX 1PN NN NPINT TO TINN MMM 757,576 .17100 NY
.DPMPINN NDN N7aN3

NYANNA 77N 595 TNR DIPY DINIT 1) NYY NYN NIDPY DINHTT HAPY DIXIT MDD NPINN PP*3Nn 26.1.3
TY MYWIN JPOR MONMNND NN DI ,(10ND NXI) IXIND NPIND TWNI .1IANN DY NMIND YY1 MOONI
TN \NPANY

A8IN2 O 26.2

NPYNN 2016 -1 2017 720N72 31 OPY .NH2ANN X T2 MPININD NIANN NI MDY NX RO ININI NN P
TN ANPAINT TY MYYIN DN NN .NI2NN MMINNI 0.8% -2 NINNNN NIANN DY NN 29N 868 -1 171NN

ovY 10T 26.3

17291 10
79309 13394 PINY
Y 7Y 39N APINN 1M A19900 T9M
1.397 160 2017 92nvo0a 5 (2017 VOMINA 20 : DPNN DY) 2017 LOMINI 9
1.397 150 2016991126 (20165512 18 : DPNXN DY) 2016927

.23.1.1 7IN2 IR, DT IPININY MINIIN YN DY WINNT NN NHPRNND NNYAN TITTH NN
199919 0239107 000 OY0 PN YIP  26.4

DD DX0I) KV PINN MY IV 12NN NPV NIR NI NN DN DMDINS DYDII I NN JIP
YPYNN TIY DT IR DYPYNN AW TIND 1Y ,N70NY O

onInIp  26.5
DNINN 21 NIN APV HY §»I05 MMT DNIND DIYANN NIND YIVN YW Y5 NN NYSID DN IP
NIN DDA NXIAPN DY IV NYPYNN DY MILPN IN NOTIN NYYND DMNNNN DMV DOV
95 (NVYYY NMIPN IPRY NMNDT YA PN HI5) IR HDIDN NINID NIPTIV PN YIYWa OMPYN NYIVN
71PN DYVINDIN MIPYIN MIDN

928473 31 D12 NNPHVNIY NIYY

2015 2016 2017
7Y 2991

(389) 103 (84) MINDI NP

(1) (12) (42) DMNINDYI DONINMD) DDIVN

3 9 5 NN

(387) 100 (121) 5"N0

NOYTY NNPN 1INY NMDT Yy Oy MNPOY )IP  26.6

15T MW7 MY NRDIVY NNHRNN P2 WIDNT NN NYDID NOIYY NNPHN IPNY NPT 19¥2 DY MNPOY 1P
SNHBND NMDTA MY NOOY NNPN IPRY
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MYV 2911 Y NIYYT - 27 INa
by 27.1

NNIAPN DY DMNHNAN DMDINNIN DIMMTN DY DODINN ,NXIAPN DY MIDOYSN Y10 Y2)D I8N DN YN
29OV Yy DXODINN ,NYTINN IMPTHI T MNT XI2 MDY YN NXIAPN MDA .(PNDTINN ST :1PNY)
1919 VNN ,DIMPYI DX MID TYII9INN DIPIN HY

- DOV TN NVYW DOION ORIV MDY OINN @
.DXVN DN ,DOPNNN DY NPIM PIVY ,NI» KO - NIM YN ©
290 NI DYOYD 29N MIRPW 20N YN0 DY NP PIVY ;NN H915 - DN MONY MNIT - O
Y0 D9 IO HONN HIYIIY DYV, MNVIMP 1T IV , WA T NN

- MDY TN MY DOON NP MDY DINN @
021902 NOPN NN NVN MXRNIN IRV NP MINN DY NPIM PIVY NN D915 - HRIW N9 ©
DM
IRIWD XNIND NOP PININ DY NI PIPY ;NN D0 -IIND1I NP ©

NINKD DMINNND DXVHDY DYDIVN DY NI PIPY NN 551D - MNINDIA DXNINNDY DODIVN MY OINN  ©
IRV

D91 OINN NIANN MW ,NIVN TONN NWNIN IUN )T OPRY NYI MDY NX MDD MINK MDY
¥IPN HY MINK NPMNND NI NN 19) D) DIRITOVY NINIDNI NTHIRNDN

MOIYN .NOMNN SNNMT NIIDNA NIAND SN MOTIYN DY MODIAN PPNY MO MDOYAN MITHID MINXIN

DXV9 522 ,NPHYIY NOMN MNNIM NN MR DY IRIPN 99150 )POIWAN NNI DY MOOIN YN

19N VNN ,DIDN

NN (MOXON) MRS @

ININN 0D 12 TIIAD TY ,MPND TN I TOO IN AN NONT TNKD MUWIVTH MNRNAN D95 e
.DONOND

PN DDIN DIVYN PIA MNIN @

9")710 ©POYN TONHNI MNPDY X PHK HY DDANNI Y2PI NPINN P MNPOY NNHN

.20 191N OMPNY INMIY NIND DI 19D ATHIIY DY 19N DMIXPIY 1NV DXVI9 MDD 10 DY NMINNIN
31200 MINNIN MDION 1PV DD INPIN XoW DOV
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(TUNN) MY 9911 DY NINY - 27 9INa
IHINNDD NITH DIYIVOND DIINN INNI 192 NNRNNY MTIPON 9 Y VIS 27.2

4212873 31 DY NNNDNY NIYY
2015 2016 2017
n7Y 21N

moIn

: DONN MMPOD MO

1,898 1,957 2,068 DN MOMNI MNM2
968 1,006 1,063 NI ANYN
2,866 2,963 3,131 INIYY 571D
647 673 704 SN NAP
2,785 3,000 3,396 YDINDIA NP
3,432 3,673 4,100 noP 970
752 717 692 MNINDI DXNINM) D¥DIVN
592 590 569 NN

: DINN DMINND MPIN

8 7 7 DN MN) MNI2
9 11 11 NI MNYN
17 18 18 INIYI 571D
1 2 2 DNV NApP
- 2 MIINDI NOP
1 3 4 NP 97NO

- - - MINDIA DXNINNY DIYIVN

- 1 - NN
7,660 7,965 8,514 D>INNN MOIdN TO
(18) (22) (22) DN P2 MPON 9V
7,642 7,943 8,492 DINN P2 MPIN HITVIA DIINBN MDIDN TO
(2,459) (2,661) (3,012) MINNN INYN NVOWY NNPRNN
5,183 5,282 5,480 TAINDA MDIIN TO
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(TunN) MP¥ 90 HY NT - 27 9INa

(TURN) TAINPA MTH ODIYINN DIITINN 239N P2 NNIRNM MPIYAN 91N 29 VIS 27.2

4212873 31 DY NNPNDNY NIYY
2015 2016 2017
N7Y 299

199

188 213 222 DN MNI MNI2
93 101 106 NI ANDYN
281 314 328 HNIYI 5770
84 87 104 SN NOP
184 272 289 MIINDI NOP
268 359 393 NP 97Nv
80 48 19 MMINDIA DININHI DIV
30 23 40 TIMN
659 744 780 0590190 HN"9 70
DINPIN OV (MNXIN) MDION

22 - (31) (1) DIND N )2 MNNNN
(42) (50) (52) O, MINN NINNIN
(15) (15) (17) NN DDA DYVN
624 679 680 WAN NN O
(39) (48) (48) MININ PNV NVIYD NHNNN
585 631 632 TRINDD MYT2ODIWON NN TO
(101) (109) (117) O) )N MINNIN
484 522 515 NDIONN DY DOON A NN

YPNN NTIY DOWHYHN DN DIDINH DIPWIN 12 8P MNING NPT YW PN NOY (mark to market) "MW TWW qpwn (1)
TOON IN AN NPAT TNEY MYITN MHRNAN 599 AR GpWN ,2017 S¥ NWRIN 1IYIINND YN N9MINN SMPTL MPY MIpya .mNHNo
LDYNHNY ININN 190 1YW TMHNY TY ,MNND M0 PAa
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(TunN) MP¥ 90 HY NNT - 27 9INa
TOINDD MTH NARNTY MY 5910 395 ©20N DINNY  27.3

4212873 31 D% NNPNDNY NIYY
2015 2016 2017
N7Y 21N

MNN9NI NN

54 58 55 DN MOMNI MNM2
32 35 36 NI MYN
86 93 91 YNV 57710
10 12 13 INIW NAP
74 61 53 NI NOP
84 73 66 n9p 9'Nv
23 27 65 (1) »DIND2 DXNINM DYDIVN
39 27 39 (2) NN
232 220 261 : MNXNT OMIDNN HY MNNIM NN TO
21 20 20 INPIN ROY DYDY RD DD 1) NN
(41) (49) (90) TN ONYN NV NNPRNN
212 191 191 TRINDD MT2 MNNSM NN TO

.12.2 712 NN DD DXVIAY .NPITD NN MY TIY NN TOIN K915 2017 mwa (1)
.6.6 NN NN DD DIVIAY MDY VI )2 TOON D910 2017 mwa  (2)

099NN DYINN YD ¥ 27.4

I 9NN OMIPPN DDA BY ,TOOM NN MITA NNTHD ,DMNYN MMPYS MPININ NXIAPN MOIN

S IPYTo
932871 31 092 NNPNVNVY MIYY
2015 2016 2017
N7Y 2395919

3,776 3,917 4,117 INIY

80 70 23 NN NOY

1,327 1,295 1,340 O2WN INYY NN
5,183 5,282 5,480 TAINDN N2 MDIDN TO
2,459 2,661 3,012 MY YT MOIDND NHRNN
7,642 7,943 8,492 M99 YN MDIIN TO
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(TUNN) MY 9911 DY NINY - 27 9INa
(TUNN) OM9MIN DYIMN Y YN 27.4
:JDPYTI DN SN DIPD DDA DY 29057 23NN YY MITA NNTHI ,DX90IW DIRY NP Y0I)

420873 31 09

2016 2017

7Y 9999
1,876 1,875 N
20 - NPYINNK PNOY
578 790 D2WN INYY NN
2,474 2,665 TAINNDN MTL OO0 TO
1,018 921 MDM97 Y310 Y00 NNINNN
3,492 3,586 M2 1IN YD) TO

, D901 DD YD), 0 DI DIDII DIVTID DN ,DVYNIN YN DIDIN WIAP WIDT 1Py DIDID NHN DID)
.DYT2IYY MAVN DYYND DY TYPHN DXDI) DINTI DXDN YD)

OOMIYY DI YA Y1 27.5

DMWY DMINNM DY NP 9 PH,TOAM NNT NIT NI, 0NN MNIPEY MII0N N¥IAPN MDIN
SYIPOTI N DIIYT

9319844 31 D3 NNPNVNY NIYY

2015 2016 2017
n7Y 1910

mMoIan

1,342 1,394 1,441 29N NN
277 277 345 (nplopiv)
279 286 282 DINN DN MIN) MNIIL MINN
761 788 828 NONDY DXPNNON
1,945 1,946 2,015 nop
470 496 541 DN DXMPYI DN NPV I PYIN
109 95 28 INK
5,183 5,282 5,480 TAINDN N2 MDIDN TO
2,459 2,661 3,012 MZPY91 Y1 MDIINY NHPNNN
7,642 7,943 8,492 M9 M MDIIN TO

60



17792 9Y9) OINIVY

\Q
ol f(ﬁ(.l[%] ' DYTNINSN 0229050 MMNTY OIINA

00129 09V - 28 N2

: DD DIPYINI YIWN DOYINN DININ DMODY NAVN NNIAPN

IRIUNNDD e

STT9 9312707 NIN Y2V ONID ,MPDT OND,MNND IPNNONID : DIDON PIYINID e
PV NP0 e

D9V NXEAPN NPT 2T ,NYN DMNDDY NNAPN Y NOYNN 9272 YN 1N NT NI

: DYNAN DXYNNI NIANN NYNRNYN MY YNNI IND MNIYN 2wna

SOIMYIN ©DAN DI MY JPpnN MLY Black & Scholes b1 - nysox .1

PIVHOINN IN/ 1D IYUN NN NPT OYIM Y0NIDIN DIDIN DI) NN NPYW Y - NNTPN MINPOY .2
.(MMND M2Y) NOMN12

VINRD 07NN WITN TN DIPY 29D - N L3

INTUN D 28.1
DY DION MPINNN NXIAPN MDIIN YN ,INRIVY NINKBY NXIAPN MIIN IRIWI MNIPY P RD 2017 -2
YIANT OMNN PN0Y NN NPNI NININ NMMPON NN .0MID57 MNITL NXIAPN MOIDN ToN 10% Yy
INIPY SV NP IN T2 MPY IENOINIYN MM 31970
SV IIPYN .PIYA YIRS MMPY INIWRD MYNINND (ORIYY NINNDI INIWI) 7dPMINIPIY NXAPN MON I
NMINVLADY (MNXY MONNYN HDION) IXIYN NIVIAT NV TNIYIDOVIIN PIVA DONIVHP MMPIT INIYND
NMMPY HY 290 PN ,NNT OY )10 1NN MNNVIL NDIDN NPNRY OVIAN PIVD IRIYND NI DN
99012 1999 IPYNI NV N DIV MMPIN PIYY IXIYUND .NT )N1IPD PLPN PVIN PV NP
PIVN N T DY NTHOINIUN IV ON TI99) 01T NI DNY NXIAPN DY NYPINN G0, MMIPY S D8MIND
NPPOYN MNYIND NXIAPN DY DM DTN IMND 19INI VNAY DI15Y NV 1WINRY DIDYVTIN MMPIN
NV PN HNIWD NN MNIPHY IRIYND N2
DXPNDN MIND MYIAN MDY DMIDIN MNITIY NMPON MAIN NN GOIV 1PIND NIAPW NIANN NN
.PA02 NHLVIN DY MIN DIZHN TOINN NN ,NININN NIIYN 9D ,NMINI NN MAPYNN

INTUN 21909 Narwn 28.1.1

PAPNN ORIYRN NDOYN NN IXMD DDINHN DIDDIN YW D190 TN
2D DY 01D OIDI) MY 10 1195 .9 9IND IRT - MMPY I INIYN MDY NOYN 272 YTNY
.DYPND TIY MY NMTPI NYPYN 1272 § NN NIMY MINNIN 1272 13 1IN NN DMWY OINIUN

DY9NN INIYN /INVI MNIV] 28.1.2

PONIYN MY NVIN (NY NP 765 : 2016) NMYW AP 735 TOI MMPYY INIWUN 2017 120XT1 31 DD
31 VY N7Y NP 92 -5 DY TOA DIMPMAIN NNVIND MNIPIN NNV MNTPI NIINT 90N .57 NNIND
AW D) 86 -5 :2016) 2017 71aNNTA

LIVNN NAT NWNIN L, (7NINDY :1911D) N7V MINNIYHP TN NYI,NIIND DY HNIY DMIINN PMMPYN TNN 28.1.3
2 YN ;2015 9912 .1999 — VIVYNN MIINTD PIND 350 PYD 97y ,0OWN ITOND NYPA TV 197D PINHN
DD NNIINY MHIN DY DXoYAN HY MOPNNN DXPODY DRI Y'Y MAIN NDIIO HHOW DIWNN TTON NN LIYNN
5NN, 19N INNOVH ,NYPIAN NWIN D1 2INNN 30% SW OOV TYND MINT DY DIDIN ITONNN POND NN
NN ,2016 AN 17 DA .1 NN DNY OOYTIN OIMDWN 36 -2 2NN NN Y9N ,2017 9912 15 0PN
DXYNN ITON MR OV ,2016 X912 1 0PN HNN .M DY DTN NINOPN IN 1NN DY SHINHN LIVNN M2
AVNNNA ,N2NN NN .NHINTY INIYUN MNINT MPINN NN YN 192NN LI M O DY N N o
02N 9272 10 7INA 0) NN DADN ODIY .NIANN 119D NMINI NYIN NNMP PRIYN ML DY INPPI
13 -5 5 ©150 YapPNN 2017 DN .TIN PITY NN MINM MINK MYPYN 9272 13 1IN 121,02IN TN

DN 2IN PIINIYND YTON 12V NIVIAN NIANHD NIY NP
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(TUnn) 0010 DIPVWIN - 28 9INA

Mo 28.2

NP NIANN, TN .IINYN NP2 DOPIAN IAPNNY MXNINN IPO¥ YN NIINN DY NDDIN MIWOY N0
MNYN 1257 DIRYNN NP 19ID NMINTPY92 D90 NYD Nyn
MNYN NP DORWN (V7Y 1) 107 : 2016) N7Y 71N 53 TOA IXP YAV ORIYNI MNXNDN ,NITH DIDID TN 11D)
TN MNPV NDYD ,TIAY .V NP XY (N7W N 1,777 :2016) N7YW /N 2,416 TO Y01P9N 2INN 1NN
MMNPNY TOIM NNIM PIN DY TPMNND DYV NMAX XD NIINN DY OHOIHN 2IND ON MPTH TN

JNxmn

MHINO 2PN MNP0 28.3

DOY2NN OMDY NOWN O¥NNY »731 (Derivatives) DX 01DV D1PYWINI WINOYW MV NXIAPN MIIN
NMZY OXININ IX (VAN 12D, 01N IRPP ,PID NOP) NI MYNITN MNND DW DN DIPNN MPWUN
(DN ,09) MNNON PNNN DIYIVIND

:NNIAPN YW DPMNKN (MDA 2I1N) DI DIDION DXPYIN VI 19NY 28.3.1

2017 9an%473 31 09Y

P MY D190 7Y 2993 79
R
(17) 147
(1) (19)
(18)

2016 9an%473 31 DY

WD MY D802 Ty 2993 9
7Y 939910
1 131
1 15
- (11)
2

AP /YN TN

201895y — 2018 INW

2018 >N — 2018 ©N

NYIP /YN YN

2017 920V90 — 2017 ©IN

2017 o0

2017 92nV9D — 2017 XNND

62

O VDNV OXNIN

- ANV NPNAIN
Sell Put

V) WOV OXIN
- IWOIY NPSN
Buy Call

- 12N2IY NPININ
Sell Put

PYV NP

PYV NP

YV Nop
P17V NP

YV Nop
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(TUnn) 0010 DIPVIN - 28 9INa
(TUNN) MIND >PNHN M3’ 28.3
NPYNINY ANTPR MNPOY — MY M) 28.3.2

MNPOY P32 ,NNPNY NN DX PNN NN (POVPN) TN DININ DPMNHD MNNDN >PNNI (NTP) MOY
DOYNNY,DONAP YIRY DINWHNN INY 9 NN WY N MINGI 1919 DMXIND DINODI,NPINNI NPTNY

0N MYSWNN
2017 930873 31
TN NN ONY
MO 10% PO 5% 9”9v3 99993 5% 99953 10%
N7Y 2399991
(5) (2) (2) 2 5 NP2y
(12) (6) (16) 6 11 LY
(17) (8) (18) 8 16 Y51 70
2016 930873 31
799 199 MY
MO 10% MO 5% 09992 9193 5% Y1) 10%
7Y 19991
(3) (2) (3 2 3 NP2y
(11) (5) 5 5 11 LY
(14) (7) 2 7 14 Pankiv

N Ya0N NP 28.4

TIVN 7O 2017 920NTA 31 OV .AYY N Yyavn NON Pon 910 > (OTC) otna nvpnwn N¥apn 28.4.1
TIN DIIDY DOINDN NXIAPN HY VI (NIN YD) DMINN DMDININ DXPYINN YV NNN MY D19Da
AN PO 1 -5 2016 920NTA 31 OPY) DY \PDINDN

003990 (NMANNN) DYDY DN MY NN 28.4.2

2017 920872 31 oYY 12PN S 0>MNNN (OTC — NN yavn) 01N DXPYIND ONY MY NN PonD
(POPN) D> TIN M ,92NNTA 31 PINND OMIPIYN MYAVNN KV PINN YW NPY 2016 120NTa 31 DY)
IRYY DINVNN INY JOW NN TYYI NT M) . PNY DHXIND DD NNMPNY NN NIXY NIN NN
DN MYaVnm 0OYNNY ,00NIP

2017 431873 31

MY 09901 T4y

MO 10% NOIP 5% wmn 9919 5% 99193 10%
7Y 19991
3.120 3.294 3.467 3.640 3.814 A9YT /NTY NIYY
9 4) - 3 7 9T /N7Y TN DN

2016 929873 31
MY 09902 79y

0% 10% VP 5% MmN 99193 5% 9193 10%
N7Y 2399991
3.461 3.653 3.845 4.037 4.229 A9YT /N NTYY
(10) (4) 1 5 8 9T /N7 T DN
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\
olrm(.ue'ﬂ ‘

127792 999) OINTLVY

OYMINDN BIDIN MMTY BY9INA

(Tunn) 0V 0Y9PWIN - 28 MINa

(Tunn) VN yavn !NY 284
ATNNN Y002 9 YY 905N 8NN Yy M7 28.4.3

AIPYTI NN DN DMDINH DXPYIN A2 VYNY IN YA0M T NOY NP NBWN

2017 928473 31

2”nv Y905 NY NN var PR 91 TNYRY N7V MY N7Y
N7Y 23991

390 - 65 11 78 96 140 -
182 - - - - - 167 15
955 - 133 84 3 8 727 -
86 32 6 4 2 7 35 -
82 - - - 48 25 -
(206) - - - - - (28) (178)
(104) - (3) (38) - - (59) 4)
(715) - 43) (6) (15) (136) (515) -
(613) (70) (30) (21) (64) (7) (412) 9
(826) - - - - - (826) -
(1,333) - - - (124) - (750) (459)
(76) (62) (12) - - - (2) -
(2,178) (100) 125 34 (120) 16 (1,498) (635)
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DM MNYI DININ
NP TIY M)

mMmpo

(1) P2 MMM DIANN

TVIN YATD N2IN MM IINN MYPYN
2N MR DY MOV NN
NP PIDOINIYNY MNNDN
a}{plalv

(2) M5 MM DINDY

2N MNN

TPIN I ONIYNRY MINNION
TIIN Y29 MDT MINN DINN
2D

NY NP 6 -3 HY TOA DI DODINA DPYIN IO XY (1)
Y NP 26 -2 DY TOA DI DMDII DIPYOIN HNIND  (2)



127792 999) OINTLVY

3
Glf(ﬁ(.l[% ' DX1NINNDD 02057 MMTY 029INA

(Tunn) 0V 0Y9PWIN - 28 MINa
(Tunn) N yaon *5°0  28.4
(TUnn) N8N Y0202 %0 JY 905N AN Yy M7 28.4.3

2016 928473 31

1o 905 NY NN Ya14 9N 9994 T8 XY N’7Y TN N’7Y

N7Y 93999

711 - 70 13 140 198 290 - DN MY OINNRN
53 - - - - - 30 23 MNTPAY TIY M)
881 - 128 100 2 22 629 - MNPy
143 69 2 2 2 22 46 - (1) NN NN BN
163 - 9 - 44 55 55 - TIIN A9 N2IN TMINN AINK MYPYN
(196) - - - - - (19) (177) 2N NN HY MALIV NN
(147) - - - - (15) (128) 4 NP PAIY IRIUNRY MINNIN
(743) - (45) (5) (24) (165) (504) - DPOD
(604) (64) (52) (49) (8) 9 (410) (12) (2) MY MM DN
(635) - - - - - (457) (178) 2N NN
(906) - - - - - (444) (462) TIIN YATD IRIWNRY MINNON
(60) (49) (5) - - (6) - - TIIN Y29 MIT NN DINN
(1,340) (44) 107 61 156 102 (912) (810) 11D

Y NP 13 -5 DY TO2 DI DD DPYIN YNNI ND (1)
Y NP 38 -5 DY TOA DI DMDIY DIPYIN KNI ND  (2)
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127792 999) VINTVY

L
olrm(.ue'ﬂ ‘

OYTMINDN BIDIN MMTY BY9INA

(Tunn) 02019 9PV - 28 91N
(Tunn) VYN yavn N 284
0399 (MN2NNN) DYDY DN MY M) 28.4.4
DY071919 YANN YILVN NIDY DNMNN ,IINNTI 31 OIIRNT OMIPOYN MYIVHN DY POYNN MYW NPV

(POPN) T 7PN ,NTY MPININT MIAND TYI NN DY MIPYIN YIVN IPRY ,NIN YIVNI DXNPIN D1OIND
11909 DNNINN DINIDDA (NH1ANN DY NN YDYA HH5Y DNPNPN PNNN) PN NN

2017 Hans7a 31

T8 7 NYY
NI 10% PP 5% 09904 99193 5% 99793 10%
7Y 19991
3.120 3.294 3.467 3.640 3.814 A9YT /NI DYV
(7) (4) 71 4 7 N7Y PN NYOIVN
3.737 3.945 4.153 4.360 4.568 VIR /DY NVIYY
10 5 (102) (5) (10) 7Y NPYINI DYV
25.169 26.567 27.965 29.364 30.762 A9YT /7200 YW
2 1 (16) (1) (2) 7Y NPYINI DYV
2016 93128473 31
T 7 V7YY
PP 10% PP 5% 09904 99793 5% 99793 10%
7Y 19991
3.461 3.653 3.845 4.037 4.229 A9YT /DY DYV
(9) (4) 87 4 9 *N1Y PN NYOWN
54.607 57.640 60.674 63.708 66.741 A9YT /927 Ny
10 5 (96) (5) (10) N7Y 9PN NYOIWN
24.323 25.674 27.025 28.377 29.728 A9YT /)00 NYY
3 1 (25) (1) (3) 7Y NIPYINI DYV

VTN XM *

T M9°0  28.5

NPIPNANNN GV YIANT TTHN NIIDN PON ITID YT MNY MNPNY OO PNY T7H 2N NYHNWYN NN 28.5.1
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-\’F 12793 9Y9) DINYOY
Glf(ﬁﬂ[% ' DXTNINND 020N MMTY 0P9INa

(TuNnn) 019 DY9PVWIN - 28 NINA
(Tunn) 11 °92%0  28.5
1992 N =MV NN’ 28.5.2
NINN TN DN DIXHIND NP YTYINT AIWNNNY XTIV DDA DY NN 918D DX PNNN TTH (NT7) dHY
NN OIYAD ONPHNN PNNN DX (NPVPH) NDITHD NNMN,OOPNYN TTHN OIND TAX DI DY NN MNYA BYNNN

DRMNWNN INY DOV NNINA WYY NT NN .)9NY DMIXINN 01002 I1IN DX3IN 12X2 NOPNY NN NN NIINN DY
DN MYOYNN DHYNNI ,D0NIP 1INY»

2017 9ansva 31

09902 99y
NPOY 2% PVIP 1% N MY 99190 1% 919 2%
n7Y 29N
(5) (3) (*)- 3 5 OYPRY TN OIN

YN 1 — N TN D1PDD *

2016 9ans4va 31

09902 9y
POYP 2% PO 1% R LRI 9919 1% 99793 2%
N7Y 939991
(8) 4) (25) 4 9 OMOTINY TN OIN

MY PP 28.6

("N NTOY T NITO 2 NITO) 1IN MNDNX NPAIN MYNNIND INIYR DN MYIN NI2NN DY HIIMINNN 1Y
TIND .DXPX2AN DNV PN INIYN MNP NIAND ¥, NON MMIAMNNT DY GO .OXINNNDI DXPIAN MNXNDMN
NMIINN TNYD N DIVAND TUN ,DMIAPN DNMITN DN NIIND Y DOPOYN MDY NINHN DNIYN
MM NNV NONX DY GO )IDND MNPNRY 192NN YITM NN NNT DY TN .NNNY DY NYVIV NPDININ
NYPAN PTYI MM PNY .ANMYID DX TMYN DXDNN INIYND MNP NN INYN P2 HNID 172NN Y9N, dpoyn
OYTTN DY DOIANN NT MM .HIVP INIDN NYIYND VI TR, N2> MDY HDD,NPDIN NMIAPNNN DY OOTINN

259 MW N7ON DY POYN WY, TTI 1D 39050 ANNN TY NITH PINNY DTN
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-\f 72733 9Y9) DINYOY
Glf(ﬁ(.l[% ' DY1NINNDN 09050 MMTY 0Y9INA

(Tunn) D1V 0I9PWIN - 28 MINA
(Tunn) M N0 28.6

2017 928473 31

[-11 13- K- 25 17)]
799N 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 "N 01902 79vN INa
N7Y 999

- - - - - 715 715 715 17 DYpPav
- - - - - 26 26 26 18,21 0
- - - - - 515 515 543 18 (1) DINKX DNV
- - - - - 182 182 178 20 2 N0 NN
195 80 83 77 46 47 528 455 20 T NIYTO NN
368 29 30 30 11 11 479 399 20 ' NITO NN
- 53 3 54 113 19 242 215 20 DYPIN NYYPY MNNON
172 215 292 254 177 92 1,202 1,051 20 DY INNND NPOPY MXNIN
126 2 2 2 2 43 177 165 20 D3N IN YIVNDONIWNI NN
7 - - - - - 8 6 20 (2) 7O NN X2 MA»NNN
- - - - 14 - 14 14 21 THIN PATY MDT MM DN
868 379 410 417 363 1,650 4,088 3,767
.12 P2 DOYY MINXIN DD D901 TIvD (1)
AYAPDIN 1YY DIIDN DN DIMIVN DIMIVNN (2)
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127792 999) VINTVY

L
mrmf]e’ﬂ ‘

OYMINDN B2DIN MMTHY BY9INA

(Tunn) D1V 0I9PWIN - 28 MINA
(Tunn) M N0 28.6

2016 92871 31

DM OYND
1998 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 N 09901 TN N2
n7Y 93999

- - - - - 743 743 743 17 DPav
- - - - - 38 38 38 18,21 DI
- - - - - 576 576 604 18 (1) DINN DINOIY
- - - - 181 189 370 355 20 2 1970 NN
275 83 77 46 47 39 567 476 20 T NITO AN
53 4 58 121 40 115 391 346 20 DXPIAN NPIPY MNNON
143 220 183 144 59 60 809 686 20 DYINNND NPYPY MINNON
- - - - - 15 15 15 20 DOPI20 N IO NN TN
7 - - - - - 9 6 20 (2) 73100 179N PH2 MA»NNN
478 307 318 311 327 1,775 3,518 3,269
127 X2 0OWH NMINKIN 9915 0’1902 TN (1)
DY PN 15 DITDN DN DONIVN DIMDYNN (2)
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17792 999) VINIVY

L
mrm{ue'ﬂ ‘

OYTMINDN B2DIN MMTY BY9INA

(TuNnn) 009 DY9PVWIN - 28 NINa

00199 DYPYIN HY M MY 28.7
N MY 28.7.1

,72IN TN DXAON ,MIMPY TN INP IIID MYPYN ,D0IN1IN MY DINBN HY 01901 TIvD
DY NN HONYI 2177 IN ONIN NIDT NN DINIT DXNPY NNND DXPI0Y MNI»NNN

0’1902 199y DY TN ;22N DN TIY MPNY NONAN Y PNN DY DDIANN , 2NN MNN DY NN INYN
SYIPYTI 1N 901 ANNN DY MTL INNN (NI2XIY 12> H91D)

“ans4va 31
2016 2017

T a4l
N MY 01903 Mn MY 0903

TR FAIA]

368 362 182 181 20970 230 MMDN
527 481 508 460 T NITO 2N MMDN
- - 423 399 (1) N NHTO 2N NMNN

.20.4 N2 DN /N DITO DIN MNDX NPANAN I2T2 DOVIY (1)
N MNY ND99D 28.7.2
IND INY NIV NPV - BN 28.7.2.1

Forward -n 9>nn a2 wiann )"0 ©02 5y 1798 nn "vin — (Forward) 121N 510
TN PTAY TY NINN DY NAIPNN NI X2 NN Forward -n 9°nn pad nHna mpmn
DT DXPYINY NNPRNND PIY NP VIV

.Black & Scholes 57115 DRNN2 ¥2P3 NN NV — YIN ¥a010 DY NPSIIN

$INN MY DTN 00D DIPVIN Y NN MNY NHD99) 28.7.2.2

2016 925873 31 2017 Hans7a 31
30! 2999 10129 3099 2 29 1929
n7Y 93999

020399 (57”2HNN) 0’V

- - 46 - - 31 DN T MM
- 2 11 - 3 3 DTN 1?)2 DN
- (27) (11) - (3) (23) D) 1)1 DRIV
- - 28 - - - 1759199 PN OV D)
- (25) 74 - - 11

70



17792 999) VINIVY

L
mrmf]e’ﬂ ‘

OYTMINDN B2DIN MMTY BY9INA

M9 - 29 INa

42843 31 D12 NNPNVAY NIYY

2015 2016 2017

n7Y 21N

4,245 4,264 4,424 YINPY DININ MPIN
602 662 676 DMNN OXIXIN MIIN
336 356 380 (1) MINX MDIdN

5,183 5,282 5,480

.DNYHNH MDIIN DD NPV Y PYINT DMWY INHH MDIIA PPV MY MINN MDIN Ioh)

MY19N MYY - 30 9INa

099 %9y 30.1
921873 31 0»2 NNMNVIY MIYY

2015 2016 2017

n7Y 93999

2,570 2,479 2,585 (1) DN NN
384 393 421 MYP MINIIN MMNDOWN IOV
106 109 108 MNNN NN
188 196 216 TYINN NN MINNN

2 2 2 NPINND NYINL NPV

3,250 3,179 3,332
(22) - 22 MY NOY DVTIMP NI MNXPOY NI NIYY

3,228 3,179 3,354

DRI TIY N PHA (NHNRNNA NPY NIPIN 21 -1 N7 0PI 24 : 2015 -1 2016) N7Y MNP 29 TOA V) TN H1D 2017 MHVA (1)

NN MNPN Y 30.2

9312872 31 012 NMNINNHVNY NIYY

2015 2016 2017

N7Y 2395919

2,868 2,741 2,870 YINPY DININ
257 302 326 DINK DMININ
125 136 136 (1) MINN MDION

3,250 3,179 3,332
(22) - 22 Y NOY DVITIMP N NMIRPOY NI TIYY

3,228 3,179 3,354

DY) NV IPYINY DIMPY Aia}aRppm] MY aPyva MY MINN MDIdN 2 n»PY (1)
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17792 999) VINIVY

L
mrm{ue'ﬂ ‘

OYTMINDN B2DIN MMTY BY9INA

PNV N0 MIRNHN - 31 9INa
7313872 31 D12 NHPNVNY MIYY

2015 2016 2017
IZURIN AT

497 512 532 NI MNNM IOV
227 254 266 DYDI9
17 7 2 DYTIAN MM DXPANDN MIAIN
208 210 218 920 MINRNIN
158 152 140 NPINN NINXIN
58 53 50 MNNSM NN
95 MYNVNT MPINI MI2N YT DY MINXIN IINN
(38) (36) (32) MINDN MYN NOOWY
71 82 83 MINN

1,198 1,234 1,259

nYYY NTNIN MNSN - 32 9INa
932873 31 012 NNPNDNVY MIYY
2015 2016 2017
N7Y 2395919

207 241 254 (1) DI MINNIM 1DV
24 21 23 MNNSM NN
6 9 9 nman
56 52 59 MNP OV Iy
30 25 23 NPINN NINXIN
©) ) ) 99 MZMHVNT MPINII MIIN T Y MNNN INN
MINDN MYN NOOWY
15 20 20 MINN

329 367 388
:95"2 (1)
6 5 5 MANY YINMWO TIDIND NNNY NMNZY MXXIN 1OV
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-\f 12793 9Y9) DINYOY
Glf(ﬁ(.l[% ' DX1NINNN 020N MMTY 0P9INA

I ,MINN (MNHN) MDD - 33 9IN2

422873 31 DY NNNDNY NIYY

2015 2016 2017

n7Y 21N

MHANNX MOIdN

1 1 2 ) ,NYpPYnY ]”7‘[)1 VP VIO windmn N9

1 2 - 101D DMINT DMDIVY DIDIN TITTI NMVION

6 - - YOI ;009K NN MY P2 MUION

4 - - (ARL=)AP) OYPINII OY02) TIY NTID TOIN 97001

4 3 25 (1) MMHNN MYIdN

16 6 27 MINK MDIIN IO

MINX NN

(15) (29) (24) (2) Y03 ,231DIN NI2N MNPV X2 NINNIN

(10) (5) (4) NPV NYIIN NPPI PHI2 IMDY

D>PINII D302 MNTI MINIIN VAP VIDT I TON

(4) (6) (5) (6N bin}a)y)

(18) (14) - D»YM YN DYDY )2 TON

(10 (1) (3) MINN MIRNIN

(57) (55) (36) MINK MRNIN "D

(41) (49) 9 10, MHINN NMIRNHN
N7 NP 31 - 55 NN NPIND NPNT NYPYN YINN N7Y PN 21 - D DY TO2 NI 1P MDD 2017 MHYI MINK MDIdN (1)
MNPV P TINNN .N7Y DI 21 - 3DV TOA DI, NI OPHN MDY WIIHIN TOAN IP2¥2 MY 2017 TV ONNIN NN NPY PH MNNIN 2

DYV Y1AP YIDT NYOIN 12 N7Y 1D 11 -91 TN NN PI N7Y 1M 15 -5 HY TO2 MININ 7N P2 ,MY9D 2016 MV MIIN
.D»YMN N1
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-\’f 12793 9Y9) DINYOY
ol lnGe” DX1NINNN 020N MMTY 0P9INA

0) 112999 HINNIN ~ 34 9IN2

42843 31 D12 NNPNVAY NIYY

2015 2016 2017
7Y 939995

$1991 MIN

12 5 6 I MUIdN

9 2 - I ORIV YIIXD DPNNN TTRD NTINN SV

21 7 6 DY MODIdN "D

$19991 NN

PIN PN DXTTHIN DTN DDA DIPWINN TONN

(8) (10 9 TOOM AN TIT

(112) (101) (105) 2 MRNIN

(1) (5) (7) POYON MYWI DMIYN V) TOMN

- - (2) 1O ,ONIY 1DIND DYPNNN TR DTSN YWD

(1) - - MINK

(122) (116) (123) PN MNNIN 51D

(101) (109) (117) 10,1121 NN

09NN YY 920N - 35 NINa
YNV nNIAPH MIN MYV Na VNN NIV 9271 DYVHS  35.1
93N N NYY 35.1.1

:2017 - 2015 DMWY NIIND DOOMNMIIN DONOINWVY PNY e
26.5% — 2015
25% — 2016
24% — 2017

2016—'ywNin (216 /ON) NDIIN DN NP NPPIXNY PIND NX NDION NNODN NIYIN 2016 IN2 4 DM
T2 1.5% 5S¢ ywa 19N 2016 MWN YN ,MNAN DN NV DTN ,IN0N P2, YAP VN ()Y nn”)
YW THIYNY NPYPN NPIN) TPHI95 MZY»NN PIN MMYIA Dapnn 2016 920872 31 DA .25% Yy TNWY
23% -1 2017 THWN NN 24% -2 MNAN DN NYY NTNN NN P2 ,YaAP IWN (2018 -) 2017 DNIWH IPN
2016 MV N7Y PN 22 -5 HY NVIPI NNVLINKY DXNTIN DXONIN DY DMPYN NYIWN .2018 MWN HNN

2229 ©NXINN DN HINYYY DNNNA OXAVIND MNNTHN MNPNY DIIVN DY0ONN

PN 1961-N75WNN (WTN NDV) NDION DN NTIPY 188 NPXN MNIWI2 DOMHD 2012 N 12 DM
VIR — 29 990N NINNIYN JPNY NYY NNNNA YAPIY T ,NTIPAY K87 PYD PN INN0NI ("N Tpan”
nYIaPa KINY XY MNNIVYNL NYPNY ONIWN 10NN 0019w (IFRS) D»mIND»2 2905 NvT »PN
MYWn NN 9NY) DMADIN NMINITA IMN N1 1PN DX G ,2010-2011 DHN NIV 1230 NIA»NN NDIINN
-12012 ©HN MY 2D NYWN AN GPIN TININ INNDNA NTIPIY 202 NPXN DOND 2014 5511 31 D»2

.2013
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-\’f 12793 9Y9) DINYOY
ol lnGe” DX1NINNN 020N MMTY 0P9INA

(Twnn) NOI1dNN YY 0XON - 35 9INa
(Tunn) HNIYWa NXAPN 93N MY N3 ONN NAYAD 9373 VIS 35.1

PO MYPYN NP9 PIND 9PN Mavh 35.1.2

YPINY :19ND) 1980-KX7NDWN , MNXIPNA NI MYPYN TYTYD PINM 1959 -0MYUn )N MYpYn YYD NN 9 Dy
MALNY IN NYPYN SPIYNY INITN 7IVIRD DY DY THYN 110 NXIAPN YYD PINY ()N MYpYn TPy
2Y NIPN NN MYPYN TIDY SPINT WIAPIY DININD OPPI NNMN MAVNN .(HNIN MAVN NHON”) DN
Y2N51 DXYNIPNRN OMIPOYN DININD .OIWINDN DIDYINI MYPYNN WX DPIYY NN 1IN DM
90 DY PPN DI Y9 NPIN NN MYNNNI WP WIDIT MYPYNN TIND D900)0n WY : 0N NWIND
SY9971M Y02) NOYON ; MNYIN ANDA YAPIY TYINI NPIDNN NN ; NTIVIN NMINNIYNN NV DOMN) MNIVN
LRI NOTHIN IN DYTIVN NIANHD NOTHIN ; NN T HY DNYIDT TYNHD DNV 7 -0 NNAN KOV NMPNY IWINDD
NODINA IN DINPH N2> NIDINA ,NMAVNN MDD IINNDI MALVNN DIVXAD DYDY NDYY DININA NTNIY N

JON DININ NPLMNDIN MIAND ITIY NI TY .DNPIAN NN DIDON 29D ,NTHNN FWIN

1959 - V7SUNN NN MPYN TPYY PIND PPPH N

92 ONMYYN HY9N7 NITINA DX TMY NXIAPN MIAN XOYaNN PON ,NIIND NMINNIY MVAYN NYT NNND DRNNA
MYN SNN PINT MXNN NN ONN MIALNY MIAN JMX NPNIT 1I-O¥) PIN PN DN NITHID »MINN
10% N GTVIND SYONNN MIAN JMN DY NIMNN INDION DY INY DNN NPV ,TI0 OXNNA TR 2011
NPIDMTY YITD NPWY PIN NDIDA 72y ,2013 VOININI 5 OPA YD, IN (2013 MIWD) 7% -1 (2011-2012 DNOWY)
VPPN PN PINT YD YA 12Y,2013 -)'ywnin ,(2014-1 2013 DNIYD DXPNN YT MIYND NPYPN MNPIN) DININD
DYTNYN D¥XONN IR ONINTN MIRIN NN TIVNY 1) XD 1T A0V NN, 2012 MIVD DN 2DVPNITVA
NNIN NMIIN MY ,NNY NTHRYI NPTNN DXONN MYV ToY 15 DOV XYNI DHN NIV DIN O»PnnY
0N NV 23D DNYUN VDY DMADIN JIPIMNITL JNDY DNN MIXNIN DX ,NNIYI PNIPY 29 DY, MPOIMOIN

% 2NN MANNHN MNTPHRN NN DD MI1IND

SYTYN PIN DTN DN INYY 29 Y WD 2013 -1 2012 ,2011 DNIWY NDIDN DNRY MNYTN
0NVIN DINNIN NHPIYHY NYYN NRNN  .a

NN :PNY) 1959-0WNN NN MYPYN TITY PIND NYY IR 69 /0N PPN PPNy 2012 920201 5 011
NYYN NNIINA NN PINND NIDN DTN DHN NV IDDPY MIIND NN DN DIDWNY TN WINNN,("NYWin
DXNNIN PNIVINY 17X2 DN DNINHD NNMD NPRIT PP ,NYYN NN NN 2XNNY 1INDY MIaN 1D ¥yap)
1PN MNDND AWNR ,NNAPN MIIN 9 IVHNN 2013 MV TONNA (72010 MIINND DN :PNY) DNV
-5 5V 702 N¥IAPA DIXNIANN DMIVN DXNNIN NIN NN PYNY YYD NIRNN DX DINND )20 NPVINDY
TN IMINA NP NIN ,ORNNA .10% NN DMIVNNN DINNIN P2 20NN DHN NV .N7Y NPIN 203
DNNNA .N7Y P 20 -5 DY TOA 20NN MIANN DN DIVYN I DIDVIV DOON NINSINI NTN NPNI
-5 5V O (NYYN NRIND TTNI) YNMWYN YN WPYNno NANINN NIAND ,NYYN IXNNDY NN NVONND

TIIRND NN TTRY NIAND,MTN TVIND ND) 2017 NIV DIN TY N7Y NP 15

1969-v75vnN ,(QYDN) NIYINN TYY PIN 49PN MAvH 35.1.3

Y7y NNV MASNN ,107Ya »9-10I19 DINTOY 7Y NN DINIOY M2T9) N¥IPN MIINND POM NI1NN
795 DRNNAY .1969-VOUNN (D) NPVWYNN TITY PINI TTNNI 7NPIMYYN MIIN 111 (17Y2 NN INN
)N NPIPOYN N ,MA0NY NPNOT I

.DYTNIN DNV NN N

DIV MIYN HNN DMNMY DPMY DMWY NYIYYI DDA INDNY MNYIN NI NPANY MINXIN NN .2
INDNY NN YN

Y97 SV INNAY DXWNYNN Y1 DXVIVI DY DNV 8 TUNI NNNOT .)
STAR DI 1P MOV MN2N DY DXTNINGD NMIMT NYIND MIVON .7

VIIYNN (D) MIWYNN TITYD PINM 9 Y DHRN MNVIYY TAINKD NITMYHN MNNDH NN MI2N NI2NN
11969 -
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17792 999) VINIVY

L
o:rm(.ue'i: ‘

OYTMINDN B2DIN MMTY BY9INA

(TuNnN) NYINN JY ION - 35 NINA
HNIYIY NINNH NP MIAN MO N ONN NAD 9393 DYV 35.2

AV MININD DN OIPIN 29D NIMIY IRV INKD NITHINRNDN MIINN
: DN YN MI2N DY NPPOYN MYYIN HY DIONN OMIPIYN DNN M NWY

TPYIN ;20% - MO ; 18% - NPNIPIN; 9% - PNV ;5 25% - TIDIN ;15% - 12705 19% - PDI9 ; 16% - 1IN
.25% TY - 0 ;(28% -5 2018 9N 1 OYN ONN) 43% -2 27NN ; (2017 527982 1 OYH DN 19%) 20% -
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nciependent Auditor s keport on
Lonsoldated Hnancial statements

To the Directors and Shareholders of the Company
Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.
Eusébio - CE

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A. (“the
Company”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2017, the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A. as at December 31,
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company and its subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements included in the
Accountant Professional Code of Ethics (“Codigo de Etica Profissional do Contador”) and in the
professional standards issued by the Brazilian Federal Accounting Council (“Conselho Federal de
Contabilidade”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company and subsidiaries or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Brazilian and
international standards on auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Brazilian and international standards on auditing, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s and subsidiaries internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s and
subsidiaries ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company and subsidiaries to
cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

KPMG Auditores Independentes, uma sociedade simples brasileira e firma- KPMG Auditores Independentes, a Brazilian entity and a member firm of the
membro da rede KPMG de firmas-membro independentes e afiliadas a KPMG KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International
International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), uma entidade suica Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.




— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with management among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Fortaleza, March 05, 2018

KPMG Auditores Independentes
CRC 2SP014428/0-6
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Jodo Alberto da Silva Neto
Accountant CRC RS-048980/0-0 T-CE



Trés Coracoes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated statements of financial position as of 31 December 2017 and 2016

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Assets

Current

Cash and cash equivalents

Deposits

Trade receivables
Inventories
Recoverable taxes
Income tax receivable
Other current assets

Non-current

Judicial deposits

Loans to related parties
Other non-current assets
Deferred tax assets
Investments

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Total assets

Note

O 03 N

2017 2016
113,110 86,524
3,508 2418
472,296 393,469
372,189 377,163
32,635 37,798
13,268 14,030
19,238 14,114
1,026,244 925,516
8,655 8,780
21,479 7,908
6,198 7,765
11,017 14,299
4236 4211
284,204 242,291
282,857 268,456
618,646 553,710
1,644,890 1,479,226

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Liabilities

Current

Short term loans
Trade payables
Income tax payables

Employees and other payroll related liabilities

Proposed dividends
Interest on equity payable
Payable taxes

Other current liabilities

Non-current

Long term loans

Other non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provision for legal proceedings

Equity

Share capital
Translation reserve
Retained earnings

Total liabilities

Note

15
16

17
23.d
18
19
20

15
20
22
21

23.a
23.b
23.e

2017 2016
224,233 298,804
233,675 151,143

27 1,253
50,162 42,134
45,704 59,268
47915 43,938
23,976 27,724
19,856 36,335

645,548 660,599
151,525 134,243
4,043 2,565
6,816 9,364
18,166 19,518
180,550 165,690
273,442 272,370
(91,917) (99,228)
637,267 479,795
818,792 652,937
1,644,890 1,479,226




Trés Coracoes Alimentos S.A.
Consolidated statements of income

Years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Note 2017 2016
Revenue 24 3,719,899 3,102,874
Cost of sales 25 (2,717,412) (2,286,148)
Gross profit 1,002,487 816,726
Selling and marketing expenses 26 (572,188) (472,701)
General and administrative expenses 27 (109,112) (89,881)
Equity method 12 25 (394)
Other income (expenses), net (15) 1,029
Operating profit 321,197 254,779
Finance income 28 11,988 11,326
Finance expenses 28 (40,167) (32,566)
Profit before income tax 293,018 233,539
Income tax expenses 22 (36,958) (44,731)
Profit for the year 256,060 188,808

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Trés Coracoes Alimentos S.A.
Consolidated statements of comprehensive income

Years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Note 2017 2016
Profit for the year 256,060 188,808
Foreign currency translation differences 23.b 7,311 6,272
Comprehensive income for the year 263,371 195,080

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Trés Coracoes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated statements of changes in equity

Years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Balance as of 31 December 2015
Dividends distributed relative to 2015
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation differences

Total other comprehensive loss:

Internal equity changes
State VAT and Federal tax incentives

Profit destination:
Legal reserve

Revaluation reserve adjustment in investee
Interest on equity credit
Dividends proposed

Reserve for profit to be distributed

Balance as of 31 December 2016
Dividends distributed relative to 2016
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation differences

Total other comprehensive loss:

Internal equity changes
Capitalization of tax incentive

State VAT and Federal tax incentives

Profit destination:
Legal reserve

Interest on equity credited
Dividends proposed

Reserve for profit to be distributed

Balance as of 31 December 2017

Retained earnings

Share Legal Tax Profit to Translation Accumulated

capital reserve incentives distribute adjustments profit Total
272,370 32,716 157,782 175,004 (105,500) - 532,372
- - - (1,445) - - (1,445)

- - - - - 188,808 188,808

) B N - 6,272 - 6,272

- - - - 6,272 188,808 195,080

- - 36,740 - - (36,740) -

- 9,493 - - - (9,493) -
. - - (850) - - (850)
- - - - - (47,500) (47,500)
- - - - - (24,720) (24,720)

- - - 70,355 - (70,355) -
- 9,493 36,740 69,505 - (188,808) (73,070)
272,370 42,209 194,522 243,064 (99,228) - 652,937
. - - (12) - - (12)

- - - - - 256,060 256,060

B . . - 7311 - 7311

- - - - 7,311 256,060 263,371

1,072 - (1,072) - - B _

- - 54,730 - - (54,730) -

- 12,479 - - - (12,479) -
- - - - - (51,800) (51,800)
) ; B - - (45,704) (45,704)

- - - 91,347 - (91,347) -
1,072 12,479 53,658 91,347 - (256,060) (97,504)
273,442 54,688 248,180 334,399 (91,917) - 818,792

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Trés Coracoes Alimentos S.A.
Consolidated statements of cash flows
Years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization
Provision for legal proceedings
Other income (expenses), net
Equity method

Financing expenses, net
Income tax expenses

Interest paid, net
Income tax paid

Change in:

Trade receivables

Inventories

Recoverable and payable taxes, net

Judicial deposits

Trade payables

Employees and other payroll related liabilities
Other current and non-current assets and liabilities

Net cash flows provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in deposits

Payment for acquisition of operations
Share capital increase in joint-venture
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets
Acquisition of fixed assets
Investments in intangible assets
Long-term loans to related parties

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from loans
Repayment of loans
Interest on equity paid
Dividend paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of year

Note 2017 2016
256,060 188,808

34,707 30,859
(1,352) (1,170)
15 (1,029)

(25) 394

28,179 21,240

36,958 44,731
(31,241) (26,139)
(22,998) (45,855)

300,303 211,839
(77,119) (90,840)
4,629 (106,566)
(16,160) (11,194)

125 19

82,532 49,963

8,028 8,258
(987) (1,717)

301,351 59,762

(1,029) 759
(30,500) (53,582)
- (4,605)

1,856 2,467
(58,948) (39,002)
(10,383) (5,454)
(12,413) (7,766)
(111,417) (107,183)

15.d 503,937 464,656
15.d (564,067) (389,261)
15.d (43,938) -
15.d (59,280) (101,446)
(163,348) (26,051)
26,586 (73,472)

86,524 159,996

113,110 86,524
26,586 (73,472)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Trés Coragoes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General information

Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A. and its controlled entities are an industrial and commercial group
of companies, which operates in Brazil, in producing and selling branded coffee products,
multibeverage single portion capsules and machines, powdered juices, chocolate drinks and
corn meal products. The Group is also active in green coffee exports, lending Away-From-
Home machines and operation of cafeterias.

The Company controls the entities Cafeterias Trés Coragdes Ltda. and Café Trés Coragdes S.A.,
which controls the entity Principal Comércio e Industria de Café Ltda., all together referred to
as “the Group”. The Company is part of a joint-venture with Caffitaly System S.p.A., whereby it
holds 50% share of company 3Caffi Industria ¢ Comércio de Capsulas S.A. (“3Caffi”). 3Caffi is
not consolidated in this report, since the Group no longer controls it.

The Company is located at Rua Santa Clara, 100, Parque Santa Clara, Eusébio, Ceara, Brazil.

The Group is currently the largest group in roasted and ground coffee business in Brazil, and
owns the coffee and other food brands of Santa Clara, Kimimo, Trés Corag¢des, Pimpinela,
Principal, Fino Grao, Café Doutor, Café Opgao, Café Divindpolis, Café Geronymo, Estrada
Real, Caf¢ Leticia, Itamaraty, Londrina, Claralate, Dona Clara, Claramil, Frisco, Tornado, Tres,
Iguagu, Cruzeiro, Amigo, Cirol, Cirol Real, Realmil, Toko and Astoria. The Apollo brand will
be used as a result of a Licence agreement, as mentioned in Note 14 to these consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s industrial facilities are located in the states of Ceara, Rio Grande do Norte, Minas
Gerais and Rio de Janeiro, and its distribution centers are located in almost all states of Brazil.
In addition to that, the Group owns green coffee processing plants in the states of Minas Gerais.
Part of the facilities used by the Group is leased from one of its related parties, Trés Coragdes
Imoveis Armazéns Gerais e Servigos Ltda., which is not consolidated in this report, since it is
not part of the Group structure presented below. Trés Coragdes Imoveis Armazéns Gerais e
Servicos Ltda. is owned by Sdo Miguel Holding e Investimentos S.A. (50%) and Strauss Coffee
B.V. (50%).
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Trés Coragoes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had the following structure:

Strauss Coffee Sdo Miguel
B.V Fundo
50% 50%
Trés Coragdes Caffitaly System
Alimentos S.A S.P.A
99.9% 99.9% 50% 50%
Café Trés Cafeterias Trés 3Catfi I’n dpstria ©
Coragdes S.A Coragoes Ltda. Comércio de
Capsulas S.A
99.9%

A4

Principal Ind. E
Com. Ltda.

Business combination

Companhia Iguacu de Café Soluvel

In June 2016, the business acquisition contract related to brands of instant coffee and related
products with Companhia Iguagu de Café Soluvel was approved by Administrative Council for
Economic Defense (CADE). The official announcement was published on 08 June 2016. As a
result of the acquisition, the brands added to Group’s portfolio were Iguacu, Cruzeiro and
Amigo, increasing the Company market share mainly in the southern region of Brazil with the
brands Iguacu and Cruzeiro.

Consideration transferred

According to the contract, the transaction date was 28 June 2016, in the total amount of
R$ 73,582. The amount of R$ 53,582 was paid through an escrow account transferred to
Companhia Iguagu de Café Soluvel and R$ 20,000 was to be paid as follows:
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Trés Coragoes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

R$ 17,000 paid in March 2017, with interest of 100% CDI; and
RS$ 3,000 to be paid in 5 installments, with interest, in June of each year starting 2017.

The remaining amount payable as of 31 December 2017 is R$ 2,722 (Note 20).

Transferred assets and incurred liabilities
There were no liabilities transferred in the business combination and in the opinion of the
Company’s legal advisers, there were also no contingent liabilities.

As of 31 December 2016, Management estimated the value of the transferred assets. On 23 June
2017, Management received the purchase price allocation of Iguagu acquisition performed by
Emnst & Young Assessoria Empresarial Ltda. The impact of this independent valuation is
presented below:

Before After
independent independent
valuation Adjustment valuation
Acquisition cost
Consideration transferred, paid or to be paid 73,582 - 73,582
Identifiable assets
Brands and trademarks 11,000 7,330 18,330
List of customers 34,400 (12,020) 22,380
Total identifiable assets 45,400 (4,690) 40,710
Goodwill
Before After
independent independent
valuation Adjustment valuation
Acquisition cost:
Transferred resources, paid or to be paid 73,582 - 73,582
Net identifiable assets (45,400) (4,690) (40,710)
28,182 4,690 32,872

Goodwill (Note 14)

All adjustments in items b and ¢ above were recognized in these consolidated financial

statements.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board (IASB).

These consolidated financial statements were approved by management for issuance on 05

March 2018.



Trés Coragoes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the historical cost, except
for derivative financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss.

For further information regarding the measurement of these assets and liabilities, see Note 4
regarding significant accounting policies.

Functional currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”), which,
in accordance with IAS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - is the Brazilian
Real (R$), except for the export business of green coffee, of which the functional currency is the
United States Dollar. The Group presents its financial statements in Brazilian Real, which is the
presentation currency.

Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or both in the period of the revision and in future periods, if the revision
affects both the current and future periods.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, significant judgments made by
management in applying the Group’s accounting policies and the key sources of estimation
uncertainty were the same as those applied to the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016, except for the change in useful life of fixed asset items, as mentioned
in Note 4.f.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is included in the following notes:

Note 7 - Provision for doubtful debt accounts;

Note 13 - Useful life of fixed asset items;

Note 14 - Impairment test: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, including the
recoverability of development costs;

Note 21 - Recognition and measurement of provisions for legal proceedings: key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.
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Trés Coragoes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

Note 22 - Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against which
tax loss carryforwards can be used;

Note 29 - Financial instrument fair value measurements;

Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the
methods described in Note 29. Where applicable, further information about the assumptions
made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

Derivatives

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their quoted market price, if available.
If a quoted market price is not available, then fair value is estimated by discounting the
difference between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the residual
maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds).

For further information regarding the fair value hierarchy, see Note 29 on financial instruments.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently within the Group
entities.

Basis of consolidation

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method - i.e. when control is
transferred to the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into
consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The consideration transferred does not include (this means it is net of) amounts related to
the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or
loss. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in
accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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(iii)

(iv)

(i)

Trés Coragoes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognized in profit
or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Transactions costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that
the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when
necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Group.

Loss of control

When applicable, upon the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the
subsidiary.

In case of loss of control, the retained interest would be accounted for based on the level of
influence retained by the Company in the relevant entity.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
intra-Group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency of the Group
according to the exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction. Exchange rate differences
arising upon the settlement of monetary items or upon reporting monetary items at exchange
rates different from that by which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in
previous financial statements, are charged to specific income or expense items according to the
nature of the monetary item (exchange rate differences in respect of trade receivables, trade
payables and foreign currency loans are recognized in financing costs, etc.).

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the statement
of financial position.
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c.l

Trés Coragoes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities derived from foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, if applicable, are translated to Brazilian reals using the
exchange rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to
Brazilian reals using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in
the foreign currency translation reserve (translation reserve) in equity. When a foreign operation
is disposed of, so that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative
amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, while retaining control, the relevant proportion of
the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group disposes
only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that includes a foreign operation,
while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

When applicable and the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign currency gains and
losses arising from such item are considered part of the net investment in the foreign operation
and are recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in the translation reserve in
equity.

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments
The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities
category.

Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities - Recognition and
derecognition

The Group initially recognizes loans and receivables on the date when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred,
or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such derecognized financial
assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognized as a separate asset or liability.
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(iii)

Trés Coragoes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

A financial instrument is recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the Group’s contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the Group transfers the financial
assets to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the
assets. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits itself to purchase or sell the asset. Financial liabilities are
derecognized if the Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire, are discharged or
cancelled.

Non-derivative financial assets - Measurement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held-for-
trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Directly attributable transaction costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognized in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and deposits that can be withdrawn
immediately. Cash equivalents also include short-term deposits where the deposit period on the
day of deposit does not exceed three months, and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Loans and receivables

Loans and other receivables, which are not quoted in an active market are non-derivative
financial instruments that are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses (see Note 4.h).

Should it become applicable, non-current receivables would be stated at their present value. The
interest rate used in order to calculate the present value is composed of the time value of the
receivable according to the currency of the receivable, plus the specific risk component of each
customer. Income in respect of interest is recorded over the period of the receivable as financial
income.

Non-derivative financial liabilities - Measurement

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group routinely uses derivative financial instruments in order to hedge against risks
relating to prices of commodities and against foreign currency risks arising from its operating,
financing and investing activities. The derivative financial instruments are comprised mainly of
forward transactions and ,when applicable, options on currencies and of forward transactions
and options on commodities. Nonetheless, derivatives not considered accounting hedges are
accounted for as financial assets/liabilities and are presented at fair value through profit and loss
as follows:

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value both initially and subsequent to
initial recognition, and are stated at fair value according to the market value of registered
instruments and the stated market value of forward currency contracts.

Changes in fair value are recognized as income or expense as incurred. Gains and losses on
commodity forward transactions are presented under cost of sales whereas other gains and
losses are presented under financing costs.

Inventories

Inventory is measured at the lower of the weighted average cost and net realizable value. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to finish the sale.

Inventory includes certain spare parts and maintenance equipment, which will be used in up to
one year.

Provision for slow-moving or obsolete inventory is recorded when deemed necessary by
Management.

The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labor, other
direct cost and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity).

Investments
The investments in invested companies are valued by equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position and in statement of income

Fixed assets

Recognition and measurement
Fixed assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation (see below) and impairment
losses (see Note 4.h).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, an estimate of
the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located
(when the Group has an obligation to dismantle and remove the asset or to restore the site), and,
when applicable, capitalized borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.
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Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are determined by comparing the net proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized net within “other income” or
“other expenses”, if relevant, in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditures
Improvements and enhancements are added to the cost of the assets, whereas maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Leasehold improvements

The construction costs on leased property, which will be transferred to the lessor’s ownership at
the end of the rental period, are amortized over the expected rental period on a straight-line
basis.

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of each component of an item of fixed assets, other than land that is not depreciated.

Management decided to adopt an annual average rate for the principal depreciation groups as
presented below, instead of the depreciation rate ranges, presented until 2016:

%

2017 2016
Buildings 2,01 2,13
Machinery and equipment 6,07 7,23
Vehicles 20,31 20,09
Furniture and other equipment 10,61 9,46
Leasehold improvements 2,02 2,20

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed on every reporting date
and the rates used for tax purposes may differ from the above rates.

In 2017, Management hired an independent assessment of fixed and intangible assets useful
lifes. In the table above is presented the depreciation rate used up to 31 December 2016,and the
revised rates used prospectively starting 1 January 2017.

An asset is depreciated from the date it is ready for use, meaning the date it reaches the location
and condition required for it to operate in the manner intended by Management.

Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, and is
presented as part of intangible assets. In subsequent periods, goodwill is measured at cost, less
accumulated impairment losses. See also Note 4.h.
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Other intangible assets

The intangible assets include brands, trademarks, software, distribution networks, list of
customers, license agreement, and non-competition agreements that were acquired as part of
business combination.

Amortization

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are measured at cost net of accumulated amortization
and impairment losses. Amortization is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets from the date they are available for use.

Management decided to adopt an annual average rate for the principal amortization groups as
presented below, instead of amortization rate ranges, presented until 2016:

%

2017 2016
Software 30,68 21,41
Brands and trademarks - specifically those acquired in 3Corac¢des Sul business
combination 20,77 21,01
List of customers (presented as other in Note 14) 10 10
Other 23,75 26,20

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed on every reporting date.

In 2017, Management hired an independent assessment of fixed and intangible assets useful
lifes. In the table above are presented the amortization rates used up to 31 December 2016, and
the revised rates used prospectively starting 1 January 2017.

Goodwill and brands, except for those brands acquired in 3Cora¢des Sul and Iguagu business
combinations, the amortization rate of which is presented above, have an indefinite useful life
and are not amortized for reporting purposes. For tax purposes, Goodwill is amortized,
according to Brazilian tax legislation.

The Group examines the useful life of an intangible asset that is not periodically amortized, at
least once a year, in order to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support
the decision that the intangible asset has an indefinite useful life.

Impairment
Non-financial assets

Timing of impairment testing

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred
tax assets - see Notes 4.d and 4.m, respectively) are examined on each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For assets, including intangible assets, that have
indefinite useful lives, the Group estimates the recoverable amounts at least once a year. An
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount.

For the purposes of impairment testing, the goodwill acquired in a business combination is
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allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of income in accordance with the nature of
the item that has been impaired. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating
units (CGU) are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis.
Goodwill impairment losses are classified as other expenses in the statement of income.

Calculation of the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its net selling price (fair value less costs to sell). In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Reversal of impairment

Impairment losses recognized in previous periods are reexamined every reporting period in
order to determine whether there are any indications that the losses have decreased or no longer
exist. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount, but only if the carrying amount after the reversal of the
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount net of depreciation or amortization, that
would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized. Reversals of
impairment losses are included in the statement of income. Impairment losses in respect of
goodwill are not reversed.

Non-derivative financial assets

The impairment of financial assets, which are not presented at fair value adjusted through profit
and loss, including the trade receivables’ balance, is examined when objective evidence
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows
from such assets.

The financial statements include special provisions in respect of bad debts, which in
management opinion, adequately reflect the loss arising from those debts the collection of
which is doubtful. Management determination of the adequacy of the provision is based, inter
alia, on an evaluation of the risk, by considering the available information on the financial
position of the debtors, the volume of their business and an evaluation of the security received
from them. Bad debts, which according to management opinion are unlikely to be collected, are
written-off.

An impairment loss in respect to the receivables balance, which is measured at amortized cost,
is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate, and is recognized
as selling and marketing expense in the statement of income.

Individually significant receivable balances are tested for impairment on an individual basis.

The remaining customer balances are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit
risk characteristics.
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An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized, and the reversal is recognized in the statement of
income.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money. The Group considers the present value of the liability,
to be equivalent to the future value, as the differences are not material.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, disclosure is provided of a contingent liability, except when the
possibility of the outflow of economic benefits is considered remote.

Government grants

Government grants are recorded in profit or loss when there is reasonable assurance that the
subsidy will be received or compensated and the conditions established for the subsidy will be
achieved by the Group. Afterwards, the revenue recognized in profit or loss is retained in equity.

The types of government grants received by the Group and their respective tax treatment are
described in Note 23.e.

Revenue

Goods sold

Revenue from the sales of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is
recognized by the Group when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is no expected continued
management involvement with the goods and the revenue can be measured reliably.

If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the
discounts are recognized as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognized.

Financial income and expenses

Financial income comprises interest income on deposits invested, financial income from
financial leases, and gains on derivatives (other than commodities) that are recognized in the
statement of income.

Financial expenses comprise interest expenses on loans and borrowings and foreign currency
variation gains and losses, net.

In the cash flow reports, interests received and interests paid are presented as part of cash flows
from operating activities. Dividends paid are presented under financing activities.
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Income tax expenses
Income tax expenses comprise current and deferred tax. Income tax expenses are recognized in
the statement of income, unless they relate to a transaction or event recognized directly in

equity.

Current tax

Current tax (in Brazil: “IRPJ” and “CSLL”) comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on
the taxable income or loss for the year and, when applicable, any adjustment to tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, considering also the effect of government grants as described in
Notes 22.c and 23.e.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxes are recognized in relation to temporary differences between accounting balances
of assets and liabilities and the corresponding balance amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred
income tax is not recognized for:

temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements to the extent
that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for tax loss carryforwards, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be generated in
the future. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. Those, which may be relevant to the Group are set out
below. The Group does not plan to adopt these standards early.

IFRS 9 (2014), Financial instruments (hereinafter - “IFRS 97)

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
Under IFRS 9, financial assets are classified and measured based on the business model in
which they are held and the characteristics of their contractual cash flows. IFRS 9 introduces
additional changes relating to financial liabilities. The IASB currently has an active project to
make limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 and to
add new requirements to address the impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.
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IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, and early adoption
was permitted.

The impact of IFRS 9 on the Group’s financial statements refers only to financial assets
impairment tests, which would have changed the estimation of provision for doubtful debts.
Management estimated the impact on these consolidated financial statements as if [FRS 9 was
effective for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, and the result is presented below:

Before IFRS 9 With

IFRS 9 Impact IFRS 9
Provision for doubtful debts:
Balance as of 31 December 2015 5,901 1,123 7,024
Balance as of 31 December 2016 4,445 3,577 8,022
Expense (reversal) in the year ended 31 December 2016 (1,456) 2,454 998
Balance as of 31 December 2016 4,445 3,577 8,022
Balance as of 31 December 2017 7,207 (627) 6,580
Expense (reversal) in the year ended 31 December 2017 2,762 (4,204) (1,442)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (hereinafter - ""IFRS 15')

IFRS 15 replaces the current guidance regarding recognition of revenues and presents a new
model for recognizing revenue from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 provides two
approaches for recognizing revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model includes five
steps for analyzing transactions so as to determine when to recognize revenue and at what
amount. Furthermore, IFRS 15 provides new and more extensive disclosure requirements than
those that exist under current guidance.

IFRS 15 is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and earlier
application was permitted.

The impact of IFRS 15 on the Group’s financial statements refers only to the recognition of
promotional campains where the customer purchases a product and is entitled to a certain
quantity of another product. The change will have a temporary year-end effect on trade
receivables, inventories, revenue and cost of sales balances. Management estimated the impact
on these consolidated financial statements as if IFRS 15 was effective for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016, and the result is presented below:
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Before IFRS 15 With
IFRS 15 Impact IFRS 15
Financial position impact:
31 December 2015
Trade receivables 304,652 - 304,652
Inventories 277,283 - 277,283
Equity 532,372 - 532,372
31 December 2016
Trade receivables 393,469 (532) 392,937
Inventories 377,163 567 377,730
Equity 652,937 35 652,972
31 December 2017
Trade receivables 472,296 (1,179) 471,117
Inventories 369,519 1,363 370,882
Equity 812,723 149 812,872
Statements of income impact:
Year ended 31 December 2016
Revenue 3,102,874 (532) 3,102,342
Cost of sales (2,286,148) 567 (2,285,581)
Gross profit 816,726 35 816,761
Year ended 31 December 2017
Revenue 3,719,899 (1,179) 3,718,720
Cost of sales (2,717,412) 1,363 (2,716,049)
1,002,487 184 1,002,671

Gross profit

IFRS 16 Leases (hereinafter - "IFRS 16"")

The standard replaces IAS 17, Leases, and related interpretations. The provisions of the standard
revoke the current requirement that lessees classify leases as either operating leases or financial
leases, and instead, introduce a single lessee accounting model. In applying the model, the
lessee is required to recognize the asset and liability in respect of the lease in its financial
statements. The standard further determines new disclosure requirements that are broader in
scope than those that exist today.

IFRS 16 will be applied for annual periods beginning on January 1, 2019. Early adoption is
permitted, provided that the company also applies IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. The standard includes different options for applying the transitional provisions, in
such manner that, on initially applying the standard, companies may choose to apply a full
retrospective approach or to apply the standard commencing on the effective date while
adjusting retained earnings for that date.

The Company is yet to assess IFRS 16’s impact, and at this time, no early application is
planned.
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Cash and cash equivalents
RS

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Bank balances 58,436 52,021

Cash on hand 45 41

Short term deposits:

Deposits in banks (*) 54,629 34,462
113,110 86,524

Refers to short-term deposits, with high liquidity, classified as financial instruments at fair value through profit and
loss, readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These
deposits refer substantially to overnight deposits, with interest calculated over resources kept in bank account for
short periods, with interest currently of 90.6% of the Brazilian Interbank Deposit rate - CDI (in 2016, 37.4% of the
Brazilian Interbank Deposit rate - CDI, applicable mainly to investments under repurchase agreements, with
immediate liquidity).

Deposits
RS

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Deposits with brokers (*) 3,508 2,418

3,508 2,418

Refers to deposits made as margin requirements, classified as financial instruments at fair value through profit and
loss, with brokers responsible for derivative financial instrument operations, especially green coffee sell and buy
options.

Trade receivables
R$

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

National customers:

Third parties 487,516 407,388
Foreign customers 33,228 17,282
Related parties (Note 11) 1,585 892
522,329 426,062
Less:
Provision for discounts (a) (42,826) (28,148)
Subtotal 479,503 397,914
Provision for doubtful debt accounts (b) (7,207) (4,445)
472,296 393,469

Refers to discounts calculated based on volume rebates. At the end of the year 2017, the Group was in a trend of price
decreases, which normally starts with increasing discounts. This trend is due to decrease in green coffee acquisition
costs. At the end of the year 2016, the trend was in the opposite direction, and therefore provision for discounts at the
end of 2017 increased as presented above.
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Provision calculated based on an assessment of past due receivables, adjusted according to an individual analysis of
the main customers with overdue debts, considering Management knowledge of the market and collection past

record.

The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

Not past due

Past due 1 to 30 days
Past due 31 to 60 days
Past due 61 to 90 days
Past due 91 to 120 days
More than 120 days

R$
31/12/2017 31/12/2016
432,759 374,220
35,789 16,575
2,413 1,180
1,029 919
166 340
140 235
472,296 393,469

In the last month of the year, national chains customers postponed its supplier’s payments to the
beginning of 2018. Due to that, past due accounts receivables between 1 and 30 days reached
amounts above regular average. In the beginning of 2018, the majority of those outstanding

accounts receivable was collected.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debt accounts during the period was:

Balance at 1 January

Provision in the year
Write-offs

Balance at 31 December

RS
2017 2016
(4,445) (5,901)
(3,864) (5,715)
1,102 7,171
(7,207 (4.445)

Management assesses its credit risk exposure as low, once the trade receivables are not
concentrated, and there is a low level of concentration with the biggest customers. The biggest
customer represents 6,06% of 2017 gross revenue (6,27% in 2016).
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Inventories
RS

31/12/2017 31/12/2016
Finished goods 250,103 288,096
Work in progress 291 162
Raw material 51,270 38,967
Packaging and other materials 35,176 28,335
Import in progress 20,237 19,116
Advances to suppliers 15,112 2,487

372,189 377,163

The individual 31/12/2016 line amounts were re-allocated to better reflect the
nature of the inventories, however with the total amount unchanged. The re-
allocated amounts are not considered material for quantitative analysis of
Financial Statements.
Carrying amount of inventory pledged as security for financial liabilities
(including variable lien) - 7,175

In 2017 the write-down of inventory to net realizable value amounted to R$ 107 (2016: R$ 818),
recorded in the statements of income, as cost of sales.

Inventory includes spare parts and maintenance equipment, which will be used up within one
year.

Inventory balances are presented net of provision for obsolescence.

Recoverable taxes

RS
31/12/2017 31/12/2016
Tax recoverable:
State VAT - ICMS 22,472 27,068
Federal VAT - PIS and COFINS 7,422 9,172
Other 2,741 1,558
32,635 37,798

State VAT recoverable is mainly due to operations where advanced VAT was paid at the
moment of the goods receipt in the State. However, for those cases where the presumed
operation has not taken place due to goods movement to another State, the Company is entitled
to a reimbursement of such VAT paid in advance to the State Government (mainly Minas
Gerais and Séo Paulo).

In addition to the above, for green coffee acquisitions in Varginha and Manhuagu by means of
government auctions, where the State VAT of 18% needs to be paid immediately on the
purchased amount, it is accumulated as VAT recoverable.
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Decrease on State VAT is due to refund from Minas Gerais State Government and higher
compensation of VAT credits in the green coffee units of Varginha and Manhuagu due to the
transfer of credits to Montes Claros warehouse and sale of green coffee to the northeast
factories.

Federal VAT amounts are due to credits on purchases of packaging materials and freight
services linked to local market sales with zero tax rate, as well as presumed credit on green
coffee export revenue.

Other refers mainly to IPI (excise tax) credits accumulated at the Frisco factory.

Federal VAT and IPI balances are quarterly compensated with payable amounts due to other
taxes managed by Brazilian Federal Revenue.

Other current and non-current assets

RS

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Assets:
Advances to suppliers 300 584
Advances to employees 2,702 2,217
Prepaid expenses 15,156 11,339
Special Bank Deposit for reinvestment 1,919 3,175
Non-current taxes 1,408 1,117
Long-term deposit 2,345 2,865
Sundry 1,606 582
25,436 21,879
Current assets (19,238) (14,114
Non-current assets 6,198 7,765

Prepaid expenses increased mainly because of marketing and away from home expenses.
During the year, the company had marketing expenses as: “Child Hope” (Crianga Esperanca)
campaign, Cirol Coffee Film, Cupids Producers Film, Family Reserve Film, and others. The
Away from Home expenses were contracts signed with customers such as Alsaraiva Comércio
Empreendimentos and Frans” Café Franchising Ltda.

Related parties

The Group’s related parties are the parent companies of 50% shareholding each, related parties
of the parent companies, investee companies of both the Group and the parent companies and
members of the Board, senior management and their close family members, of both the Group
and the parent companies.
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The prices and credit terms in respect of transactions with related parties are determined
according to customary commercial terms.

RS
31/12/2017 31/12/2016
Current assets
Trade receivables (Note 7)
3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A. 1,239 -
Strauss Commodities AG 346 892
1,585 892
Non-current assets
Loans to related parties
3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Cépsulas S.A. 21,479 7,908
21,479 7,908
Current liabilities
Trade payables (Note 16)
Caffitaly System S.p.A. - Foreign supplier 10,229 7,782
3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A. - National supplier 4,291 -
Trés Coragdes Imoveis Arm. Gerais e Serv. Ltda. - National supplier 2,691 4,822
17,211 12,604
Proposed dividends (Note 23.d)
Strauss Coffee B.V 22,852 29,634
Sio Miguel Fundo de Investimento em Participagdes 22,352 29,634
45,704 59,268
Interest on equity payable (Note 18)
Strauss Coffee B.V. (Net of tax withheld) 22,015 20,188
Sio Miguel Fundo de Participagdes 25,900 23,750
47,915 43,938
110,830 115,810
Profit or loss
Revenue
3Cafti Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A. 8,050 -
Strauss Commodities AG 7,808 4,677
15,858 4,677
Cost of sales
3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A. 22,488 -
Caffitaly System S.p.A. 42,406 48,659
Strauss Commodities AG 7,496 4,388
Trés Coracdes Imoveis Arm. Gerais e Serv. Ltda. 2,146 1,993
74,536 55,040
Sales and general and administrative expenses
Trés Coragdes Iméveis Arm. Gerais e Serv. Ltda. 3,128 2,966
3,128 2,966
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Trade receivables, trade payables, and sales

Trade receivables, trade payables and sales balances with related parties are due to operations of
purchase and sale of goods. Part of the facilities used by the Group is leased from Trés Coragdes
Iméveis Armazéns Gerais e Servicos Ltda.

Loans to related party

Refers substantially to loans to 3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A., for the
construction of the capsule factory. These loans have due date of 181 days, with interest of
100% of the Brazilian Interbank Deposit rate - CDI.

Investments

Societary structure

The previously directly controlled 3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A. (“3Caffi”)
became a joint-venture in 2016, with the participation of shareholder Caffitaly System S.p.A.,
which started to share the Company control, both Companies with 50% share.

Investment balance composition

R$

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Cépsulas Ltda. 4,236 4,211

4236 4211

Investment movement

RS

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Balance at 1 January 4,211 -

New investments - 4,605

Equity method 25 (394)
4,236 4,211

Balance at 31 December
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Assets
Current
Non-current

Liabilities
Current
Non-current
Equity

Profit and Loss
Revenue
(-) Cost of sales

(=) Gross profit
Other expenses, net

(=) Profit before income tax
(-) Income tax expenses

(=) Profit for the year

Trés Coragoes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

R$

3Caffi

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

21,745 2,140
52,261 35,917
74,006 38,057
23,673 20,017
41,861 9,618

8,472 8,422
74,006 38,057
28,422 -

(23,803) -

4,619 -
(4,060) (701)

558 (701)
(508) (87)
50 (788)

Endorsements, guarantees and mortgages, granted in favor of joint venture
The Company granted endorsements in favor of the joint venture, with balances on 31

December, 2017 and 2016 listed below:

Type of endorsement

Legal entity endorsement
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13  Fixed assets

R$
Furniture
Land and  Machinery and and other Leasehold
Cost buildings Equipment Vehicles equipment improvements Total
Balances as of 31 December 2015 56,138 178,330 49,924 53,969 32,214 370,575
Additions 2,531 14,084 2,910 10,863 6,983 37,371
Interest capitalization 930 - - - - 930
Disposals - (45) (811) (1,752) (54) (2,662)
Transfer between classes of assets 129 (60) (15) 3,140 557 3,751
Effect of changes in exchange
rates (3,659) (941 10 “ asn (4,805)
Balances as of 31 December 2016 56,069 191,368 51,998 66,216 39,509 405,160
Additions 692 33,903 4,458 11,236 10,372 60,661
Interest capitalization - - - - 1,681 1,681
Disposals (77) (149) (1,002) (738) (2,161) (4,127)
Transfer between classes of assets (853) (48) (54) 6,379 998 6,422
Effect of changes in exchange
rates 287 70 1 4 15 377
Balances as of 31 December 2017 56,118 225,144 55,401 83,097 50,414 470,174
Accumulated depreciation
Balances as of 31 December 2015 (9,428) (73,337) (27,789) (23,229) (5,658) (139,441)
Additions (879) (11,416) (5,455) (6,296) (1,029) (25,075)
Disposals - 12 780 388 44 1,224
Transfer between classes of assets (23) (18) 91) (106) (44) (282)
Effect of changes in exchange
rates 521 94 - 2 88 705
Balances as of 31 December 2016 (9,809) (84,665) (32,555) (29,241) (6,599) (162,869)
Additions (1,096) (9,225) (6,002) (8,075) (1,004) (25,402)
Disposals 1 28 827 153 1,247 2,256
Transfer between classes of assets 19 22 (62) 273 40 292
Effect of changes in exchange
rates (206) 16 1 © 20 (247)
Balances as of 31 December 2017 (11,091) (93,856) (37,791) (36,896) (6,336) (185,970)
Balance net as of
31 December 2016 46,260 106,703 19,443 36,975 32,910 242,291
31 December 2017 45,027 131,288 17,610 46,201 44,078 284,204

The cost of significant machine overhauls, which prolongs the useful life of the machine, is
capitalized.

Leasehold improvements to leased premises are depreciated over the shorter of the expected
lease period or the estimated useful life of the asset.

The balance of the trade payables due to fixed assets purchased as of 31 December 2017 is

RS 1,463 (RS 1,857 as of 31 December 2016), and the balance of loans and borrowings due to
fixed assets purchased, including interests, as of 31 December 2017 is R$ 31,128 (R$ 28,886 as
of 31 December 2016).

In the year ended 31 December 2017, the amount of R$ 6,714 (RS 3,454 in the year ended 31
December 2016), regarding TRES machines lent to customers, was transferred from inventories
to fixed assets.

The Group did not lease any land or buildings as of 31 December 2017 or 31 December 2016,
except for operational leases with Trés Coragdes Imdveis Armazéns Gerais e Servigos Ltda.

34



Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

14 Intangible assets and goodwill

RS
Brands and Computer
Cost trademarks (*) software Goodwill Other Total
Balances as of 31 December 2015 3,297 20,517 175,581 14,376 213,771
Additions 113 4,166 - 1,175 5,454
Iguagu acquisition (Note 2) 11,000 - 28,182 34,400 73,582
Transfer between classes of assets - (2) - - (2)
Balances as of 31 December 2016 14,410 24,681 203,763 49,951 292,805
Additions 7,723 5,513 - 10,470 23,706
PPA Iguagu acquisition (Note 2) 7,330 - 4,690 (12,020) -
Transfer between classes of assets 37 (590) 159 23 (371)
Balances as of 31 December 2017 29,500 29,604 208,612 48,424 316,140
Accumulated amortization
Balances as of 31 December 2015 (300) (11,356) - (6,896) (18,552)
Additions (360) (2,887) - (2,537) (5,784)
Transfer between classes of assets (13) - - - (13)
Balances as of 31 December 2016 (673) (14,243) - (9,433) (24,349)
Additions (433) (4,680) - (4,192) (9,305)
Transfer between classes of assets 357 - 14 371
Balances as of 31 December 2017 (1,106) (18,566) - (13.611) (33,283)
Balance net as of
31 December 2016 13,737 10,438 203,763 40,518 268,456
31 December 2017 28,394 11,038 208,612 34,813 282,857
*) Only brands and trademarks acquired as a result of 3Coragdes Sul (incorporated by the controlled company Café Trés Coragdes S.A.) acquisition have

definite useful life.

Additions to computer software refer to software acquired by the Company for use in automated
process and software licenses acquired, such as:

e In 2017, mainly SAP licenses, Microsoft licenses, Elaw (legal controlling system), Warehouse
Management System (implementation in other distribution centers) and ARMS project
(accounts receivable reconciliation software).

e In 2016, mainly SAP licenses, Microsoft licenses, SAP business planning and consolidation
(BPC), SAP QM module (quality), Warehouse Management System, and the SAP GRC access
control update.

Additions to brands and trademarks refer mainly to contracts with Toko in order to buy its
brands: Toko, Apollo and Astoria.

The negociation happened as explained bellow:

Description Toko Astoria Apollo Total
Acquisition of Brands 3,612 400 - 4,012
Non-compete 1,400 - 600 2,000
License Agreement - - 2,000 2,000
Purchase Option - - 3,000 3,000
Total 5,012 400 5,600 11,012
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The Toko brand acquisition was done via Judicial Alienation. The amount of R$ 3,612 was
deposited on 29 August 2017 in Minas Gerais Court bank account.

The amount of R$ 400 related to Astoria brand was paid on 28 September 2017.

The amount of R$ 4,000 related to the non-compete and license agreements, and R$ 1,000
related to part of the purchase option were paid on 19 October 2017.

The Group has to make additional payment of R$ 2,000 if, at the end of 5 (five) years from the
Toko acquisition, the Group exercises its option to purchase the Apollo brand. The Group has
the intention to purchase the brand if there are no contingent problems and the pending issues
related to it are resolved. Management understands that, in essence, all amounts above are part
of one single acquisition value, even though from a legal perspective, there are different
contracts with different legal terms. The whole acquisition value is presented as intangible asset,
and the remaining payable amount is presented as Other payables (Note 20).

Impairment assessment

As of 31 December 2017 intangible assets include an amount of R$ 236,199 that is attributable
to brands (except for those acquired in 3Coragdes Sul business combination) and goodwill,
having an indefinite useful life (31 December 2016 - R$ 216,103). These assets were assessed as
having an indefinite useful life since according to an analysis of the relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limitation of the period they are expected to generate positive cash flows for the
Group.

The relevant factors that were analyzed included, inter alia, the length of time the brand or
trademark is anticipated to be used; the existence of legal or contractual restrictions on their use;
a review of the typical life cycle of similar branded products; the existence of indicators of
changes in life style, competitive environment, market requirements and industry trends, the
sales history of products of the same brand and the awareness of the market of the brand name
or trademark.

Impairment loss

The Company tests annually the recoverable amounts of goodwill and brands from business
combination transactions. Property, plant and equipment and definite life intangible assets that
are subject to depreciation and amortization are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Management analyses the business and makes decisions based on two different cash generating
units: green coffee and internal market. All goodwill is allocated to the internal market, as there
were no acquisitions associated to the green coffee business.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units are based on the calculation of their value
in use. These calculations use cash flow projections that are based on the most current three-
year strategic operating plans (SOP) of the relevant unit.

The cash flows for remaining periods are calculated using the relevant growth rate, which takes
into account the anticipated growth rates of the category, industry, country and population. The
estimated long-term growth rate was 3.0% in 2017 and of 3.0% in 2016. The projected cash

flows were discounted according to pre-tax discount rates of 9.7% in 2017 and of 9.6% in 2016.
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Both 2017 and 2016 projected cash flows were prepared without inflation effects.
These discount rates reflect also the risk of the cash-generating units in each relevant year.

In 2017 and 2016, the Group did not recognize any impairrment loss from the operation. Short
and long term loans

Loans schedule

Annual interest rate RS
31/12/2017 31/12/2016 31/12/2017 31/12/2016
Brazilian reals loans and borrowings
Loans for acquisition of machines and vehicles 7.22 5.94 TIL 31,128 28,886
Incentivized loan for projects in development regions
(FNE) 7.50 7.50 - 1,383 6,883
Working capital loans * 6.93 14.22 CDI 267,297 180,873
Loans for acquisition of green coffee * - 9.88 - - 67,261
(*) The 2016 amounts were re-allocated to better reflect nature of the loans, with the total
remaining unchanged. The re-allocated amounts are not considered material for
quantitative analysis of Financial Statements.
299,808 283,903
United States dollar loans and borrowings
Loans for acquisition of inventories (ACC) 227 2.26 - 75,950 116,331
Loans for acquisition of inventories (PPE) - 3.15 - - 32,813
75,950 149,144
Total loans and borrowings 375,758 433,047
(-) Current liabilities (224,233) (298,304)
151,525 134,243

(=) Non-current liabilities

There are no debt covenants on the Group’s loans and borrowings contracts with the banks.

Non-current payment schedule

31/12/2017 31/12/2016
13 to 24 months 39,706 116,317
25 to 36 months 102,034 5,290
37 to 48 months 5,738 4,923
49 to 60 months 2,019 3,854
Thereafter 2,028 3,859
151,525 134,243
Guarantees
The following liens have been provided as security for the liabilities of the Group:
RS
31/12/2017 31/12/2016
Pledges registered in favor of the banks 65,853 57,413
Mortgages registered in favor of the banks 29,263 29,263
95,116 86,676
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d. Reconciliation between financial position movement and cash flows from financing activities

R$
Short and Interest Short and Interest
long term Proposed on equity long term Proposed on equity
Note loans dividends payable Total loans Dividends payable Total
2017 2016

Balance as of 31 December of Prior Year 433,047 59,268 43,938 536,253 378,789 134,549 - 513,338
Cash flows from financing activities items:
Proceeds from loans 503,937 - - 503,937 464,656 - - 464,656
Repayment of loans (564,067) - - (564,067) (389,261) - - (389,261)
Interest on equity paid 18 - - (43,938) (43,938) - - - -
Dividend paid 23.d - (59,280) - (59,280) - (101,446) - (101,446)
Total cash flows used in financing activities (60,130) (59,280) (43,938) (163,348) 75,395 (101,446) - (26,051)
Other items:
Interest and exchange rate variation expenses 36,143 - - 36,143 10,096 - - 10,096
Interest and exchange rate variation payments (35,409) - - (35,409) (29,851) - - (29,851)
Proceeds from investment loans 7,635 - - 7,635 3,974 - - 3,974
Repayment of investment loans (5,528) - - (5,528) (5,356) - - (5,356)
Dividend provisioned 23.d - 45,716 - 45,716 - 26,165 - 26,165
Interest on equity credited 18 - - 51,800 51,800 - - 47,500 47,500
Withholding income tax 18 - - (3,885) (3,885) - - (3,562) (3,562)
Total other items 2,841 45,716 47,915 96,472 (21,137) 26,165 43,938 48,966
Balance as of 31 December of the Year 375,758 45,704 47,915 469,377 433,047 59,268 43,938 536,253
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Trade payables
R$

31/12/2017 31/12/2016
National suppliers 186,147 116,811
National Related party suppliers (Note 11) 6,982 4,822
Foreign suppliers 30,317 21,728
Foreign Related party suppliers (Note 11) 10,229 7,782
The individual 31/12/2016 line amounts were re-allocated to better
reflect the nature of the trade payables, however with the total amount
unchanged. The re-allocated amounts are not considered material for
quantitative analysis of Financial Statements. 233,675 151,143

The main reason of the variation in National suppliers balance is the renegotiation of payment of
packaging and green coffee purchases (R$ 39,622).

Employees and other payroll related liabilities

RS
31/12/2017 31/12/2016
Payroll and related charges 7,905 6,814
Provision for vacation 27,486 22,426
Provision for variable remuneration 13,312 12,081
Other 1,459 813
50,162 42,134

The Group Employees benefits' treatment is in accordance with local legal requirements. These
requirements mainly call for and are limited to monthly contributions to Social Security funds
(INSS, FGTS). The Group has no obligations under defined benefits or defined contribution
plans. The Group offers other short-term benefits to its employees, which are expensed when
incurred.

Interest on equity payable

The Company, in Extraordinary Shareholders” Meeting held on a monthly basis through 2017,
approved recommendation of the Board of Directors for the distribution of Interest on equity for
the year ended 31 December 2017, in the total amount of R$ 51,800, to be paid before the end
of 2018 (R$ 47,500 for the year ended 31 December 2016).

On the amount mentioned above, there is shareholders” income tax to be withheld at source, in

the amount of R$ 3,885 (R$ 3,563 in the year ended 31 December 2016), already reduced from
the Interest on equity payable balance.
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Payable taxes

R$

31/12/2017  31/12/2016

Tax payable:
State VAT - ICMS 20,354 21,824
Federal VAT - PIS and COFINS 375 95
IRRF - 3,563
Other 3,047 2,242
Total 23,976 27.724
Other current and non-current liabilities

RS

31/12/2017  31/12/2016

Liabilities:
Advances from customers 907 1,122
Accounts payable for acquisition of operations - Iguacu 2,722 21,535
Accounts payable for acquisition of operations - Fino Grao 3,026 2,799
Accounts payable for acquisition of operations - Cyrol 225 -
Accounts payable for acquisition of operations - Toko (note 14) 2,000 -
Other provision - marketing services 423 1,945
Payable for acquisition of fixed assets 1,463 1,857
Handling commission 527 522
Provision for freights 3,153 2,091
Provision for lawyers’ fees 2,646 1,942
Sundry 6,807 5,087
Total 23,899 38,900
Current liabilities (19,856) (36,335)
4,043 2,565

Non-current liabilities
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Provision for legal proceedings

Based on information from its legal advisors, an analysis of the pending legal proceedings, and
previous experience with regards to amounts claimed, the Group recorded provisions for
amounts considered sufficient to cover probable losses from current legal actions. The amounts
of probable and possible losses with respect to legal and administrative actions against the
Group are as follows:

RS
31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Probable Possible Remote Probable Possible Remote
loss loss loss loss loss loss

Labor* 14,006 91,007 168,342 14,748 52,559 121,446
Tax** 3,544 50,629 162,610 4,255 22,120 149,971
Civil 616 6,368 8,757 515 8,139 8,475
18,166 148,004 339,709 19,518 82,818 279,892

The company and its subsidiaries are parties to a number of labor claims filed by former employees and service
providers challenging, among other things, unpaid overtime, night shift premiums and risk premiums, employment
guarantees, and the reimbursement of withholdings from payroll such as social contributions and trade union charges,
among others. As of 31 December 2017, total quantity of labor claims was 478 (476 as of 31 December 2016).

Tax claims details by type are demonstrated in the following table:

RS
31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Probable  Possible Remote Probable Possible Remote

loss loss loss loss loss loss

State VAT - ICMS 1 11,219 25,004 1 10,525 16,654
Federal VAT -

PIS/COFINS/IPI 2,749 4,735 118,409 3,931 4,449 103,310

Income taxes (IRPJ/CSLL) 348 29,302 11,460 - (2,227) 25,856

Social contribution (INSS) - 5,224 3,837 - 4,781 3,542

Other 446 149 3,900 323 138 609

3,544 50,629 162,610 4,255 22,120 149,971

The main legal claims are listed below:

Goodwill amortization - tax authorities claim that the Group does not meet all criteria to deduct
Goodwill amortization for tax purposes. As of 03 October 2017 the Goodwill Amortization
process was judged in the Superior Chamber of Tax Appeals of CARF (Federal Administrative
Court). After prevailing at the first administrative level, the Group lost the process on appeal,
but only by a quality vote, which provides good basis for taking the issue to the judicial level.
The quality vote occurs when there is a tie (4 x 4), and the final decision is left to the president
of the session (always a judge on the Government side). The Group and its tax advisors are still
of the opinion that the there is no need to record any liability. The Group obtained an updated
Legal Opinion from an independent legal office that classified this process as possible loss. As

41



Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

of 31 December 2017 the amount of the legal claim was R$ 27,414 (R$ 25,856 as of 31
December 2016). The claim amount increased due to interest incurred;

Federal VAT (PIS/COFINS) credits - tax authorities claim that the Group (together with most of
other coffee companies in Brazil) had purchased green coffee from de facto, but not legally
constitutedcompanies in order to receive more PIS and COFINS credits and demand the
difference between the total credit and the presumed credit, which amounted as of 31 December
2017 to R$ 60,957 (R$ 57,702 as of 31 December, 2016). Part of the total amount, R$ 1,849

(R$ 1,751 as of 31 December 2016), had its risk of loss reviewed to probable, and it is
provisioned in December 2017. Another part of the total amount, R$ 3,694 (R$ 3,496 as of 31
December 2016) was classified as possible loss. For the remaining amount, the Group and its
tax advisors are of the opinion that there is no need to record any liability. The increase is due to
the interest incurred.

Federal excise tax (IPI) - tax authorities claim the tax treatment applied, in respect to federal tax
IPI - imposed on certain industrialized goods (powder juice) was incorrect. According to the
Company’s understanding of the regulation, powder juice is a product classified as entitled to
zero IPI tax. According to the tax authorities, the Company should have used tax rates of 27%
for the period from January 2011 to December 2011, 20% for the period from January 2012 to
May 2012 and 10% since June 2012. The total updated claim, as of 31 December 2017 is

R$ 59,910 (R$ 37,537 as of 31 December 2016). The Group and its tax advisors are of the
opinion that there is no need to record any liability. There increase is mainly related to a new
claim received in 2017, regarding the period from April 2014 until December 2014, in the
amount of R$ 16,208. The remaining increase is due to interest incurred.

The legal claims detailed above, except for the mentioned part of the Federal VAT
(PIS/COFINS) and Goodwill claims, are classified as remote loss as of 31 December 2017 and
2016 (Goodwill claim was classified as remote loss in 2016).

Changes in provision for legal proceedings during the year

RS
2017 2016
Balance as of 1 January 19,518 20,688
Provisions made during the year 2,260 1,577
Legal proceedings closed during the year (3,612) (2,747)
Balance as of 31 December
18,166 19,518

Judicial deposits

The Group has, as of 31 December 2017, the amounts of R$ 8,655 of judicial deposits

(R$ 8,780 as of 31 December 2016). These deposits are required by courts associated with
various open legal proceedings and comprise a number of individual case deposits of smaller
amounts.
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Income taxes and social contribution

Amounts recognized in profit and loss

Current taxes
Deferred taxes

Tax in income statement as of 31 December

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Income before taxes on income
Income tax expenses (34%)

Adjustments to reconcile to effective tax rate:
State VAT incentives

Foreign exchange effects of foreign operation
Benefit of Goodwill amortization for tax purposes
Federal incentive - “Exploration profit”

Federal incentive - “Re-investment”

Interest on equity credited

Incineration of goods and inventory write-offs

Other
Tax in Income Statement

Effective tax rate

ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

RS

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

36,224 38,616

734 6,115

36,958 44,731
RS

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

293,018 233,539
99,626 79,403
(23,121) (18,483)

209 4,778
(3,999) (2,401)
(20,024) (7,986)
(984) (480)
(17,612) (16,150)
2,457 2,638
406 3,412
36,958 44,731
12.61% 19.15%

At the end of the year 2017 Management changed the calculation of the federal incentive of
“Exploration profit”. Based on the analysis of the legislation, there is no need to exclude interest
on equity declared from the calculation basis. The Group and its tax advisors are of the opinion

that there is no tax risk related to this change of procedure.
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

R$
Social
Income tax contribution

Temporary differences Basis *) 9%) 31/12/2017  31/12/2016
Provision for legal proceedings 18,164 3,894 1,635 5,529 5,693
Inventory adjustments 5,513 1,030 496 1,526 1,353
Provision for doubtful debt accounts 7,210 1,311 649 1,960 1,217
Derivatives transactions 12,681 2,354 1,141 3,495 6,990
Provision for discounts 42,376 7,472 3,814 11,286 7,677
Provision for variable remuneration 17,825 3,325 1,604 4,929 4,044
Provision for revenue recognition 2,881 503 259 762 844
Fixed assets revaluation (5,824) (1,456) (524) (1,980) (2,091)
Goodwill amortization (92,263) (12,151) (8.304) (20,455) (20,455)
Carryforward tax losses - - - - 5,711
Exchange rate variation cash basis (12,515) (2,138) (1,126) (3,264) (6,530)
Profit elimination on inventory 3,009 752 271 1,023 1,206
Other (558) (559) (50) (610) (724)
Total net deferred tax (1,501) 4,336 (135) 4,201 4,935
Non-current assets 11,017 14,299
Non-current liabilities (6,816) (9,364)

Income tax rate (excluding the Social contribution) is 25%, applicable to all Group’s subsidiaries. However, as the
Company has tax incentives (see Note 23.¢), the Group's future average income tax rate expected to be applied when
the deferred tax is realized or settled, is 13.17%.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, Management estimates future taxable
income and the timing of reversal of the temporary differences. When it is more likely than not
that a part or all of the deferred tax assets are not recoverable, such a portion is not recorded by
the Company. Under Brazilian tax law, tax loss carry forwards (including those of the Social
contribution) do not expire, however, their use is limited to up to 30% of annual taxable income
and they do not benefit from any interest or monetary correction.

Considering the occurrence of taxable profit in recent years, the Group assessed the future
taxable profits in order to calculate deferred tax asset on accumulated losses. One of the Group
subsidiaries, Café Trés Coragdes S.A., has no accumulated losses as of 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016, RS 16,796).

Other subsidiary, Principal Comércio e Industria de Café Ltda. has, as of 31 December 2017,
R$ 9,436 (31 December 2016, R$ 7,945) of accumulated losses. However, due to history of
recent losses, it is more probable than not that in the foreseeable future the accumulated losses
will not be used.
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Equity

Share capital

As of 31 December 2017 and 2016, Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.’s share capital is comprised of
the following:

R$
Shareholders 31/12/2017 31/12/2016 %
Strauss Coffee B.V. 136,721.18 136,184.9  50%
Sdo Miguel Fundo de Investimento em Participagdes 136,721.18 136,184.9  50%
273,442.36 272,369.8

Share capital as of 31 December 2016 was comprised of 27,236,985,298 shares with a nominal
value of R$ 0.01 (one cent) each. On 24 February 2017, an increase in share capital with
resources from tax incentive of re-investment, in the amount of R$ 1,072 took place. As a result,
107,250,938 shares with a nominal value of R$ 0.01 (one cent) were issued.

Translation adjustments

Management decided to use two different functional currencies, according to IAS 21 - Effects of
changes in foreign exchange rates. For internal market operations, the functional currency is the
Brazilian real (R$). For the green coffee export activity, the functional currency is the United States
dollar (US$).

Management assessed the Company operations in order to present its green coffee export activity as
a “foreign operation”, as established by IAS 21 - Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates, and,
thereby, could apply separate accounting for the purposes of consolidation.

The main reasons to treat the green coffee export activity as a separated operation were:

The export activity has its own management, which is considered independent in terms of
decisions about green coffee purchases and sales (export entity).

The exchange rate effects recorded in the translation adjustments arise from the following assets
and liabilities, for the years ended on 31 December 2017 and 2016:

RS
Trés Coracoes Café Trés
31/12/2017 Alimentos Coracoes Total
Inventories - 6,565 6,565
Fixed assets 81 49 130
Trade receivables - 1,708 1,708
Derivatives 11 50 61
Cost of sales - (196) (196)
Loans and borrowings - 957 957
Total 92 7,219 7,311
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RS
Trés Coracdes Café Trés
31/12/2016 Alimentos Coracoes Total
Inventories - (3,682) (3,682)
Fixed assets (3,231) (869) (4,100)
Trade receivables - (2,023) (2,023)
Derivatives (90) (211) (301)
Cost of sales - 450 450
Loans and borrowings - 15,928 15,928
Total (3,321) 9,593 6,272

Revaluation reserve (subsidiary)

Created at the subsidiary Café Trés Coragdes S.A., based upon valuation report issued by
independent specialists, the revaluation reserve is being realized through depreciation or disposal of
the revalued assets against retained earnings, net of tax effects.

Management decided to maintain the revaluation reserve balance until its full realization, according
to Brazilian Law 11,638/07.

Dividends

Dividends are calculated in accordance with the terms agreed upon in the Shareholders’
Agreement, with rate of 35% over net income, adjusted by financial results. This amount is
provisioned as proposed dividend in the balance sheet, subject to the approval by the General
shareholders meeting.

On 28 April 2017, the dividends related to 2016 profit were approved by the General
shareholders” meeting in the amount of R$ 72,232, which represents additional R$ 12 when
compared to the original provision, made in December of 2016 based upon Management’s
proposal. The amount of R$ 72,232 includes the amount of R$ 47,500 payable as interest on
equity, with the remaining R$ 24,732 to be paid as dividends.

In June 2017, the second half of the remaining dividends from the year ended on 31 December
2014, in the amount of R$ 34,548 was paid.

The approved dividends of R$ 24,732 and interest on equity of R$ 47,500 were both paid in
December 2017.

The Management’s proposal for 2017 profit destination is to pay dividend in the amount of

R$ 45,704 in December 2018, after the credit of interest on equity, in the amount of R$ 51,800
(over this amount there is the shareholders withholding income tax of R$ 3,855 - Note 18).
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Retained earnings

Legal reserve
Created at the rate of 5% on profit for the year, limited to 20% of share capital, as shown below:

RS

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Profit for the year (*) 256,130 189,852
5% 5%

Legal reserve (*) 12,806 9,493
Legal reserve balance as of 1 January 42,209 32,716
Addition in the period 12,806 9,493
Legal reserve balance as of 31 December, before limit check 55,015 42,209
Legal reserve limit - 20% of share capital 54,688 54,474
Legal reserve addition, before limit check 12,806 9,493
Legal reserve not created due to limit check (327) -
12,479 9,493

Legal reserve addition, after limit check

The reserve is calculated based on Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A. per solo profit above, which is different from the
consolidated one due to the elimination of un-realized profit in intercompany transactions, in the amount of R$ 70 in
2017. In 2016, the amount of un-realized profit in intercompany transaction eliminated was R$ 1,044.

This reserve can only be used for capital increases or absorption of losses.

Tax incentives reserve

Until 31 December 2007, all amounts of tax incentives were recognized in capital reserve, and
starting 1 January 2008, due to changes implemented by Law 11,638/07, were recognized in profit
or loss, and then designated to the tax incentives reserve. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Company received government grants in the amount of R$ 54,730 (R$ 36,740 in the year ended
31 December 2016). The tax incentive reserve cannot be distributed as dividends. If the Company
distributes it in the future, the amounts have the following treatment depending on the incentive:

Federal incentives - the amount of income taxes not paid and distributed as dividends, must be
paid as back taxes, as if there was no incentive;

Other incentives - the amount distributed must be added back to the taxable income used for
calculating income tax and social contribution, under a combined rate of up to 34% in the period
of the distribution, and will be also subject to PIS and COFINS taxes (currently 9.25%) on the
distributed amount.

These government incentives are as follows:

PROVIN - Ceara State

The Government of the State of Ceard, in accordance with the state public policies geared
towards promoting the industrial development of Ceara, decided to provide financial assistance
for the investments necessary for installation of the industrial unit in the city of Eusébio, State of
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CE. The incentive consists of the postponement of payment of the ICMS state VAT tax and the
deduction of 56.25% of total sales of roasted and ground coffee. The incentive is valid until July
2018. In order to maintain the incentive, the Company committed to: (a) finalize appropriately
the investment project; (b) utilize the incentives exclusively for the project; (c) have no overdue
tax and labor obligations; (c) keep the headquarters in the State of Ceara and have no changes in
the Company’s ownership involving third parties for the duration of the incentive contract,
currently until July of 2018.

The Group has already started the renewal process of the State incentive for another 10 years.

PROADI - Rio Grande do Norte State

The government of the State of Rio Grande do Norte, in the interest of the development of this
State, decided to grant financial assistance to the investments necessary for the Group industrial
units in the cities of Natal and Mossor6. The benefit consists of the postponement of payment of
the tax and the subsequent deduction of up to 75% of ICMS state VAT payable. In order to
maintain the incentive, the Company committed to having no overdue tax and labor obligations
and keeping the plants related to the project in the State of Rio Grande do Norte.

The incentives are valid at least until March 2020 (Mossor6 unit) and October 2018 (Natal unit).

The group has already started the renewal process of the State incentive of Natal unit for another
10 years.

Other
The Group has received certain tax incentives and special tax regimes also in other Brazilian
states.

State Tax Stability Funds (FEEF)

A requirement of maintaining the necessary tax balance, considering Brazilian economic
scenario, led the Federal Government to provide for establishment of the State Tax Stability
Funds (FEEF). The funds establish temporary additional VAT tax payments, to be made by
companies with existing tax incentives granted by the individual states.

Considering state tax incentives applicable to the Group, only Ceara and Paraiba States’
regulations are applicable at this time. The Ceara FEEF is applicable during 24 months, from 1
September 2016 to 31 August 2018 and the Paraiba FEEF during 30 months, starting 1 October
2016 to February 2019, and may be extended for thirty more months. On the other side, both
states extend the subject tax incentives for an additional period equal to the period of this
temporary collection - in case of Paraiba - and for double of such period in case of Ceara.

From January, 2018, the State of Rio Grande do Norte will also have a fund called FUNDERN.
It is similar to Ceara FEEF. FUNDERN is applicable during 24 months, from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2019 and may be extended for twenty and four more months in case of a
permanent fiscal imbalance of the State.

The Fund’s purpose is to assure a minimum increase of 10% in VAT payments of incentivized
companies. This way, in case VAT payable amount of a specific month has increased less than
10% compared to the same month in previous year, an additional payment must be made in
order to achieve the minimum 10% of total increase.
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In the year ended 31 December 2017, total contributions to FEEF were R$ 279 (RS 256 in the
year ended 31 December 2016).

Federal incentive - “Re-investment”
The Group is allowed to allocate part of its income tax payable to capital investments. The
projects associated with these investments are submitted to the authorities’ approval.

The allocated amount is recognized in profit or loss at the moment of the Group’s decision to
proceed, since there is reasonable assurance the grant will be approved.

Federal incentive - “Exploration profit”
The Group benefits from the income tax exemption of 75% of the operating income derived

from its main activities at the units of Eusébio (State of Ceard), Natal and Mossoro (State of Rio
Grande do Norte).

According to the rules for income tax government grants, until 2007 the amount, for local
purposes, was charged directly to capital reserve - investment subsidy. Starting 2008, due to the
effects of Law 11,638/07, the amount is charged to profit or loss, and then set aside from profit
for the year to retained earnings - tax incentives.

Reserve for profit to be distributed
Management decided to create reserve for profit to be distributed, for the remaining profit after
all destinations above.

Revenue
RS
2017 2016
Gross revenue:
Products - domestic 4,152,661 3,399,576
Products - foreign 259,381 236,143
Services 272 343
Other 205 217
Taxes on sales (319,337) (254,832)
Deductions (373,283) (278,573)
3,719,899 3,102,874
Cost of sales by nature
RS
2017 2016
According to source
Cost of sales - domestic (2,467,539) (2,074,464)
Cost of sales - foreign (249,873) (211,684)
(2,717,412) (2,286,148)
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R$
2017 2016
According to components
Materials consumed (2,615,825) (2,194,609)
Wages, salaries and related expenses (47,313) (42,238)
Depreciation and amortization (13,362) (11,479)
Services contracted (11,455) (8,311)
Maintenance (6,255) (5,556)
Other (23,202) (23,955)
(2,717,412) (2,286,148)
Selling and marketing expenses by nature
R$
2017 2016
Wages, salaries and related expenses (256,073) (212,828)
Depreciation and amortization (16,726) (13,954)
Transport expenses (102,340) (82,428)
Export expenses (6,420) (4,853)
Services contracted (38,531) (35,653)
Marketing (110,751) (90,840)
Travel expenses (8,632) (7,524)
Other (32,715) (24,621)
(572,188) (472,701)
General and administrative expenses by nature
RS
2017 2016
Wages, salaries and related expenses (54,579) (46,158)
Tax expenses (6,713) (4,488)
Depreciation and amortization (4,619) (5,869)
Services contracted (25,923) (20,568)
Provision for legal proceedings 1,352 1,170
Travel expenses (4,744) (3,514)
Other (13,886) (10,454)
(109,112) (89,881)
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Finance expenses, net

Finance expenses

Interest expenses

Interest on loans and borrowings
Exchange rate effect

Other

Finance income
Interest income
Interest from deposits

Sundry

Financial instruments and risk management

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Short term deposits - Deposits in banks (Note 5)
Deposits with brokers (Note 6)

Loans and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)

Trade receivables with third parties (Note 7)
Trade receivables with related parties (Note 7)
Loans to related parties (Note 11)

Other

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Trade payables (Note 16)

Loans and borrowings (Note 15)

Distribution to shareholders (Notes 23.d and 18)
Payables for acquisition (Note 20)

Other

Risk management

The Group is exposed to the following risks as a result of using financial instruments:

Credit risk

Commodity price risk
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RS
2017 2016
(1,822) (3,332)
(32,990) (28,120)
(1,801) 3,288
(3,554) (4,402)
(40,167) (32,566)
5,091 4,504
6,848 6,800
49 22
11,988 11,326
(28,179) (21,240)
RS
31/12/2017 31/12/2016
54,629 34,462
3,508 2,418
58,481 52,062
470,711 392,577
1,585 892
21,479 7,908
32,383 28,958
233,675 151,143
375,758 433,047
93,619 103,206
7,973 24,334
15,019 13,444
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Interest rate risk
Foreign currency risk
Liquidity risk

Capital structure risk.

This note provides information regarding the exposure of the Group to these risks and regarding
the policy of the Group for management of such risks.

Forward transactions sensitivity analyses are determined according to the changes in the price of
the relevant underlying asset and interest differences deriving from interest rates and storage
costs (for green coffee).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of the Group incurring a monetary loss if a customer or counterparty does
not meet its contractual obligations, and it derives mainly from debit balances of customers and
cash and cash equivalents balances held at financial institutions. In order to mitigate this risk,
the Group assesses the financial situation of its customers or counterparties, as well as defines
credit limits and monitors outstanding debts and operates with first line financial institutions.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

R$

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) 113,110 86,524
Deposits with brokers (Note 6) 3,508 2,418
Trade receivables (Note 7) 472,296 393,469
Other receivables 6,653 5,664
Other 10,574 11,955

606,141 500,030

Management assesses its credit risk exposure as low, once the trade receivables are not
concentrated. The biggest customer represents 6.06% of 2017 gross revenue (6.27% in 2016).

In addition, provision for doubtful debt accounts amounts to R$ 7,207 as of 31 December 2017
(R$ 4,445 as of 31 December 2016), which represents 1.53% (1.12% as of 31 December 2016)
of total trade receivables balance, to properly reflect the existing credit risk.

Commodity price risk

The prices of raw materials used in manufacture (primarily green coffee) of the Group’s
products are affected, among other things, by uncontrollable factors, such as weather conditions.

52



Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and independent
auditors’ report on consolidated financial statements

Green coffee export business

For its green coffee export activity, the Group covers it fixed future sales agreements by both
physical inventory, fixed future purchase agreements and uses financial derivatives to a limited
extent. Below is a table with the quantities of bags (60 kg each) which the Group was
committed to purchase or sell in the future, as of 31 December 2017 and 2016:

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Purchase agreements:

Fixed price 42,897 88,850
Sales agreements:

Fixed price 40,440 117,987
Price to be fixed 103,320 160,360

Green coffee for the industry (internal market)

For its internal market production the Group principally seeks to manage its industry green
coffee price exposure by managing its physical inventory of green coffee, its green coffee future
purchases and only uses financial derivatives to a limited extent. When green coffee prices are
attractive, the Group typically increases its coverage in advance of any expected price increases.
Similarly, when green coffee prices are deemed high, the Group decreases its coverage of green
coffee in anticipation of lower prices in the future. The Group coverage can normally range
from as low as 2 months to up to 6 months.

Commodity financial derivatives - both green coffee export business and internal
market

In prior years, the Group had engaged in future contracts and option contracts for the purchase
and sale of commodities.

As of 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were no open derivatives positions and no sensitivity
analysis was required. Management has focused its hedging for green coffee prices variations in
purchase and sales agreements, presented above.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group does not normally use derivative financial instrument in order to reduce exposure to

risks arising from changes in interest rates.At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the
Group's interest bearing financial instrument was:
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Carrying amount

31/12/2017 31/12/2016
RS
Fixed rate instruments
Financial liabilities (27,573) (138,700)
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets 58,137 36,880
Financial liabilities (348,185) (294,347)
(317,621) (396,167)

Net exposure

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments - CDI and TJLP
Changes in the interest rates as of the report date would increase (decrease) equity and the
income or loss of the following period by the amounts presented below. This analysis was
performed assuming that all the other variables remain the same.

31 December 2017

Decrease of Annual weighted Increase of Increase of
2% Decrease of 1% interest 1% 2%
R$
Total 5,801 2,900 (24,735) (2,900) (5,801)

31 December 2016

Decrease of Annual weighted Increase of Increase of
2% Decrease of 1% interest 1% 2%
R$
Total 5,149 2,575 (12,313) (2,575) (5,149)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Fixed interest assets and liabilities of the Group (such as deposits and loans) are not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, any change in the interest rate as of the report date
would not have an effect on the statement of income.

Inflation rate

Brazilian inflation was 2.95% for the year ended 31 December 2017 as measured by the IPCA
consumer price index of the independent Fundagao Getulio Vargas, which represents significant
reduction from the 6.29% in 2016 and the Brazilian economy is not considered as
hyperinflationary according to IAS 29 - financial reporting on hyperinflationary economies.
However, Management is aware of the high inflation rates impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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d.  Foreign currency risk

Exposure to currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:
Exposure to US$

RS

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Financial liabilities
Short term loans and credit (75,950) (149,144)

(75,950) (149,144)

Total exposure

Sensitivity analysis to currency risk

Any change in the exchange rates of the principal currency, Brazilian Reals, versus foreign
exchange rate currencies, mainly United States Dollars, as of 31 December would have
increased (decreased) equity and the income or loss by the amounts presented below. This
analysis was performed assuming that all the other variables remain the same and disregards use
of hedging instruments and tax effects.

The sensitivity analysis relates to foreign currency risk arising from financial items denominated
in foreign currency that is not the functional currency of the Group and its investee companies.
Therefore, the foreign currency risk arising from the translation of financial statements of
foreign operations, which is reflected in a translation reserve, is not included in this sensitivity

analysis.

31 December 2017

Decrease Decrease Exchange rate Increase of Increase of
of 10% of 5%  carrying amount 5% 10%
R$
Functional currency
BRL/USD exchange rate 2.9772 3.1426 3.3080 3.4734 3.6388
Effect in R$ Thousand 7,595 3,798 (75,950) (3,798) (7,595)

31 December 2016

Decrease Decrease Exchange rate Increase of Increase of
of 10% of 5%  carrying amount 5% 10%
R$
Functional currency
BRL/USD exchange rate 2.9332 3.0961 3.2591 3.4221 3.5850
Effect in R$ Thousand 14,914 7,457 (149,144) (1.457) _ (14914)
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The Group uses derivative financial instruments in order to reduce exposure to risks arising
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. As of 31 December 2017, the derivative
financial instruments of the Group were as follows:

Currency Currency  Expiration/ Maturity/ Face value
receivable payable sale RS
Forward currency contracts UsS$ R$ February/2018 38,119

Presented hereunder is a sensitivity analysis of the Group’s derivative instruments (foreign
currency) as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 in R$. Any change in the exchange
rates of the principal currency, Brazilian Reals, versus foreign exchange rate currencies, mainly
United States Dollars, as of 31 December, would have increased (decreased) the income or loss
and the equity by the amounts presented below (in R$). This analysis was performed assuming
that all the other variables remain the same, and disregards tax effects.

31 December 2017

Decrease of Exchange rate Increase of Increase of
10%  Decrease of 5% carrying amount 5% 10%
R$
Functional currency
BRL/USD exchange rate 2.9772 3.1426 3.3080 3.4734 3.6388
Effect of forwards (3.804) (1,902) (92) 1,902 3,804

31 December 2016

Decrease of Exchange rate Increase of Increase
10%  Decrease of 5% carrying amount 5% of 10%
R$
Functional currency
Effect of forwards (2,200) (1,100) (10) 1,100 2,200
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The following are the contractual maturities of financial
liabilities, including estimated interest payments and the impact of netting agreements. This
analysis is based on indices known as of 31 December, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates.

31 December 2017

Carrying Contractual cash

amount flow 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Thereafter
RS

Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
BRL long term loan 151,525 166,014 - 10,217 43,437 102,366 5,860 4,134
BRL credit from bank 148,283 152,877 152,877 - - - - -
USD credit from bank 75,950 76,808 76,808 - - - - -
Trade payables 233,675 233,675 233,675 - - - - -
Other payables 73,154 73,154 73,154 - - - - -
Total 682,587 702,528 536,514 10,217 43,437 102,366 5,860 4,134

31 December 2016

Carrying Contractual cash

amount flow 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter
RS

Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
BRL long term loan 134,243 150,264 - 131,551 5,659 5,141 3,966 3,947
BRL credit from bank 149,660 156,405 156,405 - - - - -
USD credit from bank 149,144 150,964 150,964 - - - - -
Trade payables 151,143 151,143 151,143 - - - - -
Other payables 79,912 79,912 79,912 - - - - -
Total 664,102 688,688 538,424 131,551 5,659 5,141 3,966 3,947

Capital structure management

Management policy is to maintain a solid capital base in order to maintain investors” and market
trust, as well as to maintain the future development of the business. Management monitors
returns on capital, which the Group defines as the relation between operational profit and total
equity. Management monitors as well the dividend amounts distributed to the shareholders.

Management seeks to maintain a balanced level of returns to the shareholders with low risk
level of net debt and a healthy capital structure.
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The Group’s equity and working capital versus net debt at the end of each year are presented

below:

Debt (Note 15)
Less: cash and cash equivalent (Note 5)

Net debt
Total equity

Equity/net debt ratio as of 31 December

Trade receivables (Note 7)
Inventories (Note 8)

Trade payables (Note 16)
Total working capital

Working capital/net debt ratio as of 31 December

Fair value

R$

31/12/2017  31/12/2016

375,758 433,047
(113,110) (86,524)

262,648 346,523

818,792 652,937

3.12 1.88
472,296 393,469
372,189 377,163

(233,675)  (151,143)
610,810 619,489
2.33 1.79

As of 31 December 2017 and of 2016, the fair value of financial instruments, as well as the
carrying amounts presented in the financial statements are identified below:

Financial assets

Short term deposits - Deposits in banks (Note 5)
Deposits with brokers (Note 6)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)

Trade receivables with third parties (Note 7)
Trade receivables with related parties (Note 7)
Loans to related parties (Note 11)

Other

Financial liabilities

Trade payables (Note 16)

Loans and borrowings (Note 15)

Distribution to shareholders (Notes 23.d and 18)
Payables for acquisition (Note 20)

Other

RS
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

31/12/2017  31/12/2017 31/12/2016  31/12/2016

54,629 54,629 34,462 34,462
3,508 3,508 2,418 2,418
58,481 58,481 52,062 52,062
470,711 470,711 392,577 392,577
1,585 1,585 892 892
21,479 21,479 7,908 7,908
32,383 32,383 28,958 28,958
233,675 233,675 151,143 151,143
375,758 317,393 433,047 364,032
93,619 93,619 103,206 103,206
7,973 7,973 24,334 24,334
15,019 15,019 13,444 13,444
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The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined by reference to price at which they
could be exchanged in a current transaction between parties willing to negotiate, and not in a
forced sale or liquidation. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair value:

Regarding derivative balances, the Group used the fair value reported in the brokers’ statements,
which is identified in the Fair value hierarchy as the Level 2 of source of information.

The amounts of deposits presented in the financial statements as cash and cash equivalents are
close to its realizable value because the operations are performed at variable interest rate and are
immediately convertible to a determined amount of cash.

The fair value of non-negotiable instruments, bank loans and other debts, as well as other non-
current financial liabilities, are estimated using discounted future cash flows at the rates
currently available for similar instruments.

Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy to determine and disclose the fair values of financial
instruments, based on the valuation methodology used:

Level 1: quoted prices in an active market for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all of the data having a significant effect on the fair value
recorded are observable, directly or indirectly;

The fair value of assets and liabilities that are not quoted in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the asset or liability is considered as valued from Level 3
source of information.

Specific valuation techniques that might be used to value financial instruments in general
include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows based on observable yield curves;

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value of the
remaining financial instruments.

Level 3: inputs for valuing a financial instrument that are not based on observable market data

(that is, unobservable inputs). As of 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had no financial
instruments classified at Level 3.
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Insurance

The Group hires insurance coverage for assets exposed to risks. The Management believes the
coverage is in an amount sufficient to cover eventual losses, considering the nature of the
Group’s activities.

On 31 December 2017, insurance coverage against operational risk comprised R$ 81,208

(R$ 79,190 on 31 December 2016) for material damage, R$ 147,103 (R$ 128,348 on 31
December 2016) for lost profits, R$ 6,000 (R$ 3,500 on 31 December 2016) for civil
responsibility and R$ 15,000 (R$ 15,000 on 31 December 2016) for directors and members of
the executive team civil responsibility.
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